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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members of

KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED

The Board of Directors has pleasure in presenting Twenty Seventh Annual Report together with audited
Financial Statements of your Company for the year ended 31 March, 2023.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Financial performance under Ind AS for FY 2022-23 with comparative numbers for FY 2021-22 is
presented below:

(Xin Lakh)
. Year ended 31* March, Ye?tr ended
Particulars 2023 31 March,
R 2022
Gross Income 2,99,764.32 2,62,562.52
Profit before Depreciation and Tax 1,28,345.48 1,30,688.77
Depreciation 1,269.55 783.76
Profit before Tax 1,27,075.93 1,29,905.01
Provision for Tax 32,322.85 32,434.61
Profit after Tax 94,753.08 97,470.40
Other Comprehensive Income 6,088.51 14,104.27
Total Comprehensive Income 1,00,841.59 1,11,574.67
Balance of Profit from previous years 5,51,757.30 4,75,134.51
Appropriations:
Dividend paid on Equity Shares 1,747.60 1,398.08
Transfer to Special Reserve u/s 451C of the RBI Act, 1934 18,950.61 19,494.08
Surplus carried forward to the Balance Sheet 6,25,765.18 5,51,757.30

BUSINESS STRATEGY, OBJECTIVES, PROSPECTS AND FUTURE GOALS

After passing through the once in a century event like “COVID-19”, the situation related to the COVID
seems to be coming under control across the Globe as well as in India too. However, the global economy
has been experiencing significant shifts following the new geopolitical scenario that arisen due to the
ongoing Ukraine Russia war since February 2022. On account of this, most of the countries around the
world are facing high inflation-and resultant high interest rate scenario to try and rein in inflation, during
the current financial year 2022-23.

At the same time, India seems to be doing better than the world in managing this situation i.e. post Covid
and the new geopolitical scenario. Need for personal mobility, investments in infrastructure by the
government and improved supply situation has resulted in higher demand for vehicles in India. To
leverage the growing demand for vehicles, company is focusing on expanding its operations and invest in
new technologies, without losing its focus on portfolio quality. Wide branch network and a firm
commitment to deliver superior customer service is helping the company to maintain its market position.



DIVIDEND

The Directors recommend Dividend on Equity Shares @ X50.00 per equity share (Previous Year: X50.00
per equity share).

DEBENTURES

Pursuant to various circulars issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and the Reserve
Bank of India (RBI) from time to time, the Company continues to issue debentures on private placement
basis and list all debentures issued, on the BSE Limited under Information Memorandums issued by the
Company from time to time. The Company has appointed IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited as Debenture
Trustees to the issues.

The Contact details of the Debenture Trustees are:
IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited

Address : IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited, Universal Insurance Building, Ground Floor, Sir P.M. Road,
Fort, Mumbai - 400001

Contact Numbers: 022—40807181; Fax - 022-66311776
Email: swapnil@idbitrustee.com; subrat@idbitrustee.com; itsl@idbitrustee.com
Website: www.idbitrustee.com

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR) of your Company as on 31 March 2023 was at 28.50% (Tier | —
27.80%).

CREDIT RATING

The Company’s long-term borrowings rating continued to be “AAA” (with Stable Outlook) by CRISIL and
ICRA. The Company’s Tier Il Subordinated Debts continued to be dual rated by CRISIL and ICRA, with a

rating of “AAA” (with Stable Outlook).

The Company’s short-term borrowing program rated by CRISIL and ICRA continued to enjoy the highest
rating of “Al+”.

The assessment of your Company’s risk profile by the rating agencies strengthens the confidence placed
by a large pool of investors in your Company.

AAA indicates highest degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations and carries a
lowest credit risk.

FINANCE

Your Company continues to be a Non-Deposit Accepting NBFC - Investment and Credit Company
(reclassified from Asset Finance Company (AFC) vide RBI circular dated February 22, 2019 on
Harmonization of NBFCs categories). It has well diversified and large pool of lenders comprising of Public
and Private Sector Banks, Mutual Funds, Insurance Companies, Pension Funds, Financial Institutions,
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Foreign Institutional Investors (Fll) and Corporates. Your Company continued to introduce new lenders /
investors during the year. Further, prudent Asset Liability Management continues to be focus of your
Company.

The RBI increased the policy repo rate by 250bps from 4.00% to 6.50% during the financial year 2022-23
on account of concerns on inflation being higher than the mandated tolerance levels. Also US Federal
Reserve increased the Fed Funds rate by 450bps during the financial year 2022-23 from 0.25%-0.50%
levels to 4.75%-5.00% levels on account of high inflation concerns. Core inflation in India continue to be
at elevated levels. With headline CPI inflation ruling persistently above the tolerance band of RBI, the
MPC decided to remain resolutely focused on aligning inflation with the target in financial year 2022-23.

For the financial year 2022-23, the second advanced estimate of National Statistical Office places India’s
real Gross Domestic Product (GDP) at 7%. Global economic activity remains resilient amidst the
persistence of inflation at elevated levels, turmoil in the banking system in some advanced economies
(AEs), tight financial conditions and lingering geopolitical hostilities. Further, financial market volatility
due to monetary policy normalization pose downside risk to the outlook.

Despite continued challenges faced during the financial year, your Company continued to get regular
access to funding from various sources and has continued to maintain adequate liquidity profile.

Your Company with its strong treasury and risk management philosophies and practices is well geared to
meet the challenges of dynamic interest rate and liquidity environment.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Company Business

Your Company primarily is into vehicle finance business, engaged in financing of retail customers for
passenger cars, multi-utility vehicles, two wheelers and inventory and term funding to auto dealers. It is
also engaged in loan against property, corporate loans, developer finance and other lending.

Your Company is focusing on capitalizing its distribution strength with original equipment manufacturers,
Dealers, Channel partners and customers. Customer base, easy accessibility through its wide network of
branches and a firm commitment to deliver superior customer service, has enabled your Company to
maintain its market position.

The main streams of income for your Company are income from retail car and two wheeler loans, dealer
finance income and fee based income. Your Company also receives income from corporate loans,
developer funding and personal loans. The major expenses for your Company are interest expense,
business sourcing expense and cost of running operations.

During the Financial Year 2022-23, your Company’s retail disbursements were at X 14,87,221 lakh as
against X 9,30,283 lakh in the previous year. During the year under review, gross advances stood at
X 26,74,138.24 lakh as against X 23,09,264.01 lakh in the previous year.

Your Company continued to focus on cost control and credit losses, while improving its positioning in the
car finance industry.

As detailed in the ‘Financial Results’ section above, Gross Income of your Company increased from X
2,62,562.52 lakh in 2021-22 to X 2,99,446.47.32 lakh in 2022-23. Profit before Tax was at X 1,27,075.93
lakh in 2022-23 as compared to X 1,29,905.01 lakh in 2021-22.



Segment wise performance

The Company has identified segments as Vehicle Financing, Other Lending activities and Treasury and
Investments.

Vehicle Finance includes Retail and Wholesale trade finance and the segment result is Profit before tax of
X 1,34,021.31 lakh. Other Lending activities include financing against securities, securitization, debenture
investment / lending in commercial real estate and other loan / fee based services and the segment
result is Profit before tax of X 15,882.89 lakh. Treasury and Investment activities include proprietary
trading in shares and the segment result is Profit before tax of X 3,573.14 lakh.

Industry Scenario

The passenger car market in India saw a growth of 26.73% for the Financial Year 2022-23. Total unit sales
of cars and MUV’s crossed 38.79 lakh units in financial year 2022-23.

The two wheeler market in India saw a growth of 17.69% for the Financial Year 2022-23. Total unit sales
of two-wheeler crossed 158.48 lakh units in financial year 2022-23.

Internal Controls

The Internal Audit department regularly conducts a review to assess the financial and operating controls
at various locations of your Company including Head Office functions and at branches. Reports of the
audits conducted by the Internal Audit department are presented to the Audit Committee.
Representatives of the statutory auditors are permanent invitees to the Audit Committee.

Human Resources

The Company is professionally managed with key management personnel having relatively long tenure
with the Company. Your Company follows a policy of building strong teams of talented professionals.
Your Company encourages and facilitates long term careers with your Company through carefully
designated management development programs and performance management systems. The total
number of on roll employees was 7,212 at end of 31 March, 2023.

Information Technology

Your Company uses “ORACLE FUSION” as its Financial system and the operating system ‘CORE’ which is
owned and managed by Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited and is used for its retail assets division since 2003.
The CORE system has the latest technology platform and also has capacity to scale based on business
requirements. The modular nature of the system supports efficiency in operations coupled with strong
systems and operational controls. The system is robust to cater to efficient customer service and support
marketing initiatives at reasonable cost. The Company has implemented various systems during the year
to enhance efficiency.

Cautionary Note

Certain statements in the ‘Management Discussion and Analysis’ section may be forward-looking and are
stated as may be required by applicable laws and regulations. Many factors may affect the actual results,



which could be different from what the Directors envisage in terms of future performance and outlook.
Your Company does not undertake to update these statements.

DIRECTORS’ & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Change in Directors during the year
Appointment of Directors

Mr. Chandra Shekhar Rajan (00126063) was appointed as an Additional Independent Director of the
Company with effect from February 14, 2023, subject to the approval of the members at the General
meeting. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on February 9, 2023 has
recommended the appointment of Mr. Chandra Shekhar Rajan as an Independent Director to the Board
and shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, the members of the Company at the Extraordinary
General meeting of the Company held on March 10, 2023 approved the appointment of Mr. Chandra
Shekhar Rajan as an Independent Director.

Mr. Chandra Shekhar Rajan, aged 66 years, is a successful leader with over 40 years of experience across
significant government portfolios. In roles ranging from Sub-divisional Magistrate and Collector to Chief
Secretary and then Whole-time Dy. Chairman of the Chief Minister’s Advisory Council, Mr. Rajan has
served the Government of Rajasthan in key sectors including Agriculture and Rural Development, Industry
(including MSME), Infrastructure (including Roads and Energy), Financial Services, General Administration
and Business Management. Mr. Rajan has served on a number of inter-disciplinary teams for review of
World Bank projects, and also as a Consultant to the World Bank on a Study on Farmer Participation in
Agricultural Research and Extension System. Mr. Rajan is currently serving as a Government of India
appointed Non-Executive Chairman of Infrastructure Leasing & Financial Services Limited and was also its
Managing Director from April 2019 to October 2022. Mr. Rajan has a postgraduate degree in History from
St. Stephen’s College, University of Delhi and is a retired IAS officer of the 1978 Batch.

Resignation of Directors

Mr. D. Kannan (DIN: 00498935) resigned as a Non-Executive Director of the Company effective end of
working hours on March 30, 2023. Due to the resignation as a Director, Mr. Kannan ceased to be a
member of the Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee, Risk Management Committee, Credit Committee of Board, Committee of
Board of Directors, IT Strategy Committee and other committees. Your Directors placed on record their
appreciation and deep gratitude for the immense contributions made by Mr. D Kannan, as a Non-
Executive Director to the Company during his tenure.

Directors retiring by rotation during the year
Mr. Amit Mohan (DIN: 09294638), Director, retires by rotation at the Twenty Seventh Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment.

Re-appointment of Managing Director

The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee,
re-appointed Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi (DIN: 07665329) as the Managing Director of the Company for a period
with effect from 9th December 2022 until 31st July 2025, subject to the approval from the shareholders
at the General meeting. Accordingly, the members of the Company at the Extraordinary General meeting
of the Company held on December 7, 2022 approved the re-appointment of Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi as the
Managing Director.



Re-appointment of Ms. Akila Urankar, Independent Director

The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee,
re-appointed Ms. Akila Urankar (DIN: 00226541) as an Independent Director of the Company for a period
of five years with effect from 1st April 2023 who shall hold office up to 31st March 2028, subject to the
approval from the shareholders at the general meeting. Accordingly, the members of the Company at the
Extraordinary General meeting of the Company held on March 10, 2023 approved the re-appointment of
Ms. Akila Urankar as an Independent Director.

Change in CFO

Mr. Bharat Thakkar is considering a career opportunity with Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited, the Holding
Company. He is stepping down as Chief Financial Officer of the Company with last working day being
15th August 2023. Mr. Jason Dalgado was appointed as the new Chief Financial Officer of the Company
by the Board with effect from 16th August 2023 in their Board meeting held on 14th June 2023, in place
of Mr. Bharat Thakkar.

Declaration from Independent Directors

The Board has received declarations from the Independent Directors as per the requirement of Section
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Board is satisfied that the Independent Directors meet the
criteria of independence as mentioned in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Board Evaluation

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company’s Board has formulated the criteria for
performance evaluation of the Directors and the Board as a whole. The Criteria formulated broadly
covers the Board role, Board/Committee membership, practice & procedure and collaboration & style.

In line with the SEBI Guidance note on Board Evaluation, a Board effectiveness assessment questionnaire
was designed for the performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees, Chairman and individual
directors and in accordance with the criteria set and covering various aspects of performance including
structure of the board, meetings of the board, functions of the board, role and responsibilities of the
board, governance and compliance, evaluation of risks, grievance redressal for investors, conflict of
interest, relationship among directors, director competency, board procedures, processes, functioning
and effectiveness. The said questionnaire was circulated to all the directors of the Company for the
annual performance evaluation.

Based on the assessment of the responses received to the questionnaire from the directors on the
annual evaluation of the Board, its Committees, Chairman and the individual Directors, a summary of the
Board Evaluation was placed before the Independent Directors for consideration. Similarly, the Board at
its meeting assessed the performance of the Independent Directors. The Directors were satisfied with
the results of the performance evaluation of the Board & its Committees, Chairman and individual
directors.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)
In terms of the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi, Managing

Director, Mr. Shahrukh Todiwala, Whole-Time Director, Mr. Bharat C Thakkar, Chief Financial Officer and
Mr. Kiran Tangudu, Company Secretary, are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.



Appointment & Remuneration of Directors and KMPs

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company has formulated
criteria for appointment of Senior Management Personnel and the Directors. Based on the criteria set it
recommends to the Board the appointment of Directors and Senior Management personnel. The
Committee considers the qualifications, experience fit and proper status, positive attributes as per the
suitability of the role and independent status and various regulatory/statutory requirements as may be
required of the candidate before such appointment.

The Board has adopted a Compensation Policy for the Whole-time Directors, Chief Executive Officer and
other employees of the Company. The Policy is in line with the Compensation Policy of Kotak Mahindra
Bank Limited, its holding company (the compensation policy is available on the Company’s website
hosted in https://www.primeloans.kotak.com/policies.htm), which is based on the Guidelines issued by
Reserve Bank of India. The salient features of the Remuneration Policy are as follows:

. Objective is to maintain fair, consistent and equitable compensation practices in alighment with
Kotak’s core values and strategic business goals

. Applicable to all employees of the Company. Employees classified into 3 groups:
oWhole-time Directors/Chief Executive Officer
oRisk, Operations & Support Staff
oOther categories of Staff

. Compensation structure broadly divided into Fixed, Variable and ESOPs
o Fixed Pay — Total cost to the Company i.e. Salary, Retirals and Other Benefits

o Variable Pay — Linked to assessment of performance and potential based on Balanced Key
Result Areas (KRAs), Standards of Performance and achievement of targets with overall linkage
to Bank budgets and business objectives. The main form of incentive compensation includes —
Cash, Deferred Cash/Incentive Plan and Stock Appreciation Rights

o ESOPs of Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited — Granted on a discretionary basis to employee based on
their performance and potential with the objective of retaining the employee

. Compensation Composition — The ratio of Variable Pay to Fixed Pay and the ratio of Cash v/s Non
Cash within Variable pay outlined for each category of employee classification

. Any variation in the Policy to be with approval of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee

. Malus and Clawback clauses applicable on Deferred Variable Pay

The Board of Directors have adopted a compensation policy for the Non-Executive Directors (NEDs) of
the Company. The salient features of the Compensation Policy are as follows:

e Compensation structure broadly divided into:
o Sitting fees
o Re-imbursement of expenses
o Fixed Remuneration

e Amount of sitting fees and compensation to be decided by the Board from time to time, subject
to the regulatory limits



e Independent Directors are not eligible for any stock options of Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited, the
Company’s holding company

Remuneration to the KMPs i.e. Managing Director, Whole-Time Director, Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary, is as per the terms of their employment.

Number of Board Meetings

During the year, 14 meetings of the Board of Directors were held.

Disclosures pursuant to Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014

1. Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees for
the financial year:

Name Title Ratio Ratio excluding
SARs
Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi Managing 68.92x 65.19x
Director
Mr. Shahrukh Todiwala Whole-Time 51.71x 48.04x
Director
2. Percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive

Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

Director/KMP Title % increase [/ % increase [/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
remuneration remuneration

excluding SARs
Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi Managing 4.03% 29.64%
Director

Mr. Shahrukh Todiwala Whole-Time (3.48%) 25.36%
Director

Mr. Bharat Thakkar Chief Financial (0.76%) 15.87%
Officer

Mr. Kiran Tangudu Company 17.95% 17.95%
Secretary

3. Percentage increase / (decrease) in the median remuneration of employees in the financial
year:

16.07% considering employees who were in employment for the whole of FY 2022-23 and FY
2021-22.



4. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company at the end of the year: 7,212

5. Average percentile increase / (decrease) already made in the salaries of employees other than
the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase / (decrease) in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if
there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

For employees other than managerial personnel who were in employment of FY 2022-23 and FY
2021-22 the average increase (decrease) is 18.07% and 18.52% excluding SARs.
Average increase / (decrease) for Managerial Personnel is 1.29% and 24.2% excluding SARs.
6. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:
The Company is in compliance with its Compensation Policy.

Notes:

1) The Independent Directors of the Company receive remuneration in the form of sitting fees for
attending the Board/Committee meetings and in the form of a fixed remuneration.

2) Remuneration includes Fixed pay + Variable paid during the year + perquisite value as calculated
under the Income Tax Act, 1961. However, it does not include value of Stock Options.

3) Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) are awarded as variable pay. These are settled in cash and are
linked to the average market price/closing market price of the stock of Kotak Mahindra Bank
Limited on specified value dates. Cash paid out during the year is included for the purposes of
remuneration.

COMMITTEES

(a) AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was re-constituted during the year and presently consists of Mr. Ravi
Venkatraman (Chairman), Ms. Akila Urankar, Mr. Chandrashekhar Sathe and Mr. Amit Mohan. The
guorum comprises of any three members.

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2023, 16 meetings of the Committee were held.

The First Tier Audit Committee presently comprises of Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi, Mr. Bharat Thakkar and
Mr. Jason Dalgado. The quorum comprises of any two members. The Committee screens the matters
entrusted to the Audit Committee and also the routine matters such as overseeing the programme
of inspections and compliance of inspection reports.



(b) NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee was re-constituted during the year and presently
comprises of Mr. Chandrasekhar Sathe (Chairman), Ms. Akila Urankar, Mr. Ravi Venkatraman and
Mr. Uday Kotak. The quorum comprises of any three members.

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2023, five meetings of the Committee were held.

(c) COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Committee of the Board of Directors was re-constituted during the year and presently consists of
Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi, Mr. Shahrukh Todiwala and Mr. Amit Mohan. The quorum comprises of three
members. The Committee looks into the routine transactions of Company which inter alia include
authorizing opening, operation and closure of bank accounts and demat accounts of the Company,
authorizing officials of the Company to execute various documents, agreements, issuing power of
attorney for representing the Company in various Courts of Law and before various Statutory
Authorities and borrowing of money within the delegated limit.

During the financial year ended 31t March, 2023, one meeting of the Committee was held.

(d) RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee of Board (Tier Il level) was re-constituted during the year and
presently consists of Mr. Chandrashekhar Sathe (Chairman), Ms. Akila Urankar, Mr. Ravi Venkatraman
and Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi. The quorum comprises of any three members. It reviews the adequacy of
the risk management process and up-gradation thereof.

During the financial year ended 31t March, 2023, four meetings of the Tier Il level Committee were
held.

(e) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee presently consists of Ms. Akila Urankar (Chairperson),
Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi, Mr. Ravi Venkatraman and Mr. Chandra Shekhar Rajan, with any three

members forming the quorum.

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2023, four meetings of the CSR Committee were held.

(f) CREDIT COMMITTEE

A. The Credit Committee (Board) (CCB) was re-constituted during the year and presently consists of
Mr. Ravi Venkatraman (Chairman), Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi and Mr. Amit Mohan, with any three
members forming the quorum. The Committee scrutinizes and approves credit proposals above
such limit as specified in the Approval Authorities from time to time.

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2023, sixteen meetings of the Committee were held.

B. The Credit Committee (CC-1) was re-constituted during the year and presently consists of Mr.
Vyomesh Kapasi, Mr. Shahrukh Todiwala and Mr. Jason Dalgado, with any two members forming



the quorum. The Committee critically analyse the financials of the various loan proposals placed
before it for their approval.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, nineteen meetings of the Committee were
held.

(g) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee was constituted towards the end of the year and
presently consists of Mr. Chandrashekhar Sathe (Chairman), Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi, Ms. Akila Urankar
and Mr. Shahrukh Todiwala. The quorum comprises of any three members. The Committee
specifically looks into various aspects of interest of shareholders, debenture holders and other
security holders.

During the financial year ended 31t March, 2023, no meeting of the Committee was held.

(h) IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE

IT Strategy Committee was re-constituted during the year and presently consists of Mr.
Chandrashekhar Sathe (Chairman), Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi, Ms. Akila Urankar and Mr. Ravi Rao. The
quorum comprises of any three members. The Committee reviews the IT strategy of the Company
and other matters related to IT governance.

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2023, two meetings of the Committee were held.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The report on Corporate Governance for FY 2022-23 containing certain disclosures, is annexed to this
Report as Annexure Il

AUDITORS

In terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and also in terms of the circular dated April 27, 2021
issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), the Company’s Joint Statutory Auditors M M Nissim & Co LLP
(Firm Registration No: 107122W/W100672) and Mukund M. Chitale & Co. (Firm Registration No:
106655W) were appointed as Joint statutory auditors of the Company by the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting which was held on 10" August 2021 from the conclusion of the Twenty Fifth Annual
General Meeting until the conclusion of the Twenty Eighth Annual General Meeting.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board of Directors confirms that your Company has laid down set of standards, processes and
structure which enables to implement Internal Financial controls across the organization with reference
to Financial Statements and that such controls are adequate and are operating effectively. During the
year under review, no material or serious observation has been observed for inefficiency or inadequacy
of such controls.



COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable for the business activities
carried out by the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis
and were in the ordinary course of business.

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, there are no
transactions to be reported under Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in form AOC-2.

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for its review and approval on a
qguarterly basis. An omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the Related Party
Transactions which are repetitive in nature.

All Related Party Transactions as required under Indian Accounting Standard Ind AS 24 are reported in
Notes to Accounts under Note no.39 of the financial statements of your Company.

The Company’s Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions is available on the Company’s website
www.primeloans.kotak.com.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 11 of Companies (Meetings of Board
and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Company being a Non-Banking Financial Company registered with
Reserve Bank of India, nothing contained in section 186 is applicable, except subsection(1) of that section.
WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY & VIGIL MECHANISM

Your Company has also put in place the Whistle Blower Policy to raise concerns internally and to disclose
information, which the individual believes shows malpractice, serious irregularities, fraud, unethical

business conduct, abuse or wrongdoing or violation of any Indian law.

The Whistle Blower Policy is also put up on the Company’s website www.primeloans.kotak.com.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, Kotak
Mahindra Prime Limited (“Company”) has constituted a Board Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee. The CSR Committee was re-constituted during the year and presently consists of the
following:

1) Ms. Akila Urankar



2) Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi
3) Mr. Ravi Venkataraman
4) Mr. Chandra Shekhar Rajan

Your Company has undertaken socially impactful CSR Projects for welfare and sustainable development
of population at large, in accordance with the guidelines and robust mechanism led out in the CSR
Policy. Your Company has collaborated with implementing agencies across to implement projects in the
CSR focus areas defined under its CSR Policy viz. Education & Livelihood and Healthcare.

website:

Your Company’s CSR Policy is available on the

https://www.primeloans.kotak.com/policies.htm

Company’s

Your Company’s CSR Projects and CSR Project Expenditure for FY 2022-23 are compliant with the CSR
mandate as specified under section 134, section 135 read with Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, along
with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time
and in line with Government of India’s notifications issued from time-to-time.

The 2% of Average net profit of the Company for FY 2022-23 as per Section 135 of the Act and the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, as amended from time to time is X 18.50
crore. After setting-off X 0.002 crore from the excess CSR spent of the previous FY 2021-22, the total CSR
obligation of the Company for FY 2022-23 is X 18.49 crore.

For the period April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023 the Company’s spend on CSR Project Expenditure is X 12.46
crore, amount spent in CSR Administrative Overheads is X 0.33 crore of FY 2022-23 and the amount spent
on Impact assessment is X 0.11 crore. In addition, an amount of X 6.02 crore which is on account of the
unutilised CSR Project Expenditure of ongoing CSR Projects of FY 2022-23 has been transferred to the
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited Unspent CSR Account FY 2022-23 in April 2023. Your Company is committed
to utilise the unutilised CSR Project Expenditure of ongoing CSR Projects Expenditure FY 2022-23 of X 6.02
crore within the stipulated three years i.e. from April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2026.

Together with the CSR Project Spend, Impact assessment and administrative expenditure and Unspent CSR
amount, the total CSR Expenditure for FY2022-23 is X 18.93 crore which is an excess of X 0.43 crore over
the total CSR obligation for FY2022-23. The excess CSR spend of X 0.43 crore for FY 2022-23 is being carried
forward to succeeding financial years and would be available for set-off in those financial years. The details
are more particularly described in section on Annual Report on CSR activities for FY 2022-23.

Your Company also maintains the following Unspent CSR Bank accounts pertaining to funds earmarked
for its Ongoing CSR Projects for the previous financial years :-

(X Crore)

Name of the Ongoing Amount Amount Balance as on
Unspent CSR transferred to disbursed from 31 March,
account Projects to Unspent unspent 2023

which account in accounts till

Unspent respective date

account financial years

relates
Kotak Mahindra FY 2020-21 5.19 4.10 1.09
Prime Limited
Unspent CSR
account FY
2020-21
Kotak Mahindra FY 2021-22 6.15 4.01 2.14
Prime Limited



https://www.primeloans.kotak.com/policies.htm

Unspent CSR
account FY
2021-22

Your Company is committed the amount available in Unspent accounts towards completion of Board
approved Ongoing CSR Projects within the stipulated time limit specified under the Act. The details of
the same are more particularly described in the section on Annual Report on CSR activities for FY 2022-
23 annexed to this Report.

A brief outline of the CSR Policy, the composition of the CSR Committee, CSR Project Spends during the
year under review, has been provided in detail in the Annual Report on CSR activities annexed to this
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Your Company manages risk, based on Risk Management framework, governance structure and policies
which lays down guidelines in identifying, assessing and managing risks.

Further, to facilitate better enterprise wide risk management, a Risk management committee (RMC) has
been constituted. The RMC meetings are conducted on quarterly basis and is responsible for review of
risk management practices covering credit risk, operations risk, liquidity risk, market risk and other risks
including capital adequacy with a view to align the same to the risk strategy & risk appetite of the
Company.

Your Company has qualified Credit officer’s at all major locations who appraise and approve retail finance
proposals (car, two-wheeler and LAP) that are generated at branches and representative offices. Credit
officers have pre-approved approval authorities for each location, beyond which the proposal is
forwarded to higher authority and to senior management for necessary approval. With a view to provide
superior customer decision experience to preferred set of customer profiles, certain pre-approved credit
approval programs are also implemented by specialized central credit teams.

Your Company uses various tools like field investigations, credit score card, CIBIL score, asset tenure
matrix to ensure high quality portfolio. All Retail proposals are scanned by Risk Containment Unit to verify
the authenticity of the documents and customers.

Your Company’s Dealer finance & Other business division’s credit management are centralized and follow
robust risk management policies for their evaluation. These credit proposals are approved at Senior levels
as per Board approved authorities including credit committees, due to the nature and complexities of
facilities offered. The Company follows stringent monitoring mechanism for the disbursed facilities which
results in early detection of potential stress accounts and thus ensuring early action for resolution of such
accounts.

Your Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits and monitors the concentration of risk
and also monitors the market value of the collaterals available on regular basis.

Your Company maintains stringent policies and procedures to ensure controls over various functions of
Head office & Branches. There are periodic independent reviews and monitoring of operating controls as
defined in the Company’s operating manual.



SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has appointed M/s. Parikh &
Associates, Company Secretaries, a firm of Practising Company Secretaries, as its Secretarial Auditor.
The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 315 March, 2023 is annexed to this Report.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government under Section 118(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the FY 2022-23.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to section 134(3)(a) and section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) rules, 2014, the annual return of the Company as on 31st
March, 2022 is placed on the Company’s website viz. Url:
https://www.primeloans.kotak.com/policies.htm.

EMPLOYEES
The employee strength of your Company was 7,212 as of 31st March 2023.

Six employees employed throughout the year and Nil employees employed for part of the year were in
receipt of remuneration of X 102 lakh or more per annum.

As required by the Sexual Harrasment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,
2013, the Company has formulated a Policy on Sexual Harrassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal). Following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and
disposed off during the year 2022-23:

» No. of complaints received: Nil

» No. of complaints disposed off: Nil

Your Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

In accordance with the provisions of Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the names and other particulars of employees are set out in the
annexure to the Directors’ Report. In terms of the Proviso to Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Directors’ Report is being sent excluding the aforesaid annexure. The annexure is available for
inspection at the Registered Office of your Company during the business hours on working days.

DEPOSITS

The Company did not accept any deposits from the public during the year. Also, there are no deposits due
and outstanding as on 31 March 2023.



CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The provisions pertaining to the Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption are not applicable to
your Company.

During the year, the Company had foreign exchange inflow of X Nil (Previous Year: X Nil) while the outgo
of foreign exchange was X 192.42 lakh (Previous Year: X 16.34 lakh).

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE,
2016:

There were no applications made or any proceedings pending in the name of the company under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year in respect of your Company.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION WHILE
AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

During the year under review, there has been no one-time settlement of loans taken from Banks and Financial
Institutions.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors, based on the representations received from the management, confirm in pursuance of
Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 that:

i) the Company has, in the preparation of the annual accounts, followed the applicable accounting
standards along with proper explanations relating to material departures, if any;

ii) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023 and of the profit of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 March 2023;

iii)  the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv)  the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

V) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

Vi) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.



ANNEXURES
Following statements/documents/reports are set out as Annexures to the Directors’ Report:

I. Secretarial Audit Report pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Annexure |)
Il. Annual Report on CSR Activities for the Financial year 2022-23 (Annexure Il)

Ill. Report on Corporate Governance for the Financial year 2022-23 (Annexure Ill)

IV. Code of Conduct declaration (Annexure V)
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paa PARIKH & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

FORM No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
P P
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,
The Members,
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited (hereinafter
called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company, to the extent the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the
Management and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and
Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic,
we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on March 31, 2023 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
made available to us and maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31,
2023 according to the provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;

Office: 111, 11th floor, Sai-Dwar CHS Ltd., SAB TV Lane, Opp. Laxmi Industrial Estate, Off Link Road,
Above Shabari Restaurant, Andheri (West), Mumbai-400 053

Tel.: 26301232/26301233 Email: cs@parikhassociates.com  Website: www.parikhassociates.com  Firm Unique Code: P1988MH009800



(v) The
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following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange

Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”), as amended from time to time:

(@)

(b)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and dealing with client
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,

(h)

2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

(vi) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company are:

L

II.

II1.
IV.

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and its circulars, Master Circulars, notifications
and its Directions as prescribed for NBFCs;

Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016;
Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 and the rules made thereunder;
IRDAI (Registration of Corporate Agents) Regulations, 2015

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to
Board and General Meetings.
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The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited with respect to Non-
Convertible Debentures issued by the Company on a private placement basis read with the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015(“SEBI LODR, 2015”).

During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, standards etc. mentioned above.

We report that the Company has spent an amount of ¥12.47 crores against the amount of
318.49 crores to be spent during the year towards Corporate Social Responsibility and has
transferred the balance amount of X 6.02 crores to the Unspent CSR Account, in accordance with
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors as per Companies Act, 2013. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

We report that as regards the compliance of Regulations 15 to 27 of SEBI LODR, 2015 made
applicable to the Company effective September 7, 2021 on a comply or explain basis until March
31, 2023, the Company has been providing the necessary explanation in the quarterly compliance

report on Corporate Governance submitted to the Stock Exchange under Regulation 27(2)(a) of
SEBI LODR, 2015.

Adequate notice was given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed
notes on Agenda were sent at least seven days in advance for Meetings other than those held at
shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

Decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously.
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate

with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
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We further report that during the audit period the Company had following events which had
bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards etc:

a)

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the company issued and allotted 3,750
(Three Thousand Seven Hundred fifty only) Secured Redeemable Non- Convertible Deep
Discount Debentures of ¥10 lakh (Rupees Ten lakh only) each in various tranches on
private placement where were duly listed on BSE Limited.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the company issued and allotted 600 (Six
Hundred only) Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Nifty Linked Debentures of X 10
lakh (Rupees Ten lakh only) each in various tranches on private placement where were
duly listed on BSE Limited.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the company issued and allotted 39,160
(Thirty Nine Thousand One Hundred Sixty only) Secured Redeemable Non- Convertible
Debentures (Including Zero Coupon Debentures- Redemption at Premium) of ¥ 10 lakh
(Rupees Ten lakh only) and 2,08,500 (Two Lakhs Eight Thousand Five Hundred only)
Secured Redeemable Non- Convertible Debentures of X 1 lakh (Rupees One lakh only)
each in various tranches on private placement where were duly listed on BSE Limited.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the company has redeemed various series
of Debentures in the nature of Non-convertible debentures, Zero Coupon Bonds and Nifty
Linked Debentures, aggregating to 35,189 (Thirty Five Thousand One Hundred Eighty
Nine Only) of % 10 lakh (Rupees Ten lakh only) each during the year and has complied
with the applicable laws.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the company issued and allotted 1,74,800
(One Lakh Seventy Four Thousand Eight Hundred only) Commercial Papers of X 5 lakh
(Rupees Five Lakh only) each in various tranches.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the company has redeemed 1,98,700 (One
lakh Ninety-Eight Thousand Seven Hundred only) Commercial Papers in various
tranches during the year and has complied with the applicable laws.

For Parikh & Associates
Company Secretaries

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 14, 2023 Signature:

Mitesh Dhabliwala

Partner

FCS No: 8331 CP No: 9511
PR No.: 1129/2021

UDIN: Due to technical issues on the ICSI UDIN Portal, the UDIN could not be generated.
This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure I and forms an integral
part of this Report.
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‘Annexure I

To,

The Members
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial records based
on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial
records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of Management. Our examination was limited
to the verification of procedure on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For Parikh & Associates
Company Secretaries

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 14, 2023 Signature:

Mitesh Dhabliwala

Partner

FCS No: 8331 CP No: 9511
PR No.: 1129/2021

UDIN: Due to technical issues on the ICSI UDIN Portal, the UDIN could not be generated.



ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES OF KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd. (Kotak Prime) recognises its responsibility to bring about a positive change in the lives of the communities through its
business operations and Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) initiatives.

Kotak Prime aspires to be a trusted partner and contributes significantly towards the economic, environmental and social growth of the nation. It is
also committed to contribute towards United Nation’s (UN) Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). Kotak Prime’s CSR policy sets out its vision,
mission, governance, and CSR focus areas to fulfill its inclusive growth agenda in India.

While ensuring that its CSR Policy, projects and programmes are compliant with the CSR mandate as specified under section 134, section 135 read
with schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 along with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to
time and in line with the Government of India’s notifications issued from time-to-time, Kotak Prime also endeavours to align its CSR projects and
programmes with government initiated social development programmes and interventions and last but not the least, United Nation’s Sustainable

Development Goals (SDGs).

Composition of CSR & ESG Committee:

SI. No. | Name of Director | Designation Nature of Number of meetings of| Number of
Directorship CSR Committee held | meetings of CSR
during the year Committee
attended  during
the year
1 |Ms. Akila Urankar [Independent Director, 4 4

Chairperson of the Committee

2 Mr. Vyomesh Managing Director 4 4
Kapasi

3  |Mr. D. Kannan** |Non- Executive Director 4 4




4  [Mr. Ravi Independent Director 3 3
Venkataraman*

5 [Mr. Chandra Independent Director - -
Shekhar Rajan***

*Inducted as a member of the Committee w.e.f October 20, 2022
** Resigned as a Director with effect from 31%t March 2023
*** Inducted as a member of the Committee w.e.f March 31, 2023

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the company.
https://www.primeloans.kotak.com/policies
4, Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.:
The Impact assessment for the following Corporate Social Responsibility Projects undertaken by the Company in FY 2020-21 and which were eligible for impact
assessment was conducted in FY 2022-23. The executive summary of the impact assessment reports pertaining to the CSR Projects for which Impact assessment was
conducted and completed is given below in the table. The entire set of Impact assessment reports are uploaded on KMPL’s website at the following link
https://www.primeloans.kotak.com/policies.htm
S. No Implementing organisation CSR Project Unique ID | Executive Summary of the Impact Assessment reports
KMPL's healthcare project implemented by Wockhardt foundation in FY2020-
21, supported 12 Mobile Medical Vans (MMVs) operating in the urban slums
of Ahmedabad and Jalandhar. Based on the impact assessment study
. conducted by Sattva Consulting between Aug-Nov’22, 86% respondents
1 Wockhardt Foundation 03 shared that the MMV was available to them once a week. 84% of those who
availed the service reported a reduction in their average monthly healthcare
expenditure and 95% were satisfied with the overall facilities provided by the
MMV.
KMPL's education and livelihood project implemented by Pratham Education
Foundation in FY2020-21, undertook a vocational training project in the
P Pratham Education Foundation 11 Automobile two wheeler and four wheeler, reaching 1,958 beneficiaries
across 2 states- Maharashtra and Andhra Pradesh. Based on the impact
assessment study conducted by Samhita Social Ventures between Sep-



https://www.primeloans.kotak.com/policies

Dec’22, indicates that 53% of respondents who completed the course were
given a placement offer with 33% of those offered accepting placements in
spite of lockdown restrictions and other COVID related anxieties. The study
indicates that the project has positively impacted students in terms of their
self-confidence, respect received at the workplace and say in family finances

Kotak Education Foundation
(Nirman)

50

KMPL's Education and Livelihood project implemented by Kotak Education
Foundation in FY 2020-21 supported infrastructure development in 5(five) KEF
partner schools to ensure quality and safe learning environment and retention
of children. These infrastructure improvements led to the creation of safe and
comfortable classrooms that protected schools from weather conditions such
as rain and heat and were child-friendly and engaging. The schools with these
improvements have seen increased safety, brighter and more engaging
classrooms, improved thermal insulation to prevent health concerns due to
leakage and dampness, and better ventilation and lighting to ensure the
physical and mental wellbeing of the children using these spaces

Muktangan Education Trust

17

KMPL’s Education and livelihood project implemented by Muktangan
Education Trust in FY2020-21, supported the education of students enrolled
at Dr Babasaheb Ambedkar, Mumbai Public School at Worli, Mumbai. Based
on the impact assessment study conducted by Soulace between Oct’22-
Feb’23, even during the pandemic a majority of students (61.5%) attended
their classroom sessions regularly and more than 85% were able to follow
the teachers instructions. A significant proportion of teachers (80%) had
smartphones that enabled them to conduct classroom sessions
uninterrupted. During the pandemic, parents were actively involved in their
child's studies by either attending classes in person or observing them from
home. Teachers provided support to parents and were available for

clarifications whenever needed, which was greatly appreciated.

5.

(a) Average net profit of the company as per as per sub-section (5) of section 135. - Rs. 924.83 crore

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135- Rs. 18.50 crore

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects, programmes, or activities of the previous financial years. — Not Applicable

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any — Rs. 0.002 crore




(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b) + (c) — (d)] -. Rs. 18.49 crore

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project) — Rs.12.46 crore
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads. — Rs. 0.33 crore
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable.- Rs.0.11  crore
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. — Rs. 12.90 crore
(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (Rs. crore.)

Total Amount| Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Spent for the Unspent CSR Account as per | Schedule VII as per second proviso to Section 135(5)
Financial Year. Section 135(6) of the Act. of the Act.
(Rs. crore) Date of Name of the
Amount. transfer. Fund Amount. Date of transfer.
12.90* 6.02 April 27, 2023 N.A N.A N.A

* includes administrative overhead cost of Rs. 0.33 crore and impact assessment expenditure of Rs.0. 11 crore

(f) Excess amount of set-off, if any

Sl. No. Particular Amount (Rs.
crore.)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 18.50
135(5) of the Act

(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 18.93%*

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0.43

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or Nil
activities of the previous financial years, if any

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 0.43**
[(iii)-(iv)]

*Includes unspent amount transferred to unspent CSR account , administrative overheads and impact assessment cost
** Including set off amount of previous financial years Rs. 0.002 crore, the overall surplus available for set off is Rs.0.43 crore

7.) Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three financial years



Sl Preceding Amount Balance Amount spentin | Amount transferred to any fund specified Amount remaining
No. | Financial transferred to Amount in the reporting under Schedule V11 as per section 135(6), if to be spent in
Year. Unspent CSR Unspent Financial Year any. succeeding
Account under CSR Account (in Rs. crore). financial years. (in
sub-section (6) of | under sub-section Name Rs. crore) *
section 135 (6) of of the i
(in Rs. crore) section 135 Fund | Amount (in Rs). [ Date of transfer.
(in Rs. crore)
1. 2020-21 5.19 1.09 2.32 Nil Nil Nil 1.09
2 2021-22 6.15 N.A 4.01 Nil Nil Nil 2.14

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:
Yes I No [

If Yes, enter the number of capital assets created /acquired

5*

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amount spent in the Financial Year:




A. Capital assets created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility Projects of FY 2022-23 :

Short
particulars of
the property or Pincode of Amount
asset(s) of CSR . . .
s. No lincluding the Date.of amount De:t?lls of entity/ I.\uthorlty/
complete property creation spent (Rs. beneficiary of the registered owner
address and or asset(s) crore)
location of the
property]
1 2 3 4 5 6
CSR
Registration Registered
Number, if Name address
applicable
(i) Laptops 754001, May 31, 2022, 0.10 | CSR00000258 Pratham 4th Floor, YB
(ii) Furniture, 492013,462042, August 25, 2022, Education Chavan
fittings and 416008, 414001, September 12 & 30 Foundation Centre,Nariman
fixtures 410221, 226202, 2022, November Point, Mumbai-
(i) Water 416008, 226202 & | 30, 2022, 400021
purifier, Air 492013 December 13, 28 &
conditioner and 312022, January 21
1 other electrical & 30,2023,

equipment

(iv) Bike , sound
system, CCTV
cameras,
televisions sets
and other
ancillaries

February 7, 10 & 20
2023, March 20,22,
24,27,29, 30 and
31, 2023




(i) 4 Force 411052 March 28 2023 0.77 | CSRO00000991 Impact Guru Office No- F1, 1st

Ambulance Foundation floor, Malhan One,

Vehicles (Model - Building no -1,

Force Delivery sunlight Colony 2,

Van-3350) Ashram, New Delhi

including -110014.

fabrication

(ii) Laptops and March 9, 2023 0.04

Tablets

(iii) Furniture and March 9, 2023 0.01

Fixtures

(iv) Medical March 10, 2023 0.01

Equipment

Total 0.83

Laptops and 390024 and March 27, 2023 0.01 | CSR00001634 Smile 161 B/4, 3" floor,

Printers 390018 Foundation Gulmohar House,
Yusuf Sarai
Community
Centre, New Delhi
-110049

Grand Total 0.94

* The capital assets created/acquired does not include the capital assets which are under work —in progress, and the number indicates implementing agency/
organisation-wise creation and acquisition of capital asset

B. Capital assets have been created or acquired through Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount of previous financial years spent in the Financial Year

(i) Capital assets created/ acquired from Unspent Corporate Social responsibility spent of financial year 2021-22 :




Short
particulars of

HETPYOT | it o g
. . the Date of Details of entity/ Authority/
S. No [including . amount . . .
property creation beneficiary of the registered owner
complete or asset(s) spent (Rs.
address and crore)
location of the
property]
1 2 3 4 5 6
CSR
Registration Registered
Number, if Name address
applicable
Cars and 754001, 445402, March 31, 2022 0.65 | CSRO0000258 Pratham 4th Floor, YB
accessories, 492013,462042, Education Chavan
printers , 416008, 509216, Foundation Ceptre,Narima'n
speakers and 414001, 226202, Point, Mumbai-
834004, 530008 400021
other
1 . ,
equipment’s
Printers, Furniture | 581103 August 30, 2022 0.01 | CSR00002215 Swami CA2, KIADB
and Fixtures and October 14, Vivekananda Industrial Housing
2 2022 Youth Area, Ring Road,
Movement Hebbal, Mysore -
570016
Grand Total 0.66




(iii) Capital assets created/ acquired from Unspent Corporate Social responsibility spent of financial year 2020-21

Short
particulars of

the property or Pincode of Amount
asset(s) of CSR . . .
. . the Date of Details of entity/ Authority/
S. No [including . amount .. .
property creation beneficiary of the registered owner
complete or asset(s) spent (Rs.
address and crore)
location of the
property]
1 2 3 4 5 6
CSR
Registration Registered
Number, if Name address
applicable
s
1 Laptops 400088 FY 2022-23 0.01 | CSR0O0001785 Kotak Education | 1st Floor, North
Foundation Side, Ujagar
Compound,

Sunder Baug,
Opp. Deonar Bus
Depot,Off Sion-
Trombay Road,
Deonar, Mumbai -
400 088

* The capital asset is procured for Project Excel which is collaborative CSR Project of Kotak Group companies and of Rs. 2.46 lakh of total capital
assets purchased under the CSR Project Excel, Rs. 0.51 lakh was allocated to the Company proportionately
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9.  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section 135(5) of the Act.
— Not Applicable

Managing Director Chairperson — Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR THE FY 2022-23

A) COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

SI | Name Dire | Capacity (i.e. DIN | Number | No.of | RemunerationX No.
N | of ctor | Executive/Non- of Board | other of
o | Director | Sinc | Executive/Chai meetings | Direct share
e rman/Promote H | Atte | orship | Salary | Sitti | Com S
r el | nde |s and ng missi | held
Nominee/Inde d |d other fee on in
pendent) compe and
nsatio conv
n ertibl
e
intru
ment
s
held
in the
Com
pany
1 | Mr. 13 Chairperson, 0000 |1 |13 8 - - - -

Uday Dec | Non-Executive- | 7467 | 4
Kotak 199 | Non

6 Independent
Director
2 | Mr. 09 Executive 0766 | 1 14 - 24,845 | - - -
Vyomes | Dec | Director, 5329 | 4 ,463
h Kapasi | 201 | Managing
6 Director
3 | Mr. 30 Non-Executive | 0001 |1 | 11 5 - 13,1 | 12,50, | -
Chandr | Mar | - Independent 7605 | 4 0,00 | 000
ashekha | 201 | Director 0
r Sathe |5
4 | Ms. 01 Non-Executive | 0022 |1 | 14 2 - 16,9 | 12,50, | -
Akila Apr | -Independent | 6541 | 4 0,00 | 000
Urankar | 201 | Director 0
8
5 | Mr. Ravi | 04 Non-Executive | 0030 |1 | 14 7 - 14,9 | 9375 | -
Venkatr | Aug | - Independent | 7328 | 4 0,00 | 00
aman 202 | Director 0
1
6 | Mr. 06 Executive 0929 |1 |11 - 18,672 | - - -
Shahruk | Sep | Director, 1062 | 4 ,526
h 202 | Whole-Time
Todiwal | 1 Director

a
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7 | Mr. 06 Non-Executive | 0929 |1 | 13 - - - - -
Amit Sep | —Non 4638 | 4
Mohan | 202 | Independent
1 Director
8 | Mr. 14 Non-Executive | 0012 |1 |1 6 - - - -
Chandr | Feb | - Independent | 6063
a 202 | Director
Shekhar | 3
Rajan

Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous financial year.

SI. Name of Director
No.

Capacity (i.e. Executive/
Non-Executive/ Chairman/
Promoter nominee/
Independent)

Nature of
change
(resignation,
appointment)

Effective date

1. | SHAHRUKH
TODIWALA

Executive Director, Whole-
Time Director

Appointment,
Regularization at
AGM held on
29/06/2022

6" September
2022

2. AMIT MOHAN

Non-Executive — Non
Independent Director

Appointment,
Regularization at
AGM held on
29/06/2022

6" September
2022

3. VYOMESH KAPASI

Executive Director,
Managing Director

Re-Appointment

9t December
2022

4. CHANDRA SHEKHAR

Non-Executive -

Appointment

14" February

EGM held on
10t March 2023

RAJAN Independent Director 2023
5. CHANDRA SHEKHAR | Non-Executive - Appointment, 14" February
RAJAN Independent Director regularization at | 2023

6. AKILA URANKAR

Non-Executive -
Independent Director

Appointment,
regularization at

15t April 2023 for
a period of five

KANNAN

Independent Director

EGM held on years
10" March 2023
7. DEVARAJAN Non-Executive — Non Resigned 31°*March 2023

1) Committees of the Board and their composition

i. The names of the committees of the Board: Audit Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Risk Management Committee of Board, Credit Committee of
Board and Committee of Board.
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ii. The following details of the committees of the Board:

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

SI. | Name of Director | Member of | Capacity (i.e. | Number of No. of
No. Committee | Executive/ Meetings of the shares
since Non- Committee held in
Executive/ Held Attended | the
Chairman/ Company
Promoter
nominee/
Independent)
1. | Mr. Ravi 4% Aug Independent | 16 16 -
Venkatraman 2021
2. | Mr. 30" March | Independent | 16 14 -
Chandrashekhar | 2015
Sathe
3. | Ms. Akila 20t Independent | 16 16 -
Urankar January
2021
4. | Mr.D. Kannan* 1%t Non- 16 15 -
December | Executive
2020
5. | Mr. Amit Mohan | 31*March | Non- - - -
2023 Executive
*Resigned as a Director with effect from 31° March 2023.
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
Sl. | Name of Director | Member of | Capacity (i.e. | Number of No. of
No. Committee | Executive/ Meetings of the shares
since Non- Committee held in
Executive/ Held Attended | the
Chairman/ Company
Promoter
nominee/
Independent)
1. | Mr. 30" March | Independent |5 5 -
Chandrashekhar | 2015
Sathe
2. | Mr. Ravi 20" Oct Independent | 2 2 -
Venkatraman 2022
3. | Ms. Akila 15™ June Independent | 5 5 -
Urankar 2021
4. | Mr.D. Kannan* 1t Non- 16 15 -
December | Executive
2020
5. | Mr. Uday Kotak | 17" April Non- - - -
2023 Executive

*Resigned as a Director with effect from 315 March 2023.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

SI. | Name of Member of | Capacity (i.e. | Number of No. of
No. | Director Committee | Executive/ Meetings of the shares
since Non- Committee held in
Executive/ Held Attended | the
Chairman/ Company
Promoter
nominee/
Independent)
1. | Mr. Vyomesh gth Executive 4 4 -
Kapasi December
2016
2. | Mr. Ravi 20" Oct Independent | 3 3 -
Venkatraman 2022
3. | Ms. Akila 16" July Independent | 4 4 -
Urankar 2018
4, Mr. D. Kannan* | 1% Non- 4 4 -
December | Executive
2020
5. Mr. Chandra 31 March | Independent | - - -
Shekhar Rajan 2023
*Resigned as a Director with effect from 31° March 2023.
STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:
Sl. | Name of Director | Member Capacity (i.e. | Number of No. of
No. of Executive/ Meetings of the shares
Committee | Non- Committee held in
since Executive/ Held Attended | the
Chairman/ Company
Promoter
nominee/
Independent)
1. | Mr. 16" March | Independent | - - -
Chandrashekhar | 2023
Sathe
2. | Ms. Akila 16" March | Independent | - - -
Urankar 2023
3. Mr. Vyomesh 16" March | Executive - - -
Kapasi 2023
4. Mr. Shahrukh 16" March | Executive - - -
Todiwala 2023
5. Mr. Chandra 16" March | Independent | - - -
Shekhar Rajan 2023
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE OF BOARD:

SI. | Name of Director | Member of | Capacity (i.e. | Number of No. of
No. Committee | Executive/ Meetings of the shares
since Non- Committee held in
Executive/ Held Attended | the
Chairman/ Company
Promoter
nominee/
Independent)
1. | Mr. 30" March | Independent | 4 3 -
Chandrashekhar | 2015
Sathe
2. | Mr. Ravi 23 Independent | 3 3 -
Venkatraman September
2022
3. Ms. Akila 31°*March | Independent | 4 4 -
Urankar 2021
4, Mr. D. Kannan* 1%t Non- 4 3 -
December | Executive
2020
5. Mr. Vyomesh 31t March | Executive - - -
Kapasi 2023
*Resigned as a Director with effect from 31° March 2023.
CREDIT COMMITTEE OF BOARD:
SI. | Name of Member of | Capacity (i.e. | Number of No. of
No. | Director Committee | Executive/ Meetings of the shares
since Non- Committee held in
Executive/ Held Attended | the
Chairman/ Company
Promoter
nominee/
Independent)
1. | Mr. Ravi 31**March | Independent | - - -
Venkatraman 2023
2. Mr. D. Kannan* | 1¢ Non- 16 16 -
December | Executive
2020
3. | Mr.Vyomesh 31 March | Executive 16 16 -
Kapasi 2021
4. | Mr. Amit Mohan | 6% Non- 16 16
September | Executive
2021

*Resigned as a Director with effect from 31° March 2023.
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COMMITTEE OF BOARD:
SI. | Name of Member of | Capacity (i.e. | Number of No. of
No. | Director Committee | Executive/ Meetings of the shares
since Non- Committee held in
Executive/ Held Attended | the
Chairman/ Company
Promoter
nominee/
Independent)
1. Mr. D. Kannan* | 1% Non- 1 1 -
December | Executive
2020
2. | Mr. Vyomesh 6t Executive 1 1 -
Kapasi December
2016
3. | Mr. Amit Mohan | 6% Non- 1 1 -
September | Executive
2021
4, Mr. Shahrukh 31°*March | Executive - - -
Todiwala 2023

*Resigned as a Director with effect from 31° March 2023.

2) General Body Meetings:

The date, place and special resolutions passed at the General Body meetings:

Sl.

No.

Type of Meeting
(Annual/ Extra-
Ordinary)

Date and Place

Special Resolutions passed

1. Extra-Ordinary

30™ April 2022 and
Held through Video
conferencing (Zoom)

Issuance of Debentures

2. Extra-Ordinary

10" March 2023 and
held at Registered
office address

Re-appointment of Ms. Akila
Urankar (DIN: 00026541) as an
Independent Director of the
company for a period of five years,
with effect from 1st April 2023 up to
31st March 2028 (both days
inclusive)

3) Details of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013:

The Company has complied to the requirements of Companies Act, 2013.

4) Details of penalties and strictures:
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Date upto Dela
SEBI LODR Submission | Due | Submission | which fine | . 4 . Total
. Quarter/FY ) in Fine | GST .
Regulations Status Date | Date is fine
days
calculated
28-
06- 01-07-
53(2) FY 2021-22 | Delayed 2022 | 01-07-2022 | 2022 3 6000 | 1080 | 7080

BSE has levied below fine for a purported delayed submission in June 2022. After considering our
submission, BSE officials have said orally that the Company should make the payment of fine amount
of Rs.7,080/- including GST, then they shall take it to their waiver committee for waiver. Hence
payment of the same is being made in January 2023.

Separately, there are some fines imposed on the company, BSE has waived those fines.

B) BREACH OF COVENANT

All instances of breach of covenant of loan availed or debt securities issued - NIL




CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct which are applicable to the Board of Directors and Senior
Management Personnel, respectively.

The Code of Conduct have been posted on the website of the Company viz, url:
https://www.primeloans.kotak.com/viewDocument.htm?id=5673

In accordance with Schedule V (D) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, | hereby confirm that all the Directors and the Senior
Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance to the Code of Conduct during their
association with the company during the financial year 2022-23.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Vyomesh Kapasi
Managing Director
Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 14, 2023
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Members of Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kolak Mahindra Prime Limited
{"the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of
Profit and lLoss {including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and
the Statement of Changes in Fquity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act’} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, the relevant circulars, guidelines
and directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) from time to time {'RBI Guidelines’)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2023, and its profit {including other comprehensive income), its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that dale,

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
section T43(10) of the Act, Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {'ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our andit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We belicve that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

4

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statemenis as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matter (Continned)

5. We have determined the matter described below 1o be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report,

Key Audit Matter | How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Impairment of loans and advances to customers

disclosures)

(Refer Note 2(G) for significant accouniing policics and Note 43 (E)(if) for credit risk:

As at 31 March 2023, the Company has
reported gross loan assefs of ¥ 27,26,811
lakhs against which an impairment loss of
i T 52,673 lakhs has been recorded. The
Company recognized impalrment
provision for Joan assets based on the
Expected Credit Loss (“ECL") approach

and assumptions which could have a
material impact on reported profils,
Significant management judgement and
assumptions involved in measuring ECL is
required with respect to;

» ensuring completeness and accuracy of
. the data used to create assumptionin the
model.

» delermining the criteria for a significant
increase in credit risk.

» factoring in  future £CONOMIc
assumptions  techniques used to
determine probability of default, loss
given default and exposure at default.

These parameters are derived from the
Company’s internaily developed statistical
models and other hisiorical data,

During the previous years, RBI announced

which were implemented by the Company
such as “COVID 19 Regulatory Package -
Asset Classification and Provisioning”
announced by the RBl on 17 April 2020 and
RBI circular on “Asset Classification and
Income Recognition following the expiry of

management judgement and estimates and °
the use of different modelling techniques

various relief measures for the bhorrowers !

Our

audit focused on  assessing the

appropriateness of management’s judgment and
estimates used in the impairment analysis
through procedures that included, but were not
limited to, the following:

Obtained an understanding of the modelling

laid down under ‘Ind AS 109 - Financial techniques adopted by the Company
Instruments’. including the key inputs and assumptions;
The estimation of ECL on financial

nstruments involves significant | 4 (Considered  the Company's accounting

policics for estimation of expected credit loss
on loans and assessing compliance with the
policies in {erms of Ind AS109;

Understanding management’s systems and
controls  implemented in  relation  to
impairment allowance process.

Tested the design and  operating
effectiveness  of  key controls  over
completeness and accuracy of the key inputs
and assumplions considered for calculation,
recording, monitoring of the impairment
loss recognized and staging of assets.
Evaluated the appropriateness of the
Company’s determination of Significant
Increase in Credit Risk (“SICR") in
accordance with the applicable accounting
standard and the basis for classification of
various c¢xposures info various stages.
Further, assessed the critical assumptions
and input data used in the estimation of
expected credit loss models [or specific key
credit risk parameters, the
movement logic between stages, Exposure
at default (EATD), probability of default (PD)
or loss given default (LGD);

such as

g

‘:U ."\'“C{J/
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Covid-19 regulatory package” dated 07

April 2021 {collectively referred to as “the » Evaluated the reports and working for
RBI ¢irculars’), and “Resolution Framework the  methodology used in the
for COVID-19 related Stress” (the computatton of Through The Cycle PD,
‘Resolution Framework’) dated on 6 August | Point In Time PD and LGD, among
2020 and 4 June 2021, which have been others;

collectively considered by the management

in  identification, classification  and » Performed tes! of details over calculation
| provisioning of loan assets for impairment. of ECL, in relation to the completeness
! and accuracy of the data;
| Disclosure

The disclosures regarding the Company’s o  Obtained written representations from
application of Ind AS 109 are key to management and those charged with
explaining the key judgements and material governance on whether they believe

inputs to the FCL results. Further,
disclosures to be provided as per RBI
circulars with regards to non-performing
assets and provisions is also an area of
focus.

sigmificant  assumptions  used in
calculation of expected credit losses are
reasonable;

» Assessed the appropriateness and
adeguacy of the related presentation and
disclosures of Note 43(E) “Financial risk
ranagement” disclosed  in  the
accompanying  financial statements in
accordance  with  the  applicable
accounting standards and related RBI
circulars and Resolution Framework.

Considering the significance of the above
matter to the overall financial statements
and extent of management’s estimates ahd
judgements  involved, it  required
significant auditor attention. Accordingly,
we have identified this as a key audil
matter.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

6. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but dees not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, The Annual Report is expected to
be macle available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thercon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is malerially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 1o be matertally misstated,

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to thosc charged with governance and
determing the actions under the applicable laws and regulations.
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Baard of Director’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

7.

‘The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(3) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial
statetnents that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act, RBI Guidelines and other
accounting principles gencrally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irrcgularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability Lo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, malters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the inancial Statements

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as

a whole are free from malerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is nota guaraniec that an audit conducled in accordance with Standards on Audiing will
always deteet a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic dectsions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements,

11. Aspartof an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(1.0)

of the Act we excrcise professional judgmeni and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

+ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
cblain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulling from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

12,

13.

14.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act
we are also responsible for expressing cur opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system with reference to the financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls;

» Lvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors;

» Conclude on the appropriatencss of Board of Directors and management’s usc of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company o cease
to continue as a going concern;

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and conlent of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of the
Company to express an opinion on the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other maiters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

13,

As required by scction 19716} of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company
has paid remuneralion to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of
and Jimits laid down under sectiorn 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

. ¥
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Contined)

16. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 {"the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure

I, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 1o the extent
applicable.

17. Further to our comments in Annexure [, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our
audit, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)

b}

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the
accompanying financial statements;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

1t our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference o financial
statements of the Company as on 31 March 2023 and the operating cffectiveness of such
conlrols, refer to our scparate Report in Annexure I wherein we have expressed an
unmodified epinion; and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given {o us:

i, the Company, as detailed in note 36 to the financial statements, has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2023;

ii. the Company, as detailed in note 20 to the financial statements, has made provision

as at 31 March 2023, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,

for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements {Continued)

v,

vi.

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in note-47 to the f{inancial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by ihe Company to or in any person or entity,
including foreign entities {"the intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("the Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. 'The managenient has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in note 47 to the financial statements, no funds have been
recetved by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (‘the Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of
the funding Party {'Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or
the kike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures petformed as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come 1o our attention that causes us
to believe that the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above
contain any material misstatermncent.

The dividend declared and paid during the year ended 31 March 2023 by the
Company is in compliance with section 123 of the Act.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies
which use accounting soflware for maintaining their books of account, to use such
an accounting software which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the
financial year beginning on 1 April 2023 and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11{g)
of Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) is not applicable for
the current financial year.

For M M Nissim & Co LLP For Mukund M. Chitale & Co
Chartered Accountants Chaiitered Accountants
Registntlon No: 107122W/W100672 Firm Registration No: 106655W ...
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Annexure I referred to in Paragraph 17 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date
to the members of Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we report that:

i, a (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and
right of use assets including quantitative details and situation of these assets,

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible asscts.

4
b. As per information and explanation given to us and as verified by us, the
property, plant and equipment and right of use assets have been physically verified
by the management during the vear and no material discrepancies wete noticed on
such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification adopted by the
Company, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets.

c. The titlc deeds of all the immovable propertics held by the Company (other
than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lcasc agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company.

d. 'The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Right
of Usc assets or intangible assets during the year.

e. According to information and explanations given to us and as verified by us,
noe proceedings have been initialed or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i){e) of the
Order is not applicable ta the Company.

ii. a The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(ii){a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b, According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year,
the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs, 5 crore, in
aggregate from banks on the basis of sccurity of current assels. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanalions given to us, the quarterly
returns/slatements filed by the Company with such banks and financial institutions
are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the
respective quarters and no material discrepancies have been observed.

iii. a. The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company and its principal business
is to give loans, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not

applic.able to the Company. s
e PN
\
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Annexure I to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Kotak
Mahindra Prime Limited on the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

b. The investments made and terms and conditions of the grant of all leans are,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. The Company has not granted
advances in the nature of loans and has not provided any guarantee and also not given
security to any party,

C The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC'), registered
under provisions of the Rescrve Bank of India Act, 1934 and rules made thereunder
and is regulated by various regulations, circulars and norms issued by the Reserve
Bank of India including Master Circular - Prudential norms on Income Recognition,
Asset Classification and Provisioning pertaining to Advances. In respect of loans
granted by the Company, we report that the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments/receipts of principal and
interest are regular except as disclosed in note 43 (E)(ii}(c}(iv) of the financial statement
and reproduced below:

Outstanding as on 31 March 2023 for overdue loans

Particulars - Total amount | No. of
Days past due outstanding | Cases
{in lakhs)

1-30 days 77,630 | 23,781

31-60 days 31,788 | 14,917

61-90 days 10,622 6,340

More than 90 53,541 22,136

days

Total 173581 67174
d. According to the information and explanations given to us, the total amount
which is overdue for more than 90 days in respect of loans given in course of the
business of the Company aggregates to Rs. 53,541 Jakhs as at 31 March 2023 in respect

of 22,136 number of loans. Further, reasonable steps as per the policies and procedures
of the Company have been taken for recovery of such principal and interest amounts
overdue,

e The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company, and its principal business
is to give loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{iii)(e) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

f. The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans which
arc repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.
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Annexure | to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Kotak
Mahindra Prime Limited on the financial statements {or the year ended 31 March 2023

iv.  In our opinion, and according to the informalion and explanations given Lo us, the
Company has not granted any loan or provided any guarantee or security in
connection with any loan taken by parly covered under Section 185 of the Act. Further,
the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of
the foans or investiments made, or guarantees or security provided by it, to the extent
applicable.

v. ‘'The provisions of the scetions 73 to 76 and any other relevant provisions of the Act
and the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended), are not
applicable to the Company being an non-banking financial company registered with
the Reserve Bank of India ("the RBI'), and also the Company has not accepted any
deposits from public or there is no amount which has been considered as deemed
deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi.  The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-
section {1} of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/business
activity. Accordingly, reporting under ctause 3{vi} of the Order is not applicable.

vil,  a, In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund,
cemployces’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, sexvice tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added fax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company. Further,
no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outslanding at the year-end
for a periad of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
slalutory dues referred in sub-clause (a} which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorilies on account of any dispuic except for the following;

Name of the |Nature of |Gross | Amount paid (Period to |Forum where
statute dues Amount under Protest which the |disputeis
{Rs. in lakhs) {Rs.inlakhs} jamount pending
| relates
Income tax  jIncome 23256 -TAY 2013-14 [Commissioner of
Act, 1961 tax Income {ax
{Appcals)
Income tax  [Income 591.61 -iAY 201819 iComanissioner of
Act, 1961 tax Income tax
{Appeals)
Income lax  lIncome 166.54 -TAY 2020-21 iCommissioner of
Act, 1961 tax Tncome tax
{Appeals)
The Delht  Value (.69 -JAY 2009-  |Special Objection
Value Added 1w Hearing,
Added Tax Authority - Delhi
VAT Department
\'\ \-'“ru
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Chartered Accounlants Chartered Accountanis

Annexure | to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Kotak
Mahindra Prime Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Tax Rules, [

2005

Maharashtra |Value 2.02 0.20 JAY 2013-  |Deputy

Value Added 14 Commissioner of
Added Tax, [Tax Sales Tax -

2002 _ Maharashtra
Maharashtra [Value 4.32 043 {AY 2014~ |Deputy

Valuao Added . 15 Commissioncr of
Added Tax, |Tax ' Sales Tax -

2002 Maharashtra
Maharashtra|Value 70.39 430 [AY 2015~ |Joint

Value Added 16 Commisstoner of
Added Tax, [Fax Sales Tax -

2002 Maharashtra
Maharashtra (Value _ 108.97 6.66 (AY 2016-  JJoint

Value Added 17 Commissioner of
Added Tax, |Tax Sales Tax -

2002 Maharashtra
Maharashtra |Vaiue 20.47 2.041AY 2017-  |Joint

Value Added 18 Commissioner of
Added Tax, |Tax Sales Tax -

2002 . Maharashtra

viii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and as verified by us, no
transactions were surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been recorded
in the books of accounts.

ix. a According to the information and explanations given o us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest
thercon to any lender.

b, According to the information and explanations given o us including
representation received from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our
audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter
by any bank or financial institution or other lender,

c. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given e us,
money raised by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were
obtained, though idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediatc
utilisation have been invested in readily realisable liquid investments,

d. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds
raised by the Company on short term basis have not been utiliscd for long term
purposes. . '
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Annexure | to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Kotak
Mahindra Prime Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

e. The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture and
hence reporting under clause {ix){e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

f. ‘The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or juoint venture and
hence reporting under clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

X, o The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer {(including debt insiruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(x}(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential alletment or
privale placement of shares or fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures.
Accordingly, Clausc 3(x){b) of the order is not applicable.

xl.  a Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the
truc and fair view of the financial statements and according to the information and
explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company and
no material fraud on the Company except for misappropriation of assets of the
Company by its employees or by the customers of the Company identified by the
management during the year, involving amounts aggregating to Rs. 145.76 lakhs as
mentioned in Note 48.5 of the accompanying financial statements has been noticed or
reparted during the year,

b. To the best of our knowledge, and accordingly to the information and
explanations provided to us, during the year and upto the date of this report, no report
under sub-seclion 143 (12) of the Act has been filed in Form AIDT-4 as preseribed under
rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

. According to the information and explanations given to us including the
representation made to us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-
blower complaints received by the Company duting the year,

xii,  The Company is nota Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to
it. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xiii,  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance
with seclions 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable. Further, the details of such
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required
under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Parly Disclosures specified in
Compantes (Indian Accounting Slandards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133
of the Act.

xiv.  a. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has an internal audit system as required under section 138 of the Act
which is commensurale with the sive and nature of its business.
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even cate to the members of Kotak
Mahindra Prime Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

b, We have considered, the intexnal audit reports for the year under audit, issued
to the Company during the year and til] date of our audit report.

xv.  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
them and accordingly, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

xvi.  a. The Company 1s required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 and such registration has been obtained by the Company,

b, During the year, the Company has not conducted any Neon-Banking Financial
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration {CoR) from the Reserve Bank of
India (RBD) as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Further, Company has not
conducted any Housing Finance activities and is not required to obtain CoR for such
activities from the RBL

C. According to the information and expianations given to us, the Company is not
a Core Investment Company {CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the RBI.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xvi)(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

d. Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by
the management of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016) has no CICs which are registered with the
Reserve Bank of India.

xvil,  The Company has notincurred any cash loss in the current as well as the immediately
preceding financial year,

xviil,  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the
year.

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management, we
are of the opinion that ne material unceriainty exists as on the daie of the audit report
that Company is capable of meeling its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, We,
however, state that this is not an assurance ag to the future viability of the company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
company as and when they fall due,

h

-
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Annexure I to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Kotak
Mahindra Prime Limited on the financtal statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

XX.  a There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
on other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII
to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section
135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx}(a} of the Order is not
applicable for the year.

b In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) amount as at the end of the financial year, to a Special
account within a period of 30 days from the end of the financial year in compliance
with the provision of section 135(6) of the Act. '

For M M Nissim & Co LLP For Mukund M, Chitale & Co

Charlered Accoustants Chartered Accountants

FirmyRegistration No: 107122W/W100672  Firm Registration No: 106655W
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Annexure I1 to the Independent Auditer’s Report of even date to the members of Kotak Mahindra
Prime Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financizl controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act)

(Referred to in paragraph 17{f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement's
section of our report of even date}

1

In conjunction with our audit of the financial siatements of Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited
{‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal
financial controls with relerence to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Board of Dircctor’s Responsibilities for Internal Financial Confrols

2

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
{'the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (1CAF). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act,

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to

Financial statements

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAT prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with yeference to
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal {inancial controls with reference to financial statements
includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements.
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Annexure II to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Kotak
Mahindra Prime Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Meaning of Tuternal Financial Controels with Reference to Financiai statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the refiability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, A company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements include those policies and procedures that {1} pertain o the maintenance
of records that, m reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that fransactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of f{inancial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material

effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Infernal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal tinancial controls with reference to
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal (inancial controls
with reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2023, based on the internal financial conlrols with reference to financial staternents
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control

stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Yor M M Nissim & Co LLP For Mulkund M, Chitale & Co
Chartered Accountanis Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 107122W/W100672 Firm Registration No: 106655W
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KOTAK MAHINDAA PRIME LINMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023
{88 comounts In INR fokhis, anless otherwise stafed)

R Nota . Asat i Asat T
G o Pantiedlars No, | ‘March31,3023 © ] March 33,2022
ASSETS
Financlai assets
Cashand cash equivalents 4 40,198,165 22,606.11
Bank batance other than cash and cash equivalents 5 a0.83 44.R2
Derivative financial instzuments K252 -
Receivables
Trade receivables 6 - 5.47
Laans 7 26,74,138.24 73,09,264.01
Investments 8 6,59,447.39 6,51,908.40
Other financial assets 9 1,752.95 1,307.11
Sub total 33,76,810.09 29,85,196.92
Norni-financix assets
Current tax assets (Net) 34e) 11,1R3.28 4,405.27
Deferred tax assels {Net) 34id} 11,985.54 15,141.32
Investmeant property 240835 2,053,710
Proporly, plant and equipment hii| 3,257.17 1,760.36
Capital wark-in-progress 10{a) 220083 144.60
Intangtble assets upder development 11 {a} 35.37 25.05
Other intangible assats 11{b} 253.68 30248
Cther non -fBnancial assets 12 5,241.58 3,651.34
Sub total 34,165,943 27,484,52
Total Assets 34,19,775.93 30,12,681.44
LIABILETIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
financial Habilities
Derivatives financial Instruments 13 - 3,049.63
Fayulies
Trade payables 14
{i} total outstending dues of micre enterprises and 1b0.05 -
small enlerprises
{f) totat outstanding dues of creditors other than 52,452.77 57,637.24
micro enterprises 2ad small enterprises
Debi securities 15 15,17,434.58 12,00,416.48
Borrowings {other than debi securities} 16 7,32,116.06 7,29,103.98
Deposiis 7 177.49 145.01
Subordinated liabiities 18 14,376.15 14,557 .84
Other financial liabilithes 15 3,060.13 10,924.08
Sub total 23,.24,7717.21 20,23,834.256 |
Mon-dinanchal liabilities
Current tax Habilitles [Net) Hie) 4,292.0% 5,811,431
Erovisions pli] g2z Hi1.96
Deferred tax labilities {Net) 34id} 50,047.34 48,990.13
Bther non-financial liabiltles 23 5,962.69 148739
Suh tetal 62,074.83 58,100.21
EQUITY
Equlty share capital 27 34552 345.52
Other eruity 23 1,23,574.37 9,24,396.75
Suh total 10,23,923.89 4,24,746.27
Total Lizbllities and Equity 44,10,775.93 30,12581.44

The abova balance sheat should be read In conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the Balence sheet referrad to in our report of even date

for M M Nissim & Co LLP for Mukund M, Chltale & Co
Chartered Accountants ) Chartered Accountants

Firm fezistration No.: 107122W/W1680672° - Firm Registration §0.: 106655W

For and on pehalf of the Board of Diractors -

¥ LR Arigsnr |
Sanjay Khemani Saurabh Chitale vyomesh-Kaphsi
partner Partrer Managing Director
Mermbership No; 044577 Mumborship No: 111383 BIN: 07665322_.'/”' DIM: 09291062

Bharat Thakkar " Wiran Tanguduy
Chiet Financlal Cfficer  Company Secretary
M No: 048525 M Na: $7932

Date and Place: May 16, 2023, Mumbai




KOTAK WAH INDRA PRIME LI MITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MANCH 31, 2023
(Al umounts in INR fokhs, unless otherylse siated)

. | [ T d - For T :
- Pariisulars Hotg For the year ended I l,h_a year ended -
. Ho. March 34, 2023 March 31, 2022
REVENUE FROM CPERATIONS
W linterest Inceme on finarclal Inst 15 m, dar 24
- twroiilsed Cosl 2,56,406,17 2,22.460.32
- Fair Vatue Through Profit and Loss Account - -
- Falf ¥alue Through Other Comprehensive Income 2460715 19,534.44
[l |Obeldend Incame 1.215.00 1,364.00
{ll | Rental lncoms 568 14 597,29
(W) |Feas and commlssion Income 15 14,449,734 10,877.24
(W} {Het z4In on fir value changes iB 245712 L.318.08
0 | Total revenue from operallons 2,99,764 32 2,60,751.37
{it]  |Ctber Income 27 {347.85) 151115
[y [Tota! Incumma il + ) 295,446,457 20256252
EXPENSES
fil |Finance cosls 2B 1,18 /i3 BB 59,030.88
(il IMet [255 on fair value changes 29 - 590,58
{tv] [Impaskrment on floancial instrurmends 30 {4,671.72) 110,855.99)
W) |Ewmplevee benelils Bxpenses 31 79,226.78 21,940.40
Wi} | Ceepreclation and amortisation 32 126955 78376
1] {Cther expenses a5 27822 05 21,155 B8
VY 1Total enpenses 17233054 1,32,657.5L
V1 | Proflt before tax (il - V) 1,27,075.83 1,15,905.01
W1} |Tan expense 14
[1) Current tax 2B,67E.00 28,265.42
12} Deferred tax 3,644 85 4.163.19
Todal tak expense 32,3285 32,434,561
llL | Profit for the year (V-AH) 94,753.08 87.470.40 |
{¥Ill} |Other comprehensive Income
[A} @) Itema that will nat be ractassilted ta proflt or loss
- Chankes n revalualion surglus
- Rameasurements of the deflned benefit plan: (52 80y 59,53
- Equity Instrument s through OLhar Comprehensive Ineeme 9495 82 17,574,323
Sub-tonal va3r.ol 17,633.85
{1y sncume tax relating Lo ftems that will not be reclassiflad to proflt or doss
- Rameasuremenls of the dellned benefit [lans 15,81 {14.98)
- Equily Instruments through Othar Comprehensiva Inecme 1,957,320 3770440
Total {4} 7.495.63 13,E44 46
1B} (1§ items that will be reglassifled to profitor luss
- Cubt instrumants through Cther Comprehensive income | {1,880,37) 147,19
Sub tokai f1,880,37), 147,18
{1} ncoma tax relaling to ltlams that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Dubt Instrurnants through Other Comprehensiva Incame 47335 £7.38
Tolal (8] (1,407,132} 255,81
Other comprehansive incame (& + B) ] 6,068,51 14,104 27
11X [Tote) comgrehensive ncoma for the year [VHVII) 1,00,841,59 1,11,574.67
iX) |Exenings per equity share s
Earnings per shara - Baslke 2,7109% i 78B.69
Eamings per share . Dluted 271085 1.788.69

Ther nbinve statement of profit and loss should be rean In conjunctlan with the accompanying noies.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss raferred Lo In aur report of aven date
For M M Nissim & Ca1lP For Mukund M. Chital= B Co
Chartered Atcountants " Charterad Actauntants

Firm Reglsiratlon No.: 2071220 /WIi00672

Vot

Sanfay Khemani
Partnar
fMembarship No: 044577

Fartrar
iermbership No: 111383

Date and Place: May 16, 2023, Mumbai

Flrm Repistrallan No.: 1066550

Saurabh Chirale R

For and on behall of the Board of Clreciors

P T :
}M“"“Z&g‘u f:ﬁglf’;(}/\ﬁ
Vyurrestricanfii T
Managing Dirgclor .
DiN: 07665275

Blias ot Thakkar
Civlaf Financlal Olficer

M N 048515

.
il
PRI
Kiran Tangudu
Company Secratary
M Ho; F7932
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KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLGWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 11, 2023
fAN omaunts in INR fokhs, ualess utherwise stoted)

“partleulars .

- %or the yoar ended |

Mateh 31,2089 -

‘For the year endod .
© March 31, 2021

Cash flow fram operailng aclluitl.us
Proilt before tax

Adjustments ta reconcle profit before tax to net cosh generated from / fused in)

operuting octivitles

Deprectation and amortizatian expense

Interest Incame

Interest expernses

Net galn on fair value changes

MTM on Dervative and ather financlal assets

Cividend an Yovestments

Profit on sale of Investments

Proflt on sale of property, plant and equlpment
Provision for centingzencles no longer required
Share-based payments

Froviston for emelayee banellts - gratudty

Pravision for employee benafits - compensated absences
Impalrment loss allowance

Loans and advances, trade and other receivable weltten off
Unclaimad sundry creditors wrltten back

Cash Inflcw from Interest received

Dlvidend on Investments

Cash sutfiow towards interest patd

Operating profit befare werking capital changes

Waorking capitol ndlustments

{increase] { decrease In foans

{Inzrease) f decrease in Investments

lincrease) / decrease in other financial assets
Hincrease] f decreasa in uther non-financial assets
nerease / {decrease) in trade payables

Increase f (decrease] in other financksl labilities
Increase f {decreasa) In provisicns

Increase [ {decreasa} In other nen-financial llabilities

Cash generated fram / [used in) operations
Incomna tay nakd | net}
Met cash generated from / (used in} operating activitles

Cash flow from Investing activities

Purchase of propeny, plant and egquipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plang and equipment
Purchase of investments

Net #arcates & Saie of MF/IPD

Praceeds from sale of investments

Net cash generated fram Investing aclivitles

Cash flow from financing activitles

lssue ol debentures

Radsmptien of debeniures

Bank [pans avalied

Repayment of bank |oans

Other borrowing s avatled

Repayment of other horrowings

Increase / (decrease} In derivative financial Instrurments

Dividend pald {inctuding dividend distributlon tax) on equity shares
Paymant of lease kabiilty

Net cash {used [n) f generated fram financlog activities

Net Increase / {decrease! In cash and cash equivalenis
Cash and cash equivalents 2t the beglnning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {seler note a helow)

{2.05,285 55]

12707593 1,29,905.01
1,269.55 78376
{2,81,015 .32} [2,42,294.77)
148,723 58 48,8C8.23
{1,296.54} 15,518 08]
3,274,35 U552
13,215.00) (1,364.00)
[1.759.88} {1,857 57
132.13) [18.45}
|4o7.c0) [587.53)
27.81 15.46
240,68 176.55
139547} 3289
[4,788,67) {12,923 40}
11,933.37 12,972.36
248,44 35,09
{27,664.60) [23,447.34)
2,/1,832,42 24698116
1,215.00 1,364.00
10972504 {1,15374. 14}
1,63,322.38 1,32,970.52
13,42,911,80) [2,23,596.48)
165,02 172,970.14)
1435 57} 2,465.40
[1.559.88) [449.73}
15,276.27) 15,175,058
742571 3s12.21
522,57 527.96
16,05 (89,42}
[3,41,943,33} {2,71,405.16)

{1,59,881,87]

(37,855.36) {26,268.19}
[2,44,240,91) 11,86,150.16
[1,916.58) [893.93]
1B2.45 27.01
{364,421 27} [4,74,41%.921
1,29084 6,143.53
3,15,134.581 4,87,953.42
110,120,73) 24,841.11
6.44,777.65 6,21,245.95
{3,53,813,37) [5,45,087 95}
§,08,142.55 16,37, 800,00
{7,76,534,00} {16,65,650.00]
8,65,123.65 20,53,170.93
[16,00,500.00) [19,18,500.00)
{4,032.16] 12,279.94]
{1,742.60) 11,358.08}
| (52521 {437,621
2,81,887 51 1,77,966.29
17,525.407 1E,657.23
22,667 .21 5,029.98
40,213.08 22,6B7.21
AT

s




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
{AR amoinis In INR fakRs, unless oiherwilse stated)

e S For the year ended |; For the year ended
o Perticlare maret 31, 2023 March 38, 622 |
Notey:
@, Recondllistian of cash and cash eguivalents with the balance sheet
Cash and cash wquivalents as par bafance sheat {refer note 4}
Cash on hand 684,42 576.37
Bajances with benks I cufrant account 38,532.95 21,22858
Chegues, drafts on hand 995,64 #8228
[ess: fmpalrment loss allowarce {14.92} {21104}
Balances with banks In deposits imare than 3 rroatn: maturty but iess than 12 manths o - .
Cash and cash cqulvalents as per batante sheei* 40,198,316 22,£66.11

* Cash and cash eguivalents shown in Balance Sheel s net of ECL provislon of Rs 14,92
fakhs 25 3t March 31, 2023, #s 21,10 lakhs as at March 33, 2022

. The above Cash flow statement has baen prepared under the "indlrect Method' as set out in ind AS 7 - ‘Cash Flow Statements'.

¢. Change In Hakilittes artsing from financing actlvittes

Particulars

Cash fiows

* Non-cash chanpes Inchides Lhe effect of reconding financlal labllity at 2mortized cost, amorlization of transactlon costs ete.

The above statement of cash Hows should be read tn conjuncilon with the accempanylng notes.

This I tne Cash Flaw Stztement referred ta ln our repert of even date

For b W Nissim & Co LLP
Chartgred Atcauntants
FlrmfRegistration io .+ 107122W/W10067

For Mukund M. Chitale & <o
Chartered Arcountants
- Flem Peglstration No. 106E55W

5 an]ay Khemanl
Partnar
Membership No: 044577

Sauraith Chvitale
Parirer
~Mzmbership No: 111383

Date and Place: May 16, 2023, Mumhal

for and on berhalf of the Board of Directors

)
Managirg Dlrette
DiN: Q563325

;i “:Yr'-_,'- EA

%3
“Bharat Thakiar

Chief Flnancial Officer
M No: D&B525

As at Nop-cash As at
. _Aprdl3 2022 thanges* March 31,223
Debt securities 12,09,3156.48 2,90,9e4.28 1405380 15,1 /,434.56
Borrowings lother than debt securltias) 7,29,103.97 1.374.11 1,437.58 73211808
Subntdinated Hahiitles 13,557.83 {4,341.91) _ B3y 1437615
Jot lizbilities fram financing aclivities 19,5€ 078,28 2 88,196,458 17,652.01 22,63,926.77
Particulars As at Cash flows HNon-cash As at
aprfl1, 2021 thanges* Margh 31, 2022
Debt securities 11,23,754.73 75,261.00 10,4Q0.75 12,09,416.48
Borrowings fother than debt securitias} 6,20,309.31 1,34,380.92 {25,586.25) F.29,101.97
[ Subordinated fiahlities 47457.61 |27, 560.00} {837.78} 19,557.83
Total lisbilities fram financing activities 17,52 £21.65 18208193 16,025,279 13,58 073.28

Hiran Tangudu
Company Secretary
M No: F1932




KOTAK MAHINLRA FRIME LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUNTY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 33, 2023
fall ampunts in iNR lakfis, un'ess otherwise steted)

A, Equity share cpial

o Parculars

Balance at the beginning of 1he resoryrg period

Changes IN equity shars capital during the year

|Balance 3t the end of the reporting period

E. Other squity

Do - . Resorves gad Surplus . R
[_ RN : - _ — TP B - | Dbt Equity
. Partleulars NP Sevurities - - PR Retairmed
Spettal reserve premium - i I o o
| | - premium cmsares L | - = 2 g
T 5 I

Cpening Balance a2 At Apcil 1, 2022 H 122062 94 53,075.15 100.00 18254 39792 4,75,134.51 172.67) 1,63,321.50 2,14,200.90
|Changes in acoounting pulices) aroir period errars - - - - - - . -
Profit far the year o - - - - 9747040 - - 97,470.40
QOther comprehensive income for the year [net of wax) - - - - - 44 55 254881 12.793,91 1410427
Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended March 31, 2022 o 12206284 075.15 100.00 182.54 397.92 5.72,649.45 13614 | 177anA 225,775.57
Transerfutl=ations ]

Transfer Ip speciai reserve ufs 25 °C of the RBI A, 1934 19,494,038 - - - {19,494 6B - - -
Sngre based payment {refur note 42] - - - 1928 - - - 18.26
Dividend on aquiry share: frefer note 22(R]) - - - - 11,398.08) - - [2,394.08)
Ealance as at March 31, 2022 | 1,81557.02 53)075.16 10000 | 182 53 41718 5,51,757.30 | 18644 | 17712141 9,24.3595.75
Opening Balznce 25 at Apri 1, 2022 1513537.02 5307516 100.00 182,53 417.1% 35175730 13614 1,77121.2), 9,24,396.75
Changes in accaursing oolicies! orair perigg errcrs - - - - - - - - -
Profit for the year - - - - - 94,753 .08 - - 5a,753.08
atner comprehenslve Incarse “ar the year (net of ! - - - - - [45.99} [1,407.12] 734262 E,O88.51
Tetal Comprehensive ncome for the year ended mMarch 31, 2023 1,41557.02 53,075.16 130.00 1R2.54 41713 £,48,063.39 [1,220.83) 1,34,664.03 10,25,238 34
Transferfutilisations

Transfer to speeal rezeres ufs 45 IC of the RE] Act, 1934 18,950.61 - - - - {18,550.61) - - -
Share based payment (refer note 43} - - - - B3.63 - - - B3.63
Dividend on equity shazes [refer nole 22{h)) - - - - {1,747 50} - - (1,747 B3}

El

|Balanes a5 st Mareh 312023 X 16050753 53,075.16 106,00 182 54 S00.81 625, 765,18 {1320.93}[ 1.24 56103 10, .574_37'

The above statemers of changes i aquity should be read in conjunciion with the accompanying nates,
This is the Statement of changes in eouc ity seferred to in cur repertofeven date
For M M Nissim % €0 LLF 7 ‘For Mukund M. Chitaie & Co
. " Ohartered Acrountants
Firm Registration Neo.: 106655W

i

Saurabih Chitale e J
Parmer Managing Jirector

Membershin No: Q4577 Menibership No: 111333 TIN: C7EE5325

S o

S
Bharat Thakkar
Lhief Fnancial Officer

Date and Place: May 1€, 2023, Mumbai M No: 048525

For and on beha!f of the Board of Directors

hahry
Jirg

Company Secratary
M Mot Fras2




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 1 -

Note 2 -

A,

o

o

Corporate Information

Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited {the Company)is a public company domicited in indiz and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is registered as a Non-Banking
Financial Company with Reserve Bank of India. The Company is primarily engaged in financing of
passenger ¢ars and multi-utility vehicles for retail customers and inventory and term funding to car
dealers. The Company also provides finance for two wheeler, loan against property, personal loans,
corperate loans and developer funding.

Summary of significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, uniess
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

{1) Statement of camgpliance

The financial statemepts of the company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards {herein after referred as ‘Ind AS") notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 {"the Act”) [Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] as amended and other
relevant provisions of the Act. Any application guidance/clarification/directions issued by the Reserve
Bank of India or other regulators are implemented as and when they are issued/applicable.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting
policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. These
financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Director’s on May 16, 2023,

{ ii ) COVID- 19 pandemic

COVID-19, a global pandemic, affected the world economy over last two years. The revival of
economic activity improved in financial year 2022 supported by relaxation of restrictions due to
administration of the COVID vaccines to a large population in the country. The extent to which COVID-
19 pandemic will impact the company’s results going forward will depend on ongoing as well as future
developments including the nature and severity of COVID-19,

{ iii } Historical cast convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following

items:

s Certain financial assets and liabilities - Measured at fair value {refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments);

e Defined benefit plans - Plan assets are measured at fair value;

¢ Share-based payments - Méa&dréd-"a; fair value




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

B. Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:
a. its purchase price, including import dutles and non-refundabie purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates,
b. any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition

necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

income and expenses related o the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item o the
tocation and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management, are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

if significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted and depreciated for as separate items {major componenis) of property, plant
and eguipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in
statement of profit and loss within other gains/{losses}.

it. Suhseqguent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will fiow to the Company. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. Al other repairs

and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss dyring the reporting period in which
they are incurred.

iii. Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation is provided on a pre-rata basis on a Straight Line Method over the estimated useful
life of the assets at rates which are equal to or higher than the rates prescribed under Schedule
1l of the Companies Act, 2013 in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets and based on
technical evaluation done by the management's expert. Estimated useful lives over which assets
are depreciated / amortised are as follows

Computers 3 years
Office Equipment _ | 5 years i i i
| Furniture and Fixtures ) 6years
Vehicles . 4 years )
Premises 58 vears
Leasehoid tmprovements Over the period of lease subject to a maximum of
6 years

ey




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Depreciation matheds, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

C. Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition ess accumuiated amortization and impairment
[osses, if any. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any import
duties and other taxes {other than those subseguently recoverable from the taxing authorities),
and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for is intended use and net
of any trade discounts and rebates. Subseqguent expenditure on an intangible asset after its
purchase/completion is recognized as an expense when incurred unless it is probable that such
expenditure will enable the asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its ariginally
assessed standards of performance and such expenditure can be measured and attributed to the
asset reliably, in which case such expenditure is added to the cost of the asset.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

Amortisation

The intangible assets are amortized gver the estimated useful lives as given below:

[ Software {inclﬁdmg d'-é\felopmeﬁf-} -"'3years l
expenditure i

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

D. Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (iNR), which is the functional currency of
the Company. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs with two decimals, uniess
otherwise indicated.

E. Foreign currency

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are transtated into the functionat currency using the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and iosses resulting from the settlement of

such transactions and frem the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies at year end exchange rates.are-generally recognised in statement of profit and loss.

o

o

e
)
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KOTAK MAHINERA PRIME LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

F.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the
statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are

presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net hasis within other gains/{losses).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreigh currency are transiated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Transiation differences an assets
and liahilities carried at fair value are reparted as part of the gain or loss on fair value changes.

Financial instrument

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financiai
liability or equity instrument of anather entity.

Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised. cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss an the basis of its business

model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assef.

Initial recognition and measurement

Al financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction fees or costs that are directly attributable
and incremental to the origination/acquisition of the financial asset unless otherwise specifically
mentioned in the accounting policies.

Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held
such that it best reflects the way the business is managed and is consistent with information
provided to managemaent. The information considered includes:

-~ the objectives for the portfolic, in particular, management's strategy of focusing on earning
contractual interest revenue, mairfaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the
duration of the financial assets to the duration of the Habilities that are funding those assets or
realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales actjvity. However, information about sales activity is not
considerad In isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company’s stated
objective for managing the financiai assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised.

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model, the financial assets held within that
business model and how those risks are managed

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recagnition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit

risk associated with the principal amountoutstanding during a particufar period of time and for other




 KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

basic lending risks and costs, as weli as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractua! cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Company

considers:

& resetterms

& contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;
- & prepayment and extension terms; and

L ]

features that modify consideration of the time value of money — e.g. periodical reset of interest

rates.

Subseguent measurement

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

{i}

(ii}

s

Amortised cost (AC)
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the fellowing conditions:
e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and
« the comtractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are
salely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subseguently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest (EIR) method. Amortised cost is caleulated by considering
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR
and reported as part of interest income in the statement of profit and loss, The losses if any,
arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and Joss.

Eair value through Other Comprehensive income (FVOCI) — debt investment
A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions:
e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
+ the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest an the principal amount outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
interest income is recognised using the effective interest {EIR) method. The loss allowance is
recognized in other comprehensive income and does not reduce the carrying value of the
financial asset. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to
statement of profit and loss. .
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{iii) Fair value through Other Comprehensive income (FVOCI) — equity investment .
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in Other
Comprehensive income. This election is made on an investment- by- investment basis.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Dividends are recognised asincome in statement of profit and loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCt and are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss,

{iv] Fair value through Profit and Loss [FVTPL)}
This is a residual category for classification. Any asset which does not meet the criteria for
classification as at amortised cost or FVOC), is classified as FYTPL. Financial assets at FYTPL

are measured at falr value, and changes In fair value therein are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities

All financia! labifities are subsequently measured at amortised cost except when desighated to be
measured at FVTPL.

impairment of financlal assets
Methodology for computation of Expected Credit Ltosses (ECL)

The financial instruments covered within the scope of ECL include financial assets measured at
amortised cost and FVOCI, such as trade receivables, loans, debentures, preferance shares,
certificate of deposit, balances and deposits with banks and other financlal assets. ECL has not been
"determined on financial assets measured at FVTPL.

The loss allowance has been measured using lifetime ECL except for financlal assets on which there
has been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. In such cases, loss allowance
has been measured at 12 month ECL.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and
FvOCl is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit- impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental Impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred since
initial recognition, Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the observahle data such
as Days Past Due ('DPD') or default event,

ECL are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses, measured as follows:

& Financial assets that are not credit impaired at the reporting date:

R
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ECL has been estimated by determining the probability of default {‘PD’}, Exposure at Default
£'EAD’Y and loss given default {1.GD’}. PD has been computed using observed history of default
and convertad into forward looking PD’s using sultable macro-economic variable data.

®  Financial assets that are credit impaired at the reporting date:
For loans, ECL has been estimated as the difference hetween the gross carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows.

For trade receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach. It recognizes impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. Therefore,
the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss alowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

if the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financiat asset is replaced
with a new one due to financial difficuities of the borrower, then an assessment is made of whether
the financial asset should be derecognised:

»  |f the expected restructuring wili not result in derecognitiofs of the existing asset, expected cash
flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating cash shortfalls from the
existing asset; and

»  if the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset and the recognition
of modified asset, the modified asset is considered as a new financial asset. The date of the
madification is treated as the date of initial recognition of that financial asset when applying the
impairment requirements o the modified financial asset. The impairment loss zllowance is
measured at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses untl there is a significant
increase in credit risk. if modified financial asset is credit-impaired at initial recognition, the
financial asset is recognized as originated credit impaired asset.

Criteria used for determination of movement from stage 1 {12 month ECL) to stage 2 (lifetime ECL}
and stage 3 {tifetime ECL}

The Company applies a three-stage approach to measure ECL on financial assets measured at
amortised cost and FVOCI. The assets migrate through the following three stages based on an
assessment of qualitative and quantitative considerations:

- Stage 1: 12 month ECL

For expeosures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit impaired upon erigination, the portion of the lifetime ECL
assoclated with the probability of default events occurring within the next 12 months is
recognised. interest income is ;_,_c__ci_'-iggd-:;ugi_ng the effective interest rate on the gross carrying
amoeunt. A ; :

s
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Stage 2: Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired):

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk for financial assets since initial recognition. In determining whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company uses days past due {(DPD}
information and other qualitative facters to assess deterioration in credit quality of a financial
asset.

For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but that are not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised. Interest income is
accrued using the effective interest rate on the gross carrying amount.

- Stage 3: Lifetime ECL [credit impaired):
Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset have occurred. For financial assets that
have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost {net of loss allowance).

If, in a subseguent period, credit quality improves and reverses any previously assessed
significant increase in credit risk since grigination, then the Expected Credit Loss reverts from
lifetire ECL to 12-manths ECL

Curing period:

Company does not move loans from higher stage to lower stage immediately after improvement
in credit of the borrower and applies curing period for upgradation of three to six months
depending on the product,

Method used to compute lifetime ECL:

The Company calculates ECLs based on a probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected
cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EiR. A cash shortfall is the difference between
the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the present value of cash

flows that the entity expects to receive. The Company applies statistical techniques to estimate
lifetime ECL.

Manner in which forward looking assumptions has been incorporated in ECL estimates:

The Company considers its historical loss experience and adjusts it for current ohservable data. In
addition, the Company uses reasonable forecasts of future economic conditions including expert
judgement to estimate the amount of expected credit losses. The methodology and assumptions
including any forecasts of future economlc condltions are pericdically reviewed and changes, if any,
_-j_.-are accounted for prospectweiy ' '

@21’
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H. Write-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety when there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts, If
the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first
treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any
subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on financial instruments in statement of profit and
loss. However, financial assets that are written off may be subject to enforcement activities to comply
with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due,

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset [or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

+ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash fiows in full withcut material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either {a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership, When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred
asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. in that case, the Company also
recoghizes an asseciated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Company could be required to repay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset [or
the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised} and the sum of (i} the
consideration received {including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (i) any

cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractua! obligations are discharged or
canceiled, or expire. L

..“l
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Madification of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets

if the terms of a financial asset are madified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantialiy different, then the
contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this
case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised at fair value,
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial assets extinguished and the new
financial asset with modified terms is recagnised in the statement of profit and |oss.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially different, then
the modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset as the present value of the renegotiated
or modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate and recognhises the amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying amount as
madification gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the
carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are amortised cver the remaining term of the
modified financial asset. |f such a modification s carried out because of financial difficulties of the
borrower, then the gain or loss is presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is
presented as interest income.

Financial Habilitles

The Company derecognises a financial Hability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. in this case, a new finandial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liahility extinguished and the new financial liabllity with modified terms is recognised in the
statement of profit and less.

Measurement of fair vaiues

The Company’'s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for
financial instruments such as unquoted equity instruments, debentures, preference shares etc.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments, If
third party infarmation, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then
the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion
that such valuations meet the requirements of ind AS, including the {evel in the fair value hierarchy
in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liabllity, the Company uses
observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a falr
value hierarchy hased on the Inputs used in the vaiuation techniques as follows:-

Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

¢
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L.

M,

N.

Interest income

tevel 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either divectly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived fram prices).

Leve! 3: inputs far the asset or liability that are not based on ohservable market datz (unobservable
inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilitles are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settie the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must no.t be cantingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the group or the counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purpcses and not as a speculative investments.
However, where derlvatives do not meet the hedge accounting criteria, they are classified as ‘held
for trading’ for accounting purpases and are accounted for at FYTPL.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss 1s recognised in statement of profit and loss immediately.

The Company enters into certain derlvative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as
hedges. Such contracts are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss and are shown as
gains/(losses) on fair value changes.

Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 108 are not
separated. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Derivatlves embedded In all other host contract are separated only if the economic characteristics
and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the econamic characteristics and risks
of the host and are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives closely
related to the host contracts are not separated.

Revenue recognition
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interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying
amouni of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as
measured at FVTPL.

The EIR In case of a financial asset is computed

a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.

b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows.
c. Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective

interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts,

Any subseguent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income
with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying ameunt of the assets.

interest income on credit impaired assets is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
net amortised cost {net of loss aliowance) of the financial asset.

bividend income

Dividend income is recognised in statement of profit and loss on an accrual basis when the right to
receive the dividend is established.

Fees and commission income

Fees and commissions are recognised when the Company satisfies the performance obligation, at
fair value of the consideration received or receivabie based on a five-step mode! as set out in Ind AS
115, uniess included in the effective interest calculation:

Step 1: identify contract{s} with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement hetween two or
more parties that creates enforceable righis and obligations and sets out the criteria for every
contract that must be met,

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract; A performance obligation is a promise in a
contract with a customer to fransfer a good er service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods ar services
to a customer, excluding amounis collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance gbligations in the contract: For a contract
that has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitied in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5 Recognise revenue wher}___{or._‘-;_a’_’é}'_the\.\(;ompanv satisfies a performance obligation.
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Fees and commission that are not directly linked to the sourcing of financial assets are recoghised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on an accruat basis.

0. Employee benefits

(i}

{ii}

{iii)

Short-term obligations

Liabiiittes for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the peried in which the employees render the
related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
The liabilities are presented as employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Compensated Absences - Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

The Campany accrues the liability for compensated ahsences based on the actuarial valuation
as at the balance sheet date conducted by an independent actuary. The net present value of
the Company’s obligation is determined based on the projected unit credit method as at the
kalance sheet date. Remeasurement gains or losses on long term compensated absences are
recagnised in statement of profit and loss.

Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the foliowing post-employment schemes:

a. Gratuity — Defined Benefit Plan

The Cempany accounts for the liability for future gratuity benefits based on an actuarizal
valuation. The Company contributes tc a Gratuity Fund administered by trustees and
managed by Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited, feliow subsidiary.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity
plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting

period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee
henefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes
in equity and in the baiancq_sh’éétﬂ i /1 |_u_'."‘
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(iv}

{v)

Sk

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit ohligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtaitments are recognised immediately in statement of profit and ioss as
past service cost.

b. Provident Fund/Emgployee State Insurance Scheme - Defined Contribution Plan
The Company's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are
considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense bhased on the
amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the
employees,

Other Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of employee henefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees is recognised during the period when the employee renders
the service. These benefits include performance incentives.

As per the Company policy, employees of the Company are eligible for an award after
completion of a specified number of years of service with the Company. The obligation is
measured at the Balance Sheet date on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit
and loss.

Employee Share based payment
Equity-settied scheme

Equity-settled share-based payments made by the parent Company to the employees of the
Company are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date, The fair
value determined at the grant date of the equity-settied share-based payments is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of equity
instruments that will eventualiy vest. Fair value determined at the grant date is reduced by
payment, if any, made to the parent, is recognised as deemed contribution to equity from
parent.

Cash-settled scheme

The cost of cash-settled scheme (stock appreciation rights) is measured initially using fair value
method at the grant date taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
instruments were granted. This fair value is amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period with recognition of correspending liability. This Habiity is re-measured at each Balance
Sheet date up to and inciuding__the-sgttiement date with changes in fair value recognised in the

Y
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P!

Q.

Statement of Profit and Loss in 'Share hased payment to employees’ under the head Empioyee
Benefit Expanse.

{vi} Bonus
The Company reccgnises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

Income tax

Current and deferred tax is recognised in statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income of directly in equity. tn this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payabie on the current period's taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calcuiated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. H establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to he
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the Hability methed, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
i a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting profit nor taxabie profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates {and
faws} that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting pericd and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liabikity is settied.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses
only If it is probable that future taxabie amounts wil be avallable to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are offset when there is 2 legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority,
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the Habiity
simultangously. T

Earnings per share

o
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R.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders {after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the firancial year, adjusted for events such as
haonus issug, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of
shares), if any, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding
change in resources, Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the
extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully pald eqguity share during the
reporting period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive patential equity shares.

Leases

Company as lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The
Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding tease liability with respect to all lease
afrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases {defined as leases with a lease
term of 12 manths or less) and leases of low value assets (such as tablets and personal computers,
small items of office furniture and telephones). For these Jeases, the Company recognises the [ease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased assets are cansumed.

The lease lahility is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. if this rate cannot be
readily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprisa:

8  Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

» Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or
rate at the commencement date;

*  The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

¢ The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options;
and

& payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an
option to terminate the lease.

The lease liabHity is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease Kability {using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made. SR
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The Company re-measures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related

right-of-use asset} whenever:

® the lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting
in a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate,

= the lease payments change due to changas in an Index or rate or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate [unless the lease payments change
is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

#& 3 lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease,
in which case the lease liahility is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The right-of-yse assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, iease
payments made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any
initial direct costs. They are subseguently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment osses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of Jease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease,

Company as lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor are ciassified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classiffed as operating leases.

Accounting for Finance leases as a Lessor

Agreements are classified as finance leases, if substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the leased assef is transferred to the lessee.

Assets given under finance |eases are recognised as a receivable at an amount equal to the net
investment in the lease, Finance income s allocated over the lease term on a systematic and rational
basis, This income allocation is based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic return on the net
investment in the finance lease.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obllgation {legal or canstructive} as a

result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
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will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to seitle the present
obligation at the Balance sheet date and are not discounted to its present value.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past evenis whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
cantrol of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources wili be required to settie the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent Hability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements

{mpairment af non-financial assets

Assets/cash generating units {CGU) are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
ciremstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amoumt is the higher of an asset’s fair value Jess costs of
disposal and value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their
present value hased on an appropriate discount factor.

Nan-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in businass activities from which
it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are reguiarly reviewed by the
company’s Chief Cperating Decision Maker {"CODM”) to make decisions for which discrete financial
information is available, Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the CODM
evaluates the Company’'s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various
performance indicators by business segments, Refer note 46 for segment information presented,

V. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid

investments with original maturities of three months ar less that are readily convertible to known




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

W. Borrowings

X.

Y.

Z.

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds {net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in statement of profit and loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the ipan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility wili be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probahle that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Trade and other ﬁavables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end
of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days
of recognition. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,

Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the periad in which they are incurred.

Trade receivable

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of
business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is

unconditiona unless they contain significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair
value,

The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
loss allowance.

AA. Contributed equity

a«)g

Equity shares are classified as equity,

. lncrementat costs directly attributable to the lssue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
~ deduction, het of tax, from the prcceeds




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note -3 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition,
will seldarm equat the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the.
Company’s accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
and of items which are more likely to he materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turming
aut to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates
and judgemaents is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation
for each affected line item in the finandial statements,

The areas involving estimates or judgements are:

(i} Estimation cf defined benefit obligations
{ity Recognition of deferred tax assets, estimation of current tax expense and current tax payabie
{li) Estimation of provisions and contingencies
{iv) Fair value of employee share options
{v) - Fair value of financial instruments including unlisted equity instruments
(vi) Business model assessment
fvii) Impairment of financial assets
{viii) Determination of usefu! life of Property, Plant and Equipment
{ix] Determination of useful life of Intangible asset
(%) Effective interest rate
(xi) Evaluation of lease, lease term and discount rates.

Estimation uncertainty relating to Covid-19 in assessing the Impairment of Loans:

Accounting estimates and associated assumptions applied in preparing these financial statements,
especially for determining the impairment allowance for the Company’s loan receivables, are based
on histarical experience and other emerging / forward looking macro-econamic variables considering
the current impact of the pandemic. The Company has used estimation of potential stress on
probability of default and exposure at default due to Covid-19 situation in developing the estimates,
assumptions and management overlays 1o assess the impairment loss allowance on loans. Based on
the sensitivity analysis of the assumptions used, the Company helieves that the factors considered are
reasonable under the current circumstances, Given the dynamic nature of pandemic situation, these
accounting estimates are subject to uncertainty and may be affected by the severity and duration of
the pandemic, In the event the impacts are more severe or prolonged than anticipated, it will have a
corresponding impact on the carrying value of financial assets, the financial position and pefformance
of the Company.

Recent amendments applicable from April 01, 2023
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs {MCA) on 31st March 2023 through Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 has notifled the following amendments to IND AS which are applicable for the annual

periods beginning an or after st April, 2023.

e IND AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements — This amendment requires the Company to disclose its
material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies.

The Company will carry out a detgiled review of accounting policies to determine material accounting policy
Information to be disclosed going forward. .

Rl




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME tIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

The Company does hot expect this amendment to have any material impact in its financial statements,
s IND AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has changed
the definltion of a "change in accounting estimates” to a definition of “accounting estimates”, The amendment

clarifies how companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting
estimates. '

The Company does not expect this amendment to have any material impact in its financiai statements,

s IND AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has done away with the recognition exemption on initial
recognition of assets and Habilities that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences,

}_'h'e_ C_éi'ripany does not expect this amendment to have any material impact in its financial statements,




KOTAK MAKINCRA PRIME LIMITED

Wotes 1o the financial stataments as at and for the year anded Mareh 31, 2023

(Al grrounts i INR Tekhs, unless othanyise steted)

Natg 4 CASH AND CASH EOUVALENTS

Partivutars . hsat Chaat
’ Mareh 31, 2023 Mareh-51,- 2822
Cash on hand B84.49 576,37
Balancos with banks In current aecount 38,532.9% 1,228 56
Cheques, dralts on hand 985,64 RA2 I8
40,213.08 221,887.21
Le3s: impalement Foss allowanca frefer nete 43091 {1497 {21,160}
a45,198, 16 22,666,13
Nate 5 BANK DALANCE GTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Asat T Asat

- Particulars

Mar:h 31, 2023

March 34, 2022

Particulars

~March 31, 2023

fixeq depositwith banks® 40,95 44,83
52.85 44,33
Less: Impairment loss dllowance {refer note 42(H}) (.02} .41}
90.83 | 45,82
*includes As, 29,29 iakh (March 20332 - Rs, 44.54 | akh) fer deposit under Han
Mote € RECEWVABLES
Asat Asat .

March 31, 2022

[Amaritsed Cost

Trade racelvakles

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, conshiered good

Less: Impairment bass allawance jrefer nete 434}

6.35

6.55
{o.08)

6,47

-Partfcudars -

© . As at March 31, 2023

Unbited

Not Gus

Loss than §
manths

6 months - |

{1-2 years

2-1 years

Muore than 3

Tatal . |

i} Ungispttad Tradz Reteivables - Consldered pood

1 year

{4 Undisputed Trads fecaivabtes - whlch have significant Incraase in credit
risk

Hi} Urelsputed Trade Recelvablas - Credit impaired

b} Disputed Trage Receivables - Considered Good

(v} Dlsputed Trade Raceivablas - which have significart [1craase in credit dsk

i} Disputed Trade Recaivables - Cradit impalrec
Tetal

Partlcutars

at March 31, 1032

Unbilled

|} Lindlsputed Trade Recelvables - Consldered aond

" |NetDun

. [Less than 6

months

i1 year

& months -

More than 3
‘Tysars

.03

6.52

{Il} Undisputed Trade Receivablies - which have significant increase in credi
risk

I Undisputed Trade Recelvables - Credi impatred

iv} Hsputed Trade Recalvaties - Considered Good

[w Disputed Trade Receivabies - which have significant increasa in cradit rlsk

v Qisputed Trade Receluabler - Cred|t tpalred
Total

0,03

.




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Notes to lha nancial statements as at and far the year endad March 31, 2623
(AR @mounts in INR lakhs, unfess othenwlse stated)

Mate 7 LOANS
At-Falt Value
. - Through Dihsr Basl’gﬂat.ed at 1 = R )
. B . 3 dc K A R .
Cou s Partivulars . :Amonise p.ﬂ. . Comprehenshve. | . Theaugh Falrvalue thraugh i Suh. tntal_ | T.Qt.ﬂ-i L
A . . . . e A prnﬁtarioss .- .
, Income . ] Jprofiter loss.
S i [ &) i T T
As at March 31, 2023
{A} (i) Loans
- Vahicte finance 32,90,607.78 - - - - 22,90,007.78
- Strctured bpans 1,54,657.47 L54.657.47
- frarseshal loans 94,199.55 04,189,586
L] Other lending actbvilies 1 87,946.68 - - 1,44,346.58
Tatal Grass (A} 27,26,811.48 - - - 23,16.458.48
Lass: Impatrment loss atfowance {refer note 434111} {52,673 24} - 53,673.24)

{e}

{c

Total Net (A}

£l Secured Dy tanatble azsets

{il} Secured by ntanpibie assets

{iil] Coversd by Bank /Govarnment Guaraniees
i) nsecured

Total Gross {8)

Less: mpairment loss sifowance {rafer note 4301
Totat Met [(B]

Loans in India

{1y Publie Sector

til] Gthass

Total Gross {C1

Less: impalrment loss sowance frefer nole $3{03

| [retatneria)

| 26,74,138.7¢

26,74,138.24

24,84 B79.61

2,41.931.87

24,84,879.61

4,41,931.87

17,26,911.4%
{52,673.24}

17,26,311.49
{52.673.34}

26,74,138.24

26,74,118.25

27,246,811 48

27,26,811.48

27,25,811.48
{52,673.24)

17,26,81%.48
i52,573.24}

26,74,138.24

26,74,138.24

As at March 31, 2023

(A}

@)

(]

(i Loans
- Vehitle finance
- Structured loans
- Persanal loans
{ii} Others lerding activitles
Tatal Grass [A)
Less: Impairment Joss allowance {refer note 43(1i}}
Total Net [A}

{l} Secured hy tangible assats

{ii} Secured by intanpibie assets

{iif] Covered by Bank/Government Suarantees

i) Unsecured

Total Gross (8]

Less! frapairment foss allowance {refer nate 434l
Tatal Net (B)

Laans in india

14y fublle Sector

(it Others

Total Gross {C}

Loss: Irmpairmant |nss attownce (Fefer note d3(HY
Total Met {£)

18,12,243.74 - - - 1%,12,243.74
3,48,279.00 3, 44,279.66
F0,677.24 70,677.24
1,36,878.89 - - - - 1.36,875.58
13,68,0678.47 - - - - 23,68,074.86
{58,814.85) - - - - {58,814.86)
23,09,264.01 - - - - 23,02,264.01
20,78,944 .43 - - - - 20,78,544.43
1,89,134.44 - - - - 2,89,194.44
23,69,078.87 - - - - 23,68,070.87
|58,814.84] - - {58,814.861
| __23.09.264.01 - - - - 23,09.264.01
73,68,075.87 - - - 13,68,078.87
23,60,078.H7 . - - - 23,68,074.87
{58,814.86) - - - {58,814, K6}
23,09,264.01 - - -

23,09264.01




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Notes to the flnancial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Al amounts in INR fakhs, unless otherwise stated}

Note 8 INVESTMENTS

- At Fair Vaju

A artised Cast -

‘Through Cther |

* otal

e P o Through- “Suis tota) . A
i_’_art.lculars N Compfe_l_:e_nsiv_e profit ot lass. e )
S Ineome : . .
L T {1 2 - (3} =233 (5=1+4}
As at March 31, 2023
{A) | Mutual funds -
Gavernment securlties & Treasury Bills - 1,73,026.07 - 1,73,026.067 1,73,026.07
babentures 1,84, 440,60 33,358.75 19,972.98 42,231.74 2,26,672.34
Enuity Instruments* - 2,45 028.77 - 2,45,028.77 24502877
Alternate lnvestimeni Fund - 15,013,83 15,013.83 15,013,83
Fotal Geoss {A) 1,84,440.50 4,40,314,59 34,986.82 4,75,300.41 6,59,741.01
{8} | {0 Investments cutside India - - -
{ii} Fnvestments in India 1,84,440.60 4,40,313.59 34,380 .82 4,75,300.41 6,59,741.01
Totai (B)
Less: impalrment allowance {refer note 43¢} {293,62) - - {293.62}
Tatal Net 1,84,145.98 4,40,313.59 34,586.82 4,75,300.41 6,59,447.329
&s at March 31, 2022
{A} | Mutuai funds - - 10,602.82 10,002.82 10.602.82
Gavernment securities & Treasury Bills - 1,79,831.76 - 1,79,831.76 1,75,831.76
Debentures 2,04,827.70 32,621.96 32,621.96 2,27,448.66
Lquity instruments* 2,35,528.94 - 2,35,528,94 2,35,528,94
Total Grass (A) 204,822,740 4,317,982.67 10,0G2.82 4,47 .985.48 £,52,813.18
{B} [{1) nvestments outside India - - - - -
{ii} Investments in india 2,04,827.70 437,982,687 10,002.82 447,985 48 6,52,813.18
Total (B}
Less: Impairmerd allowance {refer note 43{ii}} {504,786} - - - 1304.78)
Total Net 2,03,922.92 4,37,982 67 10,002,892 4,47,985.48 6,51 308.40

h &.}g\‘ i




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED

Notes to the flnancial statements 25 at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al ameunts in INR iokhs, uniess etheryise stoted)

Note 8 INVESTMENTS

*Note - Equity shares designated as at fair vatue through ather comprehensive Income

irwestment in equity shares Falr value at Movement Fair value at
March 31, 2022 § during the year { March 31, 2023
Phoenix ARG Private Limited 11,802.44 1,669.10 13,471.55
Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited 2,23,726,50 7.830,72 2,31,557,22
2,35,528.94 9,499.82 2,45,028.77
investment in equity shares Fair value at Movement Fair value at
March 31, 2023 | durlng the year | March 31, 2022
Phoenix ARC Private Limited 12,321.10 {518.66) 11,802.44
Katak Mazbindra Life Insurance Campany Limited 2,05,633.52 18,092.58 3,23,726.50
2,17,954.62 17,574.32 2,35,528.94
Mo strategic investments were dispoased off during the year.
Note 9 DTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
- - Asat .- “Asat .
. Particulars . -
|- Particula Marchi 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Lease daposits 22599 214.22
Cther deposits 341,51 390538
Qther receivables 597.05 202.17
1,764.55 1,322.77
Less: Impalrment loss allowance {refar note 43(H)) {11.60) {15.66)
1,7532.95 1,307,11

N
S




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED

Notes to the finanedal statements a5 at and For the year ended Marth 31, 2023

Al umawnts in INR lakks, Lrifess ctherwise stoted)

Noke 10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

- ] I i’m‘nlture HE 1easehold R’ght.bf: e L
Particul T Bui g 3 . i off s | nent il . - Total
. ) rticul ars. . But&l{n,gs B res Ve.?.ncles ffice eq I pre v - ) - Total
As ot March 31, 2022
&irnss carrying amount
Dpening gross carrying 10.66 4,61 38372 14243 52,61 LTS | 2,130.47 £.441.60
Additions - 0.92 3043 1215 453,80 57.30 £21.46 1,002.56
Disposals - (9.45) [72.47) 10.21) {26.34 - [3E1.86) [481.33)
Clasing pross canmmying amoeunt 1060 2508 34238 15437 B36.07 414.51 2,170.02 4,052 .83
Accoumylated depreglation 1.16 17.83 221,52 85653 255.94 254.02 126426 2,117 26
Depreciation chargz during the year 0.29 2.24 9278 2421 149.68 45.77 311.81 626,18
Disposals - 10.45) [63.30) {0.15) 1.33) - [378.34) [453.07}
Closing accumulated depreciation 1.45 19.62 250.50 113,59 400,29 208.78 1,197.23 2,792.47
Met Carrying amounk 9.15 5.45 9LEE 40.7B 435.78 104.72 1,072.79 1,760.36
Az at March 33, 2023
Gross CAITYIng amount
Opening gross carrying amount i0.60 25.08 34214 15437 E£3E.07 414,51 2,270.0% 4,052.83
Additions - £2.89 160.92 12253 957.82 237.02 520,74 2,512.02
Cispasals - 12.48 115.45 20.37 1/5.83 - 17,80 34203
Closing grass carrying ameunt 10.60 100.55 BGlR.55 297.27 1,969.72 641,53 3,268.65 6,906.87
Accumulbsted depreciation 1.45 1362 25050 113.5% 400,29 304.79 1,187.13 2,282.47
Depreciation charge during the year .40 14.86 BF.7R 51.2% 398.86 76.50 391.35 1,020.88
Liisposals - 1151 11247 1974 174.01 - 1%.890 336.32
Clesing actumulated degreciation 175 46.99 450,45 iB4.58 497318 38530 1,606.49 3,643,710
Net carryIng smount 8.86 5356 165,10 11269 596.57 255.24 | 166217 3,257.17

Note: |mpairment joss and reversal of impairment loss

Thers is no impalrment loss recognised for prope lant and equipment.
Ei property, p quip

é’%/‘a\/
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KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED

Motes t¢ e financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
(AN aemounts in INR Jakhs, uniess atherwise stated]

MNote 10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Nate 10{a} Capital Wiark in Pragress

Closing accwmulated depreciation

Net carvying amount

s 2,00838 L

. . ‘Bafance " P o Balance -
“Particuiars - ‘s at Additions | Deductions |~ asat
. . . 1 April, 2032 " 31 March, 2023
Capital Work-in Progress 144 60 213312 [136.88) 23083
Totat 14460 21212 {136.85) 22083
S " Bilance Balance
- Particulars asat Additons | Deductions’ a5 at y
. : 1 Agril, 2021 . : : 21 March, 2022 -
Capital Werk-in Frogress 164.63 14460 1164.63) 144.60
Tatad 164,63 14460 {164.63) 144 60
note 10{b) mvastment Propesty
S Particulars. Amaunt
As at March 31, 2022
GIpss rarrying amounk
Opening Bross carrying ampunt 2,635.41
Additior:s -
Disposaks -
Closing gross carmying 2rmaunt 2,635.41
(Accumadated depreciatian 536.38
Depreciation charge during the year 45,33
Dispocals .
Llosing accumulated depreciation 581.71
Net c@arrylag armount 2,053.70
As at March 31, 2023
Gross carrying amaunt
Opening gross CaTrying amount 2, 635.41
Additions -
Dizpasals -
Clasing gross carmying amount 2,635.41
Accumuizted depredastion SELT1
Depreciation charge during the year 45,31
Disposals -
E527.02




KOTAK MAHINORA PRIME LIMITED

Notas to the financizl statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

fAK amennts In INR lakhs, umiess otherwise stated)

Note 11{a} INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

. Particutars

e Camputer Sofiware Total
As at March 31, 2022
Ogenlag carrylng amount . .
Additlons 21415 14,15
Deducticns {18011} 183,11}
Clesing c2rrying amount 25.05 25.0%
As at March 31, 2021
Opening carrylng amount 25.05 2505
Additions 13.57 13.57
Dlsposais {3,258 {3.25)
Clasing caerying amount 35.37 35.37
Nate 11/h) OVHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
o .P_iarﬂl:ulars' : Cumputér Séﬂ:ware ’ . Totai .
As at March 34, 7022
Gross carrying amount
Ogenlng gross carrying amaunt 5i5.66 518,66
Addittons 297.78 257.78
Disposals - -
Closing gross caerying amount §13.44 813.44
Accumutated amartisation 358.41 398.41
Amartisation recognised for the year 112,15 112.15
Disposals - -
Clasing accumulated amortisation 510.56 310.56
Net carryiag amoint 302.88 IG2.RE
As ar March 31, 2023
Gross carrying amoynt
Opening gross carrying amount B13.44 81344
Additions 154.15 154.15
Disgosals - -
Closing gress carrying amount 967.59 967,59
Accumulated amartisation 510.56 510.56
Amortisatlon recognised for the year 204.35 208.35
Blsposals - -
Closing accumuiated amartisation 71391 71351
Met carrying amount 253.58 253.58
Note: Impairment loss and reversaf of impairmant loss
There Is no impalrment foss recognlsed for intargible assets,
Mot L2 OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
U hsat As at

: : Far&lcn.i!a_rs

- March 31, 2023

:Mareh 31, 2022

Prapald expenses BE2.85 410,95
Batances with gevernment authoritias
(i1 WAT credlt receivable 445.64 11435
{it} G5T Input recelvable 3,598.21 2.214.37
Advances to suppliers - 370,10
Advances to employees 21383 175,77
Gratwity {refer note 41 {if} A) . 8L.65
Cthars 12t.83 284.13 |
Total 3,241.58 3,65L.34




ROTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED

Notes te the financial stataments as at and for the year ended March 34, 2023
&M oracunts in INR fakhs, unless othenvise stated]

Note 13 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company enters tnto derlvatives for risk management purposes. Derivatives hebd for rlsk management purposes Include hedgas that aither meet the hedge
sccounting requirements of hedges that are econamie hedgas, but she Campany has elocted not to apply hedge accounting requirements.

The cumnpany alse has embedded option labillity In the form of embadded derlvative In Hifty linked debentures,

The table below shows the fair values of derlvative financlal instrurments recorded as Habifltles together with their notionai amounts, The notionsi amounts indicats the

vatie of trangactions outstanding at the year end and are net Insicatve of oither the market rlsk or credit risk,

- - ;:N.utiuﬂa.l .| Falr Value
© Partiesdars . . . Amounts -Assets]

Lo s - . {Liabitles}) -
As at March 31, 2023
Part |
-Embedded option on markat linked debentires HA FERES
-Crass Currency Swaps 12,503.00 9253.41
Total Desjvative financial instriments 12,500.80 982.52
Part il
included in above (Part | are derivatives held for hedging and risk
management purposes a5 follows:
Undesignated derbvatives Ha 942,52
Tatal derivative financial instryments - 932.52
As at March 31, 2022
Partt
-Embecded option on market linked debantyres NA; {2,667.50)
-Cross Curmency Swaps 55,800.00 {382,171}
Tatal Derivative financial instr 55,000.00 (3,049,653
Partll
trsclueded in above {Part 1) are desivatives heid for hedplag and risk
management purpesas as follows:
Undesignated derivatives NA {3,042.631
Total derivative financial nstriments - {3,049.63)

*HA- Mol applicable

o




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Notes to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts In INR lokhs, unless atherwise stated)

Mate 14 TRADE PAYABLES

. R .Asat "As.at
Particufars’ : March 34,
o March 31.2013 071
Trade payahles (Refer Mota (i) helow] :
{1} Uue te micro and small enterprises 160.05 -
Total {A} 160.05 -
{il) Dues to others
{1} Payable lo dealars tawards flrancing actvitles 20,734 686 39, 5R3.03
{11} Other Payables 31,718.11 18,054.21
Total (B} 52,452.77 57,637.24
Total |A+B) 52,612.82 57,637.25
o o . 023 . F :
" Particulars . . As at March 31_..2 7 ¢ Total |
- - - Unbillad Less thanl 1-2 years -1 2-3 years | More than 3 years | -
{1} Undisputad dues - IASME B 160.05 - - - 160,05
{ii) Undisputed dues .Others 9,479.06 11,626.99 327952 | 107334 5,993.86 | 52,4527
{lil) Blsputad dues - MEME - - - - - -
{Iv] Gisptited dues -Others - - - - -
Total 9,479.06 32,787.09 2,239.52 | 1,073.34 5,893.06 | 52,612.82
) - o " As at March 31, 2022 KR
Particulars . : . Lassthanl | | i N E C ] D Total
) ) LT Unbl|led s: a: .} 1-2years {23 yaars | More than 3 years U
o R . = BAr - i ? : ) | .
1 Undisputed dues - MSWE - - - - - -
MR s 4 dues -Olhars 6,953 .15 33,244.87 373794 1,221,132 6,472.95 57.4637.14
Total 6,963,15 39244.87 | 3717.9a] 132113 G505 | 57,6234

Part!cuiars B

As at March 31,

2023

As at March
31,2022

1] Pnncmal amount ramaining L npald to any supplier as at the end afthe accnunmz
year,

15741

{ii! Interest due theraon ramaining unpatd ta any suppller a5 at the end of the
accounting year,

254

{lif} The amaunt af interest pald alor £ with the ameunts of the payment made to the
ller beyang appainted day.

{iv] The amawat of Imecest due and payahble Fac tne year,

{v} The amcunt of intarest accrued and remaining unpald at the end of the
accaunting year.

{wi) The amaunt of further Interest dua and payabie even In the succeediog year, untll
stich date when the inlerest dues as above are actually pald,

Tatal

160.05

Dues payabla to Micro and Simall Enterprises under tha Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006




KOTAK MAHINGRA fFHIME EIMITED
Notas 1o the Nnanckzl stataments as 2t and for the year ended March 34, 2023
FAN amouits MR lakhs, uniess athenwse stated)

Note 15 DEBT SECURITIES

. 1 ted
L At Amortlsed’ AtFalrValuz | *{:‘:'rﬂ::‘ : '
Particulars .Thraugh Prafit - . Tatal
A Cost X thyoughprofit | - -
. .- or Loss . [
. . ot loss
) - [0 (R £ (A= 1r203)
As at March 31, 2023
Deap discount debentures [Secured) 1,20,111.93 - - 1.20,111.93
Nan canwertile debentures [Secured) 13,86,330.07 - - 13,86,330.07
Market [Inked debentures {Securad) 10.982.56 - - 10,982.56
Total {a} 15,17,434,56 - - 15,17,434.56
Cebt securithes b india 15,17,434.56 . - 15,17,434,56
Dot secunities outside incia - - - o
Total (B) 15,17,434.56 - - 15,17,434.5¢
As at March 31, 1022
Dreep discount debentures (Secured) 1,00,026.80 - - 1,00,026.80
Non copvestihie debeniures {Secured} H0,90,550.29 - - 10,90,559.29
Market !nked debantures (Secured) 18,830.39% - - 18,830.28
Total {A] 12 09,416.48 - - 12,00,415.48
Dobt securties in lndia 13,09 416.48 - - 12,09,416.48
Debt securlties outsida India . - - -
Total {B) 11,8%,416.48 - - 12,005,416 4B
Nota:-

Tha Labentures are receamable at par / aremium. All debt securitlos as stated above are secured by way of first anc park-gassc hypoirecat!an in favour of Debeniure Trusles on the
Compaiy's novable assets such as recelvables arlsing ot of loan, lease, nook debls, currentasiets and investments {exclueing Investments mada pursuant to regulatory requirement and
sirategic investments of the Company which are in the nature of equity shares, preferance shares and ventore capltal unlts or any receivables therefromi ard f or by way of a first and pad
passu morigage on the Company's immavahble praperty of Rs. 18.07 Yakh {at cost) with charge created In favour of Debenture Trustee,

The gross carrying aimuunt of assats fother than Immovables progarty) on which pati-passu charge is created are as follows:-

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022

Loans 27,26,811.44 23,58,078 B

Investments  {escludng  strategle investments, Government 1,35,67234 23145247
socuritles & Freasury 0lls)

Cash and cash equlvalents 40,213.08 22 BA7.21

Bank balanze other than casn and cash equivalents BS.58 9,25

Otner Hinancial assets 3,097.83 176401

- ]  29,95854.11] 26,2935

e




Terms of repayment schedula of debt securlties:-

As at March 31, 7023 [ As at March 31, 2022
tristrupnent with repayment terms Maturity Dade | [nterast Rale Carrying Face Walue Interest pate Carrying Fatq Value
Bangn (%) aimount Nanpe (%] amount
Deep discount dabenlures
Repayable at Maturity
Iay-22 - - - 4.3G3tn 8,70 1061649 10,690.00
Aug-22 - 5.25 5393406 5,500.00
ar-23 - - - 7.65 3.859.04 2,000.00
Apr-13 5.2% 42852 25,502.00 5.25 24,158.52 25,50¢.00
Noy-23 515 33,8%0.71 35,330.00 515 32,220.75 35,0cc.00
Jan-24 5.7tas58 36,702.50 38.500.00 57w53 25, 763.62 24,500.00
lan-25 75510 10D 24,090.19 7,500.00 - - -
1,20,111,93 1,15,500,00 1,60,026.84 1,07,190.00
Nan convertlhls dehentures
Flaed [ntarest Rate; Repayable at Maturity; issued at
varforemium/discaunt
Relatad parties:
Sep-22 515 3,591.32 1,500.00
ian-33 - - - 7.56 2,026,58 2,000.00
hul-23 537 25,937.78 25,000,00 5.37 15,937.37 25,000.00
Sep-23 5.50 515.42 500,00 5.50 51536 500.00
Qa-23 5.50 30,821.42 30,000.00 5.50 30,944.12 0,460.00
Dec-23 500 20,270.99 20,000.00 500 20,2066 20,000.00
Mar-24 504 20,055.57 A0,000.00 5,30 10,055.24 20,000.00
lun-34 5.40 15,286,597 15,000.00 - . -
Sep-id 5.40 2,569.10 0,000.00 -
May-25 7.88 5LB3.41 5,000.00 0.00 -
Feb-15 1 12.606.19 12 50000 - - -
Ghers:
Aug-22 - - 523 31,024.92 A0,C00.00
Sen-21 - - - 515 41,568.90 41,500.00
MNew-22 - - - .40 15,593.04 25,000.00
Cec-22 - - 208 51,12836 50,0C0.00
Jan-z3 - - 7.56 33,2174 51,500.40
Feb-23 - - 4.98 10 2.64 70,681.4% #0,200.00
Iar-13 - . - 498 A0,0131.23 40,000.00
fay-23 5.25 17,7746 17,000.00 5.25 1777392 LA.00Q.00
Jul-23 537 5,187.56 5,000.00 537 518747 5.000.00
Aug-23 55 51,695.61 50,000.00 5.50 Sleni S0,000.00
Sep-23 55 30404975 29500.00 5.50 0,406.34 29,50¢.00
Qet-23 55 a0, 782.36 A0,000.00 5.5 30,600.89 35,000.00
MNow-23 5.49 51,094.40 50,000.00 5.49 50,779.67 30,000.00
Dec-23 5 7),822.48 70,000.00 0 70,669.31 70,000.00
Feb-24 5.8 60,140, 81 60,000.00 580 60,332.29 6C,000.00
Mar-24 5.44 to 600 60,503,614 60,3H.00 6,00 60,315,014 60,406.00
Apr-24 X 11,076.47 20,000.00 5.66 1,042.00 20,0040, 06
May-24 555 20,955.47 29,000.00 5559 25,942.83 20,000.00
Jun-24 5.4 41,062.49 40,000.00 540 13,945.73 12,600.00
hul-24 57 26,587.22 25,5300 BN 16,499.53 25,500.00
Sop-14 T4 33,427,800 32,5000 5.4 33,978.5¢8 52,500.00
Ocl- 24 .74 1843419 76,500,080 574 78,348.24 76,500.00
Naow-24 5,79 31,645.82 31,000.00 579 31,561.61 31,000,006
Dec-24 19 61,278,397 E0.0K.GG 0 - -
Feb-25 7188 27,065,799 2350000
Mar-25 6.1 50,125,796 S0,000.00 6.2 50,124.593 50,000.00
Apf-25 6,35 47,119.31 45,000.00 & - -
May-35 788 36,446.57 36,00.00 4] -
Jun-25 .25 40,178.92 40,000,100 ] -
-2 710784 14,8208 14,300.00 0.0 - -
AuR-25 138 20,878,36 20,000.00 a - -
Sep-25 737 54,149.62 52,500.00 a -
Qel-25 7.86103.28 24,366.53 23,600.00 i} -
How-25 .92 I0,279.54 30,660, G0 a - -
Duec-29 7.8 12,786.12 12,500.00 a - -
lan-28 7.90 44,759.15 44, 800,00 [ - -
Feb-76 792 24,704.14 34,50G.00 0 - -
Jun-26 5.26 5,142.01 35,330.00 g -
Aug-26 1.48 18,277 57 17,500.00 o] -
hi3-27 179 21,087.57 10,330.00 a -
Sep-27 7.99 2064231 20,000,00 i} - -
feb-28 B.OS 18,625.72 18,500.00 0 - -
13,86,340.07 13,55,600.00 10,74,200.00
gt

G




Terms of repayment schedute af debt securiting.

As 2t March 31, 2023

As at Mareh 31, 2022

Instrument with repayment terms Maturlty Date | interest Rata Carrying Face Yalue tntarest Rate Carrylng Faza Vatus
Range {%) amount Bange (%1 amnupt
Market linked dehentures
Flzed Interest Rata; hie at i
Rulated parties:
Others:
Deg-12 - - 7b2 4,770.58 5,000.08
Feb-23 - - - 5.4% 4,543,158 14,600,00
Mar-24 5.44 4,355 4B 5,000.00 544 451662 500000
ul-25 772 5,087 08 6,000.00 - . -
10,5856 11,000.08% 18,930.39 6 i00.00




KOTAK MAHINDILA PRIGEE LigAlTED
Hotes b tha financlal statements as ot and fur the year ended March 31, 3023
AN amoynts in INR lakhy, witess obherwive siled)

Nate 16 BORROWINGS JOTHER THAN DEAT SECUR|TIES)

BT . . S I At Falrvatus © (] D‘_‘_ﬂsmﬁmd a ..
|particulars ~ . - Tl AmeniedCom | Theough pramyor | FiTValue T Tatal
o o R - Sl L T L Ihr.u_ushnmﬁt R
h orioss .
ny 1) T )1 M= teded)
As at March 31, 2023
{2 Term loans tSecired}
Hi{ram bans 495,187 53 - - 9%,197.63
1B dmter corporate deposits (Unsecuredt 526418 - - 5,269,168
(e £ash credit from harks
- Sepurnd 1787534 - - 17,875.34
= Unsecured 3,342.53 - - 334253
[d] Commercial paper iUntecared} &, 48,041.34 . - 4,46,831.38
[d1 Book crverdeaft batanen {Secerad) - - - -
tu} Lazrs repayahle on derrand
{} from banks {Secused} . £ 4 ACO00 - . 1,44 40000
{8} frnm hanks (Unseeurer) 20.000.00 - - 20,800.00
Tatat Ay 732,116,056 - - 7,32, 116.86
Borrowlings in Erufa 1340606 - - TALTIR06
Bortowinps outshde iadia - - - -
Totat (B} 7.33,116.06 - - 1,3!!1 16.06
Secused Borrawings 2,57,472.9% - - 15747187
jUnsecured Borravdugs 4,24, 643.0% - - 4,74,643.09
Tatat (€]
7,32, £16.06 - - 7,32,115.85
Az ol ftareh 31, 2032
Ea3) Term boans [Secured)
13} freqres banies F4,B26.35 - - 74,826.30
{b) Inter caracrate depasdiis {Unsecured) 12,138.54 . - 13,136.54
<} Cash ceedll from banks
-fecured 13,7411 . - 15, 774.11
- Unsecured . - - -
{6 Commerclal paper linsevured} £,69,365.95 - - 5,69,466.95
[d} 3ok averdraft batancs {Sacured) Bk - - [(XE ]
[a} laers regiyable on quieand
1} frera banks (Secured) 040000 - - 50, 50600
Tatal {a} 7,29,103.98 - - 7,19,303.93
Taerabwings in india 7,i9,103.98 - - 7.35,103.58
Burswwdngs sulside lnd'a - - - -
Total {B) 7,19,103.98 - - 7,29,403.5%
Secureg Boirowings 1,47, 000.48 - - 1,47, 08048
Unseaoiped Serrowings 5,82, 363.50 - . 5,42, 103 .50
Total {0}
7,39 10398 - B 3,28,163.94
Mote:

The tasm ipans from backs are seeured By (st and parkpassu and ~on-exrlustve charge by way of hysathecatian { morignge of charged assets such as seteiyahias assing out of toans ard leaze, book dehts,
current assels 2nd ezt ments fenclrdlng investmants made pursoant b regulatory requirement and stratagle investments al the Company which ara in tha patere of equity shares, preference spares and

Afteragte Investriont fund or any raeaivables thersfrom} and f or roctpage on the Company’s fmmavabie property of fs. 18.07 [ekiy |t Cost} ranklng parl-passw wilh charge crasted ' favour of Security
Trstee,

The Bross carrylng amount of 2s2es on which parl-passy charge |s crpated are as foflows:.

Partcuiars As at
Rarch 31, 2039
Loans 27.26,B1l.48
nvestmaents [axchading  stralepic invesiments, Gavernment] 2,35,678.34
sacuritles & Tressury Bils and prelorence shares]

ash and eash equlvatents 44,213.08
Bank Batance other thar tash and cash eouivatents
Other Francaf assets

o

29,95,654,31

Jomd




KOTAK MAHINDAA PRIME LIMITED

Noles ta Lre finarclal statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

[AR amounts [n INA Jakhs, uniess atherwise stated)]

Termms of repayment schedule of bosrowings oth.er than deht securlties:.

As at March 31, 2023

As ol March 31, 2822

(}3;/

Instrament with repaymant terms Maturlty Dale tnkerust Holg farrying Fage WValue Inturesl Rate  Carrying amount Fara Value
Range (6] amaund Rauge (%)
Tesen loan From banks
Relatad pariias:
Fined Imerest Rate; Regayable In a Single instadment,
Apr-12 - 525 2737550
May-22 - - - [ 14,9%1.26 -
tay-11 588 13,484,592 12,500.00 508 12,438.44 12,500.00
Others
Floating intereet Rate; Regdyahbe |4 elght Ralf yeary Instarmerts fan-25 ﬂepo'-Sp.rcad 5008.59 500060 RepusSpread 560644 5,000.00
Floating Interest Rate; Aepsyalile tn six half yearly Instalments hear-25 Reparspreid 5,098.01 308060 fepa-Spread Snuse $0600.03
Floating laterast Iate; Repayakla la six half yearly nstalments Mr-23 Reparspread 666600 5556.00 flepa+3pread 1o,000.Co 10,000.00
Flaaling Interest Kate; Rapayatia [ st hart yearly [mslalments Mar-26; Rupo-Spread 5,000.00 500000 ° ° °
Flonting Inters sl Rate; Repayan'e bnbwa cyual annea 26 Nepassproad 10,000.00 19,200.60 . R R
|tnstaiments
Hoalin" Inlerast Kate: fepayakie In sk agual half yeary g 26 Repostpread 15,000.00 15,000.00 _ -
Flaating interest Rate; Repayatile fntwo equal anaual Mar-28 fepaespread }5,000,00 15,000.80 . R R
nstalments
95,197.63 94,164, 74,826.30 3z 500.00
tnler corporala depasits
Fiued Interest Rate; Repayatile at Matuilty
Jun-21 - - - 450 EALIES ] A 0000
Apr-33 5.22 52859.18 5,000,800 460 5,064 64 5,000
5,269.18 5,000,00 12,136,519 32 000.00
Cash credlt fram hanks
Fixec [nterest Aate; Repayable in a Slagle Inttalmant
Jun-22 - - 7.25 188265 7,900.00
Sop-132 - . 730 3,894.45 2,900,50
Mar-23 T.ES - 7.20 1787534 17.900.00 - - -
17,8754 17,960.00 | {17710 3500150
Commercial gapar
Repayahie at Maturily
Apr-22 - - - 4.95%0 4.58 62,452,431 2, 500,00
May-22 - 440 £4,737.45 E5,000.00
Jun-22 - - - 420443 1,131,593 R2 1.12,500.00
Jul-32 - 4.3 tn 440 &S 485.10 A7,500.00
Mg-22 - - 4210 4.55 36,931.44 37,5308.00
Sep-12 - 4.55 24,522.41 5,000,00
Le22 - - - 46516474 0, 509.67 32,500,00
Naw-22 - - Af2 - .
Noy-22 - - - ATt04.72 47 1EG.GTF A2, 500.00
Dec-22 - 409 21.799.35 1,500.00
Jan-23 - . - &84 3370241 35,000.00
Anr-23 530 - 740 51, 46540 57,500.00 - -
May-23 5.53.7.40 54,606,356 5500000 - -
Jun-23 5.60 31,151.84 31,5000 - -
Jul-23 6.77-719 55,528.40 56,500.00 -
Aug-23 6.8-79% 48,805.39 50,000,003 - - -
Srp-23 7.10 4,077, 14 £0,000.00 - -
0Oct-21 7.30 24,537.60 25,000.00 - - -
Jan-24 185 -7.00 7R,704.10 #3,500.00 - -
fahr-24 295-8.00 3247495 40000, 1} - - -
4 46,031.38 4,59,000,00 5,69,958.95 5,78, 504.00
Loans recayahle on damand fram banks (WCDL)
Fixed Interest Rate; Rep ayahie in 3 Sngle Instalman,
fay-21 - A76 4,72 30,000.00 30,0000
Jun-22 - - - 4.7810 225 30,400,00 343300
lun-23 745 . 8.20 14,200.00 Id,mﬂ[_l'_ o - -
{A} 14,400.00 14,400.00 £0,400.00
Haating Interest Rate; Repayable in aSingle butaiment .
May-23 I TS pread 39,4950.47 40,000, - - -
May-23 M TN a5 pread 20,000.00 200, DKL -
lun-13 3M TDHOSpraad 10,003.89 20,000.00 -
Jak-23 IM TeRteSpread 30,4564 30,B00.00 - - -
ftig- 23 Nepas spraad 40,000.00 ALK
) 1,50,000.00 1,50,000.00 - -
tatal Laans repayahla on demand frem banke LA 8] | 1,64, 40000 1.,54,4_0050-] A0, 40000 50,400,008



KOTAK MAHINGRA FRIME LIRUITED

Hates v the fitandal statements as at and for tha vear anded March 31, 2023

TAR @mounts v INR WRRS, uniess otherwise stared]

Naore 17 BEPOSITS

. Asal Asal
particutars March 31, 2023 Wiarch 31, 2622
At Amertised Cost
(I From gthes
Lonsn rapasits Li7.49 145,51
Tatat 177.48 145.01
Naote 18 3UDGEUNATED LIABIEITIES
- As at Asat
Paploulars, narch 31, 7073 Maseh 3, 2022
At Amtortiscd Cost
{Hedeemahle Man-Carvertitla Bebentuess (Unsecured) 14,276.15 19,557.44
Tatal (A} 14,376.15 19,557.54
svbandingted labilitles i indla 14,326,153 15,557.84
Suttortinated itabiiitbes sutslde Indla - -
Io\ai 8} 14,376.35 18,557.84
Mote!
Tarms af repayment schedufe of subiardinatad Hatdlit:
As at March 31, 7023 As a1 March 31, 2023
Tnstrument swith ragaymant terms Matusity Date interest Rata Carrylag Fact Value Interesl Hate  Carrylng amowat  Fare Value
Rango $4} amoint __Range Ju}
| Ble Nen-& b : Dk
Fiwed Inberest Rate; Repayebie at hatunty
Related partios:
Sap12 . . - Wy 2,637.43 2,500
Jun-23: 1.5 411632 400003 lid:3 4,116,212 4,000.00
Dec-27 B.I% 10,279.53 FUAL L AN E] 8.25 11,259.94 10,000.00
(Gthars:
san-23 . . - 9.3 2,545.19 2,500.00 |
14.175.35 14,400.07 19,557.84 38,000,090




KOTAX MAHINDRA PRIME LINMITED

flates to tha financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts in INR lakhs, uniess otherwise stoted)

Nate 13 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars

. -Asat

| March 31,2023 - -

Asat
March 31, 2022.

{2} Employee benefits payable 1,063.79 802.43
{b) Advances received against loan/lease agreements 5,144.09 8,864.82
(c} Lease Liahility 1,852.25 1,256.82
Total 8,060.13 10,924.08
Note 20 PROVISIONS
particulars - - .- Asat Asat. -
rercuans March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{a) Pravision for employee benefits
{i} Gratuity {refer note 41 (i} A} 158.42 -
{if) Compensated absences {refer note 41 1) 138.84 531.44
{iit) Stock appreciation rights {SARs} [refer note 42 {ii}} 292.05 146.81
{iv} Long Service Award (rafer note 41§} 60.24 74.78
{b} Others
{i} Contingencies {refer note below} - 2.00
{1} Provision against jegal cases 158,94 -
{iil} Provision against un-utilized fimits on leans 64.23 56.33
Total a72.7} 811,96
Note ;
{ajlii} Compensated absences
' CAsat” oo b Asat - .
Particulars ' March 3t,2023 | .March31,2022
Opening balance 531.44 498.44
Additional provision recognised during the year - 3354
Payment/ Reversals during the year {392.60) 10.54)
Clasing halance 138,84 531.44
{a)liii} Stock appreciation rights {SARs)
- Asat . oo Asat o

Particulars -

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Opening balance 146,81 158.70
Additional provision recognised during the year 188.33 112.14
Payment/ Reversais during the year {43.25) {116.03}
Clasing balante 292.05 146.81
{a){iv} Long Service Award
oot  Asat . Asat
aricuals March 31,2023 | “March 31, 2022
Opening balance 74.78 70.57
Additional provision recognised during the year - 15.56
Payment/ Reversals during the year {14.54) {11.35)
Clpsing halance 60.24 74.78




{b}i} Detaiis of provisians for contingencies

The Company has made provision for disputed liabilities refating to customer claims with respect to repossessed
vehlcles and ather matters based on lts assessment of the amount it estimatas to incur ta meet such obligations.

Pé&iculérﬁ'- - ‘Asat .. . Asat
- - -~ March 31,2023 '] March 31,2022
Opening halance 2,00 2.00
Additienal provision recognised during the year - -
Reversais during the year {2.00) .
Closing balance - 2.00
{ii) Provision against legal cases

' S Asat Asat.-

Particulars

- March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Openlng balance

Additional provision recognisad during the year 158.94 -
Reversals during the year -
€lasing balance 158.94 -

MNote 21 OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Péﬂicu!ars.' o

Asat
March 31, 2023 -

As at .
March 31, 2022

Statutary duss payable 1,619.1¢ 1,487.39
Other liabilitles 4,343 .50 -
Total 5,962,69 1,487.39




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Matas to tho flnanclal statements as at and for the year anded March 3, 2023
{AH amounts in fNR lakhs, unless otherwise stoted}

Mota 22 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

3 A at | cAsat
Porticulars Merch 81,2023 | March 35, 2022
thutharised; -
5,060,000 (Mareh 31, 2021: 35 00,000} rquity sharas of Rs.10 each with voting 350.00 354.00
20,00,000 {March 31, 2021: 30,030,008 redeemable prafarenca sharas of Rs. i I00.050 3G0.00
gE0.00 f50.00

{ssued, subscriftad and fully pald up
34,495,260 {March 31, 2021: 34,95,204) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully pald up 34852 349,52
with voting rights

&, Reconcillation of number of shares ding 2t the heginning and at the end of the year !

. - Cparedlas - - " 1 Mo.ofshares | Amaunt
Faulty shares of Rs 11 each, fully pald-up
As at April 1, 2011 34,855,200 343,52
FAdd/fless) : Movement during the year - -
As at March 31, 2022 14,95 200 349,52
Add/fless) ; Mavement during the vear - -
As at March 35, 2033 34,958,204 145.52

b, Rights, preferences and restriclions ablached to equity shares
11} The Faquity shares of Bs. 10 each, futly paid up have equal vating rlghes.

{1ij Aght to receive dividend as miay be approved by the Board / Annual General Meeting,
[§1) The equlty shares are not repayable except in the case of 3 buy back, reduction of capitz| or winding up In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

{iv} Every member of the Company halding equity shares bas & Aght to sttend the General fMeeting of tha Company and has # shght ta speak and on a show of hards, has one
wote if he Is present In persan and on a poll shall have the right to vote ln proportion 1o his share of the pafd-up capitat of tha Company.

tv} :n the event af tiquiddation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitied to recelve remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferantial
amcunts, The cistributlon Wil be In propartion to the number of Equity Shares heid by the sharehalders,

¢. Detalts of shares held by halding campany and its subsidiarl
— — -

Az at March 31,2023 o As at March 11, 2022

articulars |Number of shares % Holding_ iMumber.of shares % Holding

Equity shares with voting rights

¥atak Mahindra Bank Linited, the holding company 13,82 800 51.00% 12,87 A0( 51,008
Ketak Sacurities Limited, subsidlary of the holding company 1712 608 &9 D% 17.12,600 49.00%
3#,?5,100 ASGO0%1 33.95!200 100.00%

H
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KOTAK MAHINDRA FRIME LIMITED
Notes to the financial statoments as at and far the year ended March 31, 2023
{Al arounts in INP fakhs, unless atherwise stated)

Note 22 EQUITY SHARE CAFITAL

d. Details of shares held by each sharehobder holding more thar 3% shares In the company

[ : R 'P'anl'culén': L |~ AsatMarch 31, 2023 S As at March a1, 2022
Lo - Numbar of shares % Holding Number af sharas % Holding

Equity shares with voting rights
¥otak Mahindta Bank Limited 17,482,600 51.00% 17, 82,600 51.00%
Kotak Securitles Limited 17,131,600 49.00% 17,132,600 49.00%
34,95 200 100.00% 34,95 200 100.00%
. Dlscinsures of Sharehaiding of Pramotess - Shares hald by the Promoters:
o L . I As at March 31, 2023 © ' Asat March 31, 2022. "
: Prumotﬁr: r.'m_m o No. of Sharas | %af tolal ahares | - No. of Shares %of total sharas
Kotak Mahindra Bank Lmited 12,82,600 S1.00% 17,823,600 51.00%
Kotak Securitles Limited 17,12,600 49.00% 1742 600 49.005
34,95,200 | 100.00% 34,85 200 100.00%

{. Shares reserved for [ssue under aptions and cantractsfcammitments for the sale of shares or dislnvestment, intiuding Lhe terms and amounts : NIL

. Apgregale nuinber and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to cantract without payment being received In cash, Aggregate number and class of shares sllotted as

fully paid up by way of honus shares, and aggregate number and class of shares bought back during the parlad of five years immediatoly preceding the dale as at which the
Balance Sheet is prepared: NIL

h. Dividend on egulty shares:

?aﬂkﬁiars R B ) . Asat Loy Asat .
- L .- . | March 31 2623 | March 31, 2022
Dividend pald for the year ended March 31, 2023 174760 1,398 08
1,747.60 1,394.08

Praposed dividend on equity shares

The Roard of Directors recommended a final dividerd ef Rs S0f- par equity share for the financial year ended March
31, 2023 [March 31, 2023 - 13 50/ per share). The payment Ts subject ta approval of the sharehalderss in the ensulng
Annual general meeting of the company, and If approved would result 1n 2 cash sutflow of approximately s

1,747.60 1akhs. Flnal dividends on equlty shares are recorded as a llabliity on the date of approval by the
sharehalders.

i. Compam“;?bjeckiues. policles ard processes for managing capital - Refer Note 44.
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{OTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED

Notes te the financial statements as at and fer the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 23 OTHER EQUITY

Particulars T Asat. As;at_' .
S March 31, 2023 " fdaech 31, 2022
Special Roserve Ufs 45 1C of the RBY Act, 1934 1,60,507.63 1,41,557.02
Securities premium 53,075,168 53,075.16
Capitasl redemption reserve 100.00 100.00
Generat reserve 182.54 182,54
Capita! contribution from parent 500.81 41718
Retalned earnings 6,25,765.18 5,51,757.30
Debt instruments thraugh OC (1,220,098} 186.14
Equity instruments through OC! 1,84,664,G3 1,77,121.41
Total 10,22,574.37 9,24,396.75

Note 23.1 Nature and purpose of reserve

Special Reserve ufs 45 IC of the R8T Act, 1934

This is a Statutary reserve created In accordance with section 45 IC[1) of the RBI Act, 1934 which requires the Cempany to transfer a
specified sum {not lass than 20% of its profit after tax} to Reserva Fund basad an its net profit as per the prafit and loss account.

As per Section 45 1C{2} of the R8i Act, 1934, no appropriation of any sum from this reserve fund shall be made by the NBFC except for the
purpose as may be specifled by RBI.

Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can he utilised only far limited purposes in accordance
with the provisions of section 52 of Companles Act, 2013.

Capital redemption reserve
As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when company purchasaes its awn shares out of free reserves or
securities premium. A sum egual to the naminal value of the shares se purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve,

Ganeral reserve
Tha pereral reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from Retained Earnings for appropriation purposes, As the general reserve

is created by a transfar from one eomponent of cquity to another and Is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the
general reserve will not be reclassified subsaguently to profit or loss,

Capitai contribution from parent

Capltal contribution from parent represents fair value of the emplayee stock option plan. These option are issued hy parent company
"Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited"” to the employee of the company,

Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents surplus/accumulated earnings of the Company and are availebie for distribution te shareholders.

Reht instruments through QC1
This comprises changes in the fair value of debt Instruments recognised in other comprehensive Incame and accumulated within eguity. The
Company transfers amounts from such component of equity to retained earnings when the relevant debt instrumenis are derecognised.

Equity Instruments through QL1
The company has elected ta recognise changes in the falr value of certain investments in equity securities in other comprehensive income,
These changes ara accumtulated within the Equity invastmants through OCl reserve.

4
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KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED

Naotes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 23,2 Other aquity movement

- . Particulars

March 31, 2023

As at

_ Asat
Mareh 31, 2022

{1} Speclal reserve

QOpening halance

Transfer from retalned earnings
Closing balance

{li} Securities premium
{ili) Capitai redem ptlon rasarve
{iv) General reserve

[v] Cagital contrlbutian fram parent
Opening balance

Addition during the year

Closing balance

{vi}) Retained earnings

Opening balance

Add: Net profit for the yaar

Less: Remeasurment {gain}/loss on defined benefit pians
tess: Transfer to special reserve

Less: Dividend [including tax} on equity shares

Clasing balance

{wii) Deht instruments through OCl

1,41,557.02 1,22,062.94
18,950,61 19,494.08
1,60,507,63 1,41,557.02
53,075,16 53,075.16
100.00 100.00
182.54 18254
417.18 397.92
83.63 19.26
500,81 417.18
5,51,757.30 4,75,134.51
94,753.08 97,470.40
{46.95) 44.55
(18,950.61} {19,494.08)
{1,747.60) {1,398.08)

6,25,765.18

§,51,757.30

Opening balance 186.14 {73.67)
Additions/(deletions) during the year {1,407.12) 259.81
Closing balance {1,220.98) 186.14
{viii) Equity instruments through OCI

Opening balance 1,77,121.41 1,63,321.50
Additlon during the year 7,542.62 13,799.91
Claslng balance 1,84,664.03 1,77,121.41

ot
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KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED

Notes ta the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
Al amounts in INR fakhs, unless otherwise stoted}

Note 24 INTEREST INCOME

For the year ended March 31, 2023 -

For the year ended March 31, 2022

R A T * | O Finaricial Assets | On Financial Assets | ‘?“ F-m?p.:-.mlm.sfﬁ |- -7 . ::10OnTFinancial Assets | On Financial Assets o“ .memmal.As-ets . L
. Particulars - N ) ] . ) classified atfair | . . 1T T -| dlassified at fair i
SR 1 ‘measured at measured at fair -} - J 7 Total - .. measured at measlired at fair | e fit CoTetal o
Amortised Cost | value through OC1 value through pr:oﬁ_t R " Amortised Cost | value through OCI value .t!-.graugh .pro ‘ -
- S - orlass - : I orloss .

{i} Interest on loans 2,53,331.92 - - 2,53,331.92 2,19,216.76 - - 2,19,216.76
{ii} interest income from investments - 24,607.15 - 24,607.15 1,918.98 19,834.44 - 21,754.43
{iif} Interest on deposits with banks 263.35 - “ 263,35 623.15 - - £23.15
{iv}) Other interest income
- On inter-corporate deposits - - - 5.17 - - 5.17
- Gn Lending through Pass through
Certificates (PTC} 1,231.03 - - 1,231.03 50.82 - - 50.82
- On Staff loans 5.92 - - 5.92 4.85% - - 4.89
- On CBLO deposits 1.98 - B 1.8 2.57 - - 2.57
- On CBLO {ending 1.240.24 - - 1,240.24 636.98 - - 636.98
- On Certificate of deposits 331.72 - - 331.72 - - - -
Total 2,56,406.17 24,607.15 - 2,81,013.32 2,22,460.32 19,834.44 - 2,42,294.76

e




KOTAK MAHINGRA PRIME LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All omounts in INR lakhs, unless atherwise stated)

Note 25 FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

Particulars Fortheyear ended | Forthe year ended
ariicuia Co . . i
. - March- 31,2023 - March 31, 2022
3
Foreclosure charges 4,629.39 3,714.46
Dishonour fees 4,807.01 4,106.58
Stamping charges 1,704.38 1,140.10
Others 3,338.96 2,416,10
Total 14,479.74 10,977.24

Note 26 NET GAIN ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES
éarticuiars . “For the year ended | . For the year.ended

AR " March 31,2023 7" " Mareh 31,2022
{A) Net gain on financlal instrurnents at fair value through profit or loss
On trading portfolio
-Investments 1,296.54 5,518.08
-Derivatives 1,160.58 -
Tatal Net gain on fair value changes (B) 2,457.12 5,518.08
Fair value changes:
-Realised 1.564.75 6,173.53
~Unrealised 892.37 [655.45)
Tatal Net gain on fair value changes (C) 2,457.12 5,518.08

Nate: Fair value changes in this schedule are ather than those arising an account of acerued interest income/expense.

Note 27 OTHER INCOME

Particulars ©

For the year ended

For the year ended. -

March 31,2023 - fMarch 31,2022

Net gain on derecognition of property, plant and equipment 32.13 18.45

Provision for contingencies no langer required 376.32 21.08

Exchange Gain on translation of farelgn currency loan {382.87} 204,06

Miscellaneaus incame {3.32} 1,567.56
income from alternate investment capital fund 264.39 -

Tatal {317.85) 1,811.15

<




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
(AN amounts in INR fakhs, unless otherwise stated]

Nate 28 FINANCE COSTS

; For the year ended Far the year ended -
Particulars _ March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
On financtal Nabilltles measured at amortlsed cost
interast on borrowings {other than debt securities)
- Term loans and working capitat demand loans 8,202.86 5,781.40
- Inter corparate deposits 307.1% 458,76
- Cash ¢redit and overdraft 193.85 155.26
- Cammaercial papers 25,748.33 24,037.26
Interest on debt securities
- Non convertible Debentures 81,037.23 64,450,83
- Deep discount debenturas - 245.30
- Nifty linked debentures 1,300.60 1,131.19
Interest on subordinated llabilities 1,565.25 2,425.12
Interest expense on lease lability 124.23 92.74
Other interest expense - 1.37
Other borrowing costs 244,34 229.66

Total 1,18,723.88 99,038.88

Note 29 NET LOSS ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES
particulars : For the year ended Far the year ended .-
R . March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 .
{A) Net loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit ar loss
On trading portfolio
-Darivatives® - 550.58
{B) Others - -
Tatal Net loss on fair value changes (C) 590.58
Fair value changes:
-Realised - -
-Unrealised - 590.58
Tatal Net loss an fair value changes (&) - 590.58

includes MTM |oss an Embedded Derivative of NIL and MTM Gain on Cross Currency swaps of Rs.1,186.93 lakhs

Note: Fair value changes in this schedule are other than these arising on account of accrued interest income/expense.
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KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Motes to the flnancial statements as at and far the year ended March 31, 2023
(AN orguits in INR fakhs, unless otherwise stoled)

Note 30 {MPAIRMENT ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Partlculars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the vearendcd—|
March 31, 2022

On Financial Instrumients measured at falr vaiue through CCI

(i) Investments {20.92) 1144,35]
On Flnancial instruments measured at Amoertised Cost
(i} Loans 14,029.34) {10,605.14}
{i#) Investments {h11,16) {102.13)
(M) Other financlal assets {10.20) {a.38}
Total 14,671.72} {10,855.99}
Note 31 EMPLOVEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
For the year ended For the year ended
Partlculars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salartes and wages 26,285.94 19,722.38
Contributian to provideat and other funds 1,661.46 1,286.91
Share based payment to employees [refer note 42 [II]} 238.8% 140.5%
Staff wealfare expenses 799 88 61417
Gratuly brefer note 41 fil} C} 24061 176.35
Total "19,226.78 71,940.40
Note 32 DEFRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Depreclation of property, plant and equipment 1,020.89 626.28
Depreciation on investiment property 45.31 4533
Amartisation of iIntangible assots | 203,35 112,15
Totat 1,269.55 7B3.76
Mote 33 OTHER EXPENSES
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
fower and fuel 382.61 27119
Rates and taxes 6,147.20 3,938.11
Repalrs and malntenance 1,811.67 1,062.05
Insurance 17.67 47.20
Communication casts L0017 AL0,34
Travelling and conveyance 1,166.97 687.65
tegal and Professlonal charges 4,091.31 7,333.18
Printing ang stationery 628,16 434.03
(fflce expenses 419.23 319,12
Commaon establishment expenses - Reimbursements 1,440.00 1,358.78
Advertisernent and publicity 802.23 273.67
Expenditure on corporate social responsibtlity {refer note 38) 1,859.96 1,579.00
Director's fees, altowances and expenses §7.33 61.30
Auditor’s fees and axpenses {refar note 37} 1456.23 130.05
Data processing 132.00 a5.60
Expenses relating to shart-term leases 1,082.20 F16,00
Provision fog Mark to Market on derlyatives (424.35) -
Miscellaneous expenses 1,8¢69.62 1,735.64
Hayalty Expenses | G51.H8 641.08
Total] 27,822.05 21,154.88




KOTAK MAHINDORA PRIME LIMITED

Kotes to the financlak statements 33 at and lar the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts int INR fakhs, unless atherwise stated}
Nobe 34 TAX EXPENSE

{a) Amounts recagnised In profit and loss

A

- Far the year . Far the year
Particuiars - _ended ended -
March 31, 2023 | MMarch 31, 2022

Current tax expensa
Current year 28,678.00 28,265.42
Change in estimates related to prlor years - -
Tatal current tax expense (A} 28,678.00 2B, 265.42
Deferred Income tax Hability £ (asset}, net
Origination and reversal of temporary diferences 3,644.85 4.169.14
Ceferred tax enpanse (B) 3.644.85 4,169,19
Total tax expense for the year (AJ+(8) 332.332.85 32,434.61
{b} Amounts recagaised in ather compre henshve incame

o -l - For the year endad March 31, 2023 For the year ended Margh 31, 2032 - -

particulavs " Bafore tax Tau (expense) | Netofeax Be_.fa_r_e.taxj Tak {enpense) Net 9_f ax -

B beneflt - | benefie
itemns that will not be reclassified to profit of loss
fa) Remeasuremants of defined benefit abllity f [asset) {62.80) 15.81 {46,95) £0.53 {14.98} 44,55
(b} Equity Instruments through ether comprehensive income 9,495,822 {1,857.20} 7,542.62 F 17,574.33 13,774,417} 13,793.92
Items that wili be reclassified to profit ar inss
{a) Debt instruments through other camprehensive income {1,480.37) 473.2% {4,400.10) 347,18 {B7.38} 259,81
Tokak 7,556.65 {1,468.14) 6,086.51 ) 179,981.05 !358?6‘18| 14,104.28
{c) Reconcillatlon of effectiva tax rate

S S - Far the year ended For the year ended
. Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
: Amount % Amount %

Profit hefare tax as per Statement of profit and loss 1,27,075.93 1,29,505,01
Statutory tax rate 253.168% 25.158%
Tax using the Company's statutory tax rate [B) 31,982.47 32,694.4%
Tax effect of;
Effect of incomes which are taxed at different rates 130.07} {0.02%) 1379.15) [0.29%)
Tax effects of amaunts which are not deductible for taxable 490.64 0.39% 43842 0.34%
Income
Effect of divicand income taxed under Section 80M [130.92} 10,10%) (304.,53) {0,23%)
Lasses on account of fair valuation of inyestmert for which no - - [16.33) [0.01%]
deferred tax is recognlsed
[Shart} f Excess provislion for tax 10.73 0.01% 171 §.00%
Total tax expensa 32,322.85 25,4363 3243461 24.3683%
Current tax 28,678.00 J8,265.42
Deferrad tax 3,644.85 4,169,193
Tatal tax llabillty 32,322.85 32,434.61



KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LMITED

Nales te the financlal stalements as a and for 1he year ended March 31, 2023

{AN amounts Jn INR laktis, dniess othenwise stated)
Naty 34 TAX EXPENSE [Canlinued)

{d} Movarment in deferred 1ax balances

Walance as at

As at March 11, 2623

Recognised In

As at March 31,2022

Recognized

Balance as at

Partlculars ] asat’ din lsed |  Balanta 33 2t
ARril 1, 2022} - praflt ar loss 1n &6 March 31, 2623 | Aprll 1, 1021 | profitor loss 06 March 34, 2022
Deferrad tax assats (ot}
On difference between book balance and tax halance of 3468112 8.58 3,689.70 370872 {28.61) - 3,681.12
Praperty, plant and equipment
Fair valuation of investmently 17L32) 234,79) 467.99 171192 1516.54] 569.34 123,71} [F.30
Impzirment lzss aflowance 13,821.37 {3.855.65) 5.27 9,970.49 17,951,857 {4.206.53) 36.33 13,821.37
EIR impact on “nancial assets meastred 3t amortised cost 12.467.20) 199542} - 3458.50 11,832.19) {635.01) - [2,467.30]
EIR ‘mpact or financlal Hakillthes measured at amortlseq [G4.20% (112.c8) (176.28] 1176.26] 11206 (64.20]
cost
Employee penefils - 1581} 15.91 - - 14.98 [14.98) -
Provislan for compensated absences, pratulty and other 18717 {0.09) - 157.67 155.94 [:E - 157.77
lernolavee benelits
Falr vaiuatien of depheative finznclal Insteument 64,18 (87.18) .02 49,33 14,85 - 54.38
impact of ind AS 116 3158 1.25) - 30330 ILn 0.171 31.55
Other temporary diffeences [11.95} 1,604,748 1592.84 - [11.95) - {1195}
Total 1514531 {3,644 84) 289.07 1138584 19,412.90 14,169 20) {102.36 15,141.32
- As at March 35, 2029 Ag ot March 31, 2022
Partloulars Balanse asat. | Rasapnisedin | R ised. | @afanceasat | Bl asat | Recogalsed In | Recognisad | Balanca as at.
: Apell 1, 2022 prodlt er foss Clnag) - Maech 31,2023 | April 1, 2021 | profit or loss in 0cCI March 31, 2022
Doferred tax Babilities (Net)
Falr valuallon of investments 48,980,13 - 1.057,20 50,947.34 4521572 - 37141 48,8990.13
Total 48,990.13 - 1,952.20 50,247,34 45!2 15.72 - 377341 48,9%0,13
1

The Company offsels lax assels and liabliltles i and only il it has a kegally ¢nfarceable right {0 set off cusrent tax assats arc current tax [ablltthes and the daferted tax assels and defarred tax lakilities

refate 1o Income 1mors |ovied by the same tax authority.

Significant maragement judament is cequired In datermlnlng preelclon far ineame 1ax, deferred eome tax asseks and Habi [Uzs and recoverablfity of deferred Income tax assets, The recoverabiity of
delesred incame fax assate b based on estimates gf taxabla Incama kv which the relevant entity eperates and the periad ayar whizh dafesved Income tax assets will be recovered,

{#} Taw Balances

R T Asat Asat -
Parﬁmfa_rs X March 31, 2023 Ma_rth 31, 1022
Current tax assets [Net) 11,163.28 4,405.27
{Met of provishon of March 31, 2022; R5.345,155.93 lakhs,

Mareh 31, 2022: Rs.1,56,455.07 lakhs)

Current tax fablites [Het) A,292.08 681143

{Met of advance tax of March 31, 2003 Rs. 338,284.74
lakhs, Marck 31, 20#2: Hs. 95,102, 14 lakhs)

!
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KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LEMITED
Nofes to the financial stataments as at and lor the year ended March 31, 2023
{AH amaunts in INR lakbs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 35 EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE

Basic EPS s calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributabte to eguity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstandlng.
during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion af all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity

shares,
st No. " Particulars For the year ended | _ For the year ended
) o March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A} [Net profit attr|butable to equity holders 94,753.08 97,470.40
B) |Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Issued ordinary shares at the beglnning of the year 34,95,200 34,95,200
Effect of shares issued for cash
Walghted average number of shares at the end of the year for basie and diluted EPS 34,35,200 34 95,200
C) IFace value pershare iRs.) 10 10
D} (Basle and Dliuted earnings per share {Rs.) 2,710.05 2,788.69
ALY
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KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITEDR
Notes to the flnancial statements as at and far the year ended March 31, 2023
fAll amaunts In INR fokhs, unless atherwise stated)

Note 36 Cant/ngent fiabilities and commitments (to the extant not provided for}

: Asat " As at
SrNo g Particulars March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

Cantingent lizhilitles:

) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt in case of suits 482,53 721.90
filed by customer/s with respect to release af repassessed vehicies and
related matters, The Company had prefereed an appeal against the same
with State / National Consumer Dispute Redressal Forum,

b The Cornpany has received a demand [net of provision) on compledon of 1,006.73 208.44
Income tax assessment. The sald amount is disputed and the Company
has preferred an appeal agalnst the same,
Assassment Year Ag at As at

Bdarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

2013-14 183,49 190.49
2014-15 53,72 53.72
2015-16 4302 49.02
2016-17 5.21 5.3
2020-21 541.69 -
2021-327 166.6¢ -

e The Company has recelved VAT assessment orders far financlal years 546,58 946,58
2008-08 ko 2017-18, The Campany has preferred an appeal against the
The Company is confident of successfully defending the demands and
does not expect any outflow on these counts.
Other Comittments

al Farelgn Currency Term Loan 12,500.00 55,000.00
Balance Capital Commitment in Alternate Investment fund 5€,901.27 -
Total 71,437,11 86,505,092

Note 37 Payiment to auditors
: Lo _Forthe year ended | Far the year ended
Srhe L Particulars ) Marc:n, 2023 'Marchv:1, 2022

Payrnent to the auditar as:

a) Audit fees 140.00 124.00

L] For other services 6.23 5.05
Total 146.23 130.05




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LMITED

Notes to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

{Alfamounts In INR fakhs, unfess otherwise stated)

Mate 38 Corporate Soclal Responsibility (CSR)

The Company’'s CSR program is associated with the CSR Inftiatives of Kotak Mahindra 8ank Limited [KMEL), Its holding comzany. K¥MB8L is builglng its CSR
capablilties on a sustainable basis and the Company |5 committed o gradually increase s CSR spend in the coming years. As per the provisians of the Section

135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required 1o spend Rs.3,849.65 lakhs durlng the year on C5R activities,

Details of CSR expenditure

e S For the year ended | For the year ended
Srilo Partlculars ' Mg@ya:. 2023 | marcha, 2022
a) Amount required te be spent durlng the year 1,849.65 1,578.95
b Amount spent duting the year
) Constructionfacquisition of any asset 93,96 -
i) Om purposes other than {i) above 1,196.3% il42.81
o} Cumulative unspent amount at the end of the year 924.91 935.51
) Contrlbutlon to Wekchardt Foundation 558.00 403,00
[E1]] Contribution to Pratham fducation Foundstion 412.00 284,70
{i} Contribvtion ko Kotak Education Foundation 0.0G 139.99
{iv) Cantrioution ta Muktugan Educatian Trust 125.00 134.00
v} Contribution to {mpact Gury Foundation 100.00 -
v} Cantribution to Azad Feundation 21,00 -
(i) Centribution ta Swami Vivekananda Yauth Movement - 2.50
[wlid) Contrihutlon to Smile Faundation 5.40 -
fixy Cantribution ta Rotary Club Of Banjara Hills Charitable Trust 15.00 -
[x} Contributicn to Rotary Chib Of The Nilgirls Charitable Trust 10.00 -
(i) Cantrlbution to Others § 43.95 -
Accural towards unspent obligations in refatlon to:
-Ongolng broject 602.20 514.81
-Other 1than ongaing project
Total 1,832.55 1,572.00
Amauik raquired to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 1,349.65 157900
Amaunt approved by the Board to be spent during the year # 1,892.55 1,579.00
Amaunt spent during the year an
(}} Canstruction / acqulsition of any asset 93,96 £6.00
{H] On purposes other thar (i} above # 1,196,39 1,513.C0

# costs Incurred on administrative overheads and impact assessement

Y
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KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Motes ta the flnanclal statements as at and lor Lhe year ended March 31, 2023
(AN amaunts in INR lokhs, unfess otherwise stoted)]

Details of ongoing CSA projects under Section 135{6] of the Act

“Balante as av1 Apt) 2022 w00 Balance ag at 31 March: 2023
- {In Separate ¢Sk L7 lin Separate €SR
JUnapent account: : Uiispent account [With Company .- uUnspent account = |
340.70 - - 232.00 - 10B.70
420.80 21401
- - 1,848.60 1,246.40 B02.20 :

#The same has been depasited subsequent to Lthe Balance Sheet date an 27th Apri), 2023,

Detalls of CSH 2xpenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act in respect of other than engeing prajects

| Amount spentd

I.Il'in” Lo
P8I unspentagat
v 31March2023

Dretails of excess C5R expenditure under Section 135{5] of the Act
T mBnmeces | Amowntiequvedio

-Balance excess

. spentasat’i’’
oo | A1 Mareh 200y
1,892.55 43.14

kst during
theyear

0.24 1,849,865 | 7 .




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Motes ta the financlal statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Al amounts in INR fakhs, unfess otherwise stofed}

Nota 39 Aelated Party Disclasure

Related party disclosures, as required by natified ind AS 24 - 'Related Party Disclosures’ are given below:

A. Rames of Related Parties

{b

-

fe)

Holding Company
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited

Mr. Uday S. Kotak zlong with his relatives and enterprlses in which he has beneficial interest halds
25.95% {Previous Year 25.08%) of the equity share capitai and 17.26% of the paid-up share capital of
Katak Mahindra Bank Limited as on 3ist March, 2023

Feltow subsidiary
Kotak Securitles Limited

Fellow subs!diaries with whom transactions have taken place durlng the year:
Katak Mahindra Asset Management Company Limited

Kotak Mahindra Investments Limited

Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited

Kotak Mahindra General Insurance Limited

Kotak Mahindra Capital Company Limited

Katak Investment Advisors Limited

BSS Microfinance Limited

Other related parties

Entities in which individual having significant influence In the Company { relatives of such individual
have significant infivence

{1} Aero Agencies Limited

(i} Phoenix ARC Private Limited

Sr.-|Particulars Proportionof
Na, ownershlp interast
{a) |Cantrol exlsts:

51.00%

49.00%

fe}

{

Key Management Persannel and Dlrectors

Mr. Womesh Xapasi - Managing Director

Mr. Ravi Venkatraman - Independent directar

Mr. Chandrashekhar Sathe - Independent directar

M3, Akila Urankar - Independent directar

Mr, Shahrukh Todiwala as Additlonal Whaletime Direcator (w.e.f 6th September 2021)

Relative of Key Management Persannel and Directors
Mrs. Behnaaz Todiwala (Spause of Director)

B, Transattions with refated partles

Transactions with key management persannel
The table below describes the compensation to key managament parsonnsd which comprise direciors ard executive officers untder Ind AS 24:

la] Kay manzgement pe_rsnnnel compensation®

Sr. bParticulars Far the year anded for the year ended
No - March 31, 2023 March 31, 2622
. |Shart-term employee beneflis 39112 249,57
ii. |Other Contribution te funds 17.44 12.02
ili. |Shared-based payments** 41,82 61.84
iy, |Sitting lees 8733 64,30

* The above figures do not include provisions for encashable Ieaué_anj'd
** SARS consldered based an actual payout during the year

¥
(%

gratuity, as separate actuarial valuation are not avaitaile,




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Notes to the Rroncizt sfatemants a5 at and o7 the yrar endad March 33, 2023
{AY amaunts in iINR fokhs, unfess othensise stated}

Nate 39 Ralated Party Olscloure [Conlinued)

li1 Transactions with related partles

Mature of Transaction Yoar ended Holding Fellow ather related Kay Management | Relatlve of ey Tatal
March 31 Lampaty Subsidlaries Partias P | M.
Fersanpel
Nan Canvertible Debenlures Redeemed 023 3,500,060 7,900,050 [ . - 11,400.00
2z - 24,000.70 - - 24,0003
Nan Convartiple Gabentures sued oy 41,960,73 4,40L85 - - 35,361.59
iz 20,000,008 - - . 10,000.00
Nifty Linked Debentures issued 0 - - - -
2022 B B . . }
tnvestment bn lnser Corgorale Degusky W23 - - - -
027 - ERLLERL ] - - 5,000.04)
i ol ir Tn bter Carp Dogosit 013 . . i B
02z - 9,000.00 - - 5,000,003
tHerrowed by way of Inler Corparata Deposit FLiPx] - - - . .
wnn - 49,600.00 - - 49, 000.00
Repayment by way of Inler Carporate Depasit 2023 - - . - .
2072 - 49,000.00 - - 49,000.00
Term loan repald 2023 ’ 82,502.00 - - - 23,5020
iy 4,13,500.00 . - . 4,23,500.00
Tem: luat taken 073 30,002,00 - - - 80,0000
2023 4,13,500.00 - . - 4,13,500.00
Cammlssion recelved In advance 033 - 10,83 - - 1083
PP - [14:11] - - 030
Diyldand an Equity Sharas FiHE] A91.30 BLG, 30 - - 20,000,00
022 71304 684.04 - - 20,000.00
|Dlvidrnd Income an Equiby Shares W03 - 1,115.00 - - 1,215.00
Flerk] - 26400 . . 864,00
I recefved an Term Deposils plirs} 26197 - - - 26197
022 596,53 - - - T496.53
Referral fees recaived 2033 LW . - - 21426
022 €8.06 - . - 64.068
Yee basedincong 023 . 907,39 - . 957,39
FlE Y] - BD.00 - - i L3¢ 0]
Rant received 2023 593,51 5.63 - - 593,14
FLk] 59268 4,60 - - 597128
Sgrvicer fees on Secutitsabion tansaction 02y - . - - -
w 000 - - - .00
Interest on Cash Credit 0 9.85 - . - 4.8
W27 1254 - - 13.54
Inerest Expense on Imler Cargcrate Deposit 2023 - - - . -
2022 - 9.04 . . S
[Interest lncame an Inter-Corporate Deposld 2003 - - - - .
1021 Do - 5.17 - - 517

=




KOTAK MAHINDRA FHIMLE LIMITED

Maies te the £fnznedial statements as 2t and far the year ended Mareh 21, 2623
tAH amaunts in INR Jaxhs, urless otherwise statedf

Mote 39 Belated Party Dsclosure [Continwed)

b} Transactions with related pariles

Natura of Transactian Year anded Helding Faltow Other relalwd Hey Management | Relative of ey Takst
Mareh 31 Company Subisldlaries parties Persannet Managament
Faroana|
Forex Froft/ Lass Detlvatives 2023 i07.81 - - 10788
011 178.07 - 178.07
Brakszags pabd 2023 - 301 . .01
1012 - 9.4% - 9.49
Irseress on dagendures pald 021 5,709,862 L4727 F,136.8%
vy 5,018.16 123647 75463
ERayzity pald 023 RS1AA - - 651,84
022 541,88 - - 641.88
TS service chargos & Bank charges 023 23456 - - 234,96
Wk £65.58 - G6.58
Dalta Process'ng Expensas 2023 - - - .
Wz 9304 - 95,04
Lomngn Establst t - Acmpursed Filirad 1,482.18 128,40 1,620,658
2022 142879 128,40 1.557.19
Arranger Fees nald 2023 .49 - - 145
w22 - - . )
IPA Zaes paid 2013 2,60 - - 100
022 158G - FALY
Tarm Inan lnterest 023 353.29 - - 353,73
w021 4.0HH2.51 - - 4,602,941
Rent paid plirk] 4LH .37 241038
022 FATI 0,39 FELN:
Referral fewy paic Fli74) 1,740.57 341 - 1,743.08
plirF] 445,14 2.45 - 447,59
insurance Premlum pakd 2021 - 13514 135.14
2012 - 63,53 - . 8353
Diemat Charges pakd 023 5,19 [1X+38 - 0.20
1022 03¢ 701 32
Tiavelting exnernge 33 - - -
P{ir s -
Expense relmhursernants by other company 023 6.05 401 - 4.6
1022 944 451 13.96

6




KOTAK MAHINORA PRIBE LINITER

flotas to the finanetal stalemants as ak and far the year ended March 31, 2023

Al emaumts in INR lokhis, unfuss oifieradse stoled)
Mute 39 Related Party Disclasnre (Continued)

I} Transactlons whh retated parties

Nature of Transactlan Year ended Holding Fellow Qther related ftelativa of Hey Tatal
H Mareh 31 Company Subsldiaries partles Managament
Personnel
Exgensa rejmk 1o other company 2001 - -
082 £75.03 J08 #7511
sement ta Gther Camparny - Employes transfer 2623 45.35 - 4335
2022 451 .30 - 1431
telmbursement by Gther Campany - Employes kransler W03 3.40 0.24 - 3.64
002 10,41 0.24 20,65
E to Other Company - Purchase of Assets 1023 191 1.81
10612 19.12 1%.22
feimbursement by Other Company - Sabe of Assels briivs ! - 242 - 0.42
WL 011 - 483}
Prafesslanal charges w3 - . - .
2022 - - - -
Cantr butlon towards gratulty fund 1013 - . .
1022 - - 139.00 129.00
Intorest income er detentures 023 - 203473 - 203478
022 - 1,604 .24 - 1,604 .84
share based payment 013 - - -
222 . R B
Won Convertible Debantures Invested vl . -
2032 &,500.93 - 5,300.00
Term Depasits Placed 2023 - - - -
Wik 10,40,410.39 - 10,40,410.50
Tern Jepusits Rodoamad 023 - -
wrr 10,40,936.49 10,40,935.49
ESOP Jost 20723 42,55 - - 22,55
2022 9.2 - - 3.2
Profit amarised on Securitisation transaction 1013 - A -
2z oL - .01
Unamartised Froflt on Securliisation ransaction 02 - -
iork) - .
Interest receivable on Term deposits {net of TDS) piir] 31 - 031
RLir e hies] - 0.09
Interest Acesued Gecelvest e an CIRS [RS FOIRS FRA 03 2.28 - - 2328
022 - . . .
IncemefExpense on 05 deal 2003 B.44d - - £.44
W22 - . -
Inceme On CRS 2003 1,004,23 - - 106424
2022 . - - .

ot




KOTAK MAHENDRA PRIME LIMITED

Mates to the Hauncinl staterments as ak and for the year ended Merch 31, 2023

fAll amourts in INR fafils, ueless otherwise stoted)
Note 35 Ralated #Farty Disdosure {(Continoed)

(b} Transacttons with related parties

Nature al Transaclian Year ended Holding Fellow ".Otl-l;!-r relatod
March 31 Lompany hsldlarles parties
Interezt Payatle FLFPE] 205 - -
piirrs -
Arranger Fecs/IPA Fees facelvable 023 2.43 -
e - -
Interast ncome an Loan-ehnaaz Todiwa'a plivE) - -
T - -
Fayable tawards {nt. Co. assel Transler 2523 - 0.49 -
2042 - . -
Nan £ ifle Dakeatt | 1 2023 26,3000
2022 - 21,700.00 -
Sarvices Charges On TWL Payakla plexk] - &0.90
200 - -
Sarvicas Charges On TINL 2023 56.38
2022 -
Dulstanding batances
Unamartized Brokerzge 23 . -
2022 75100
Term |aan from banks 2073 53.482.87 -
20a2 54,805,235
Bign Conviertitde Cabentures 2073 1531, 158,05 4,385.00
2322 i01,214.06 2,026.58
Subordinated et 2023 - 14,376.1% -
2022 - 17, U0B.64
Trade noyables 2633 1,29¢.90 127.81
2022 53109 2007
Payacls on acceunt of Sacuritisation 2023 -
ez 0.17
Ilarnat charges payab e 023 0.0 .01
Flory) 021 a1l
Forward Urreatlsed psyatle on Crass cureacy swap 2023
2022 - - -
Degosils 03 2.10 12582
2022 AL 3947
Bunk Balunce in Current/O0 Account 2023 30,664.39
e 20,731.35 -
Pregaid expensa / Advances 2023 - 84,54
2021 - 118 74 -
Hecelvables plirs) 18067 263 25
wne 133.00 4585
Investmeant 0 equity [nshruments 023 - 231,597,727 15,47 145
2022 - A3, 43650 11,802

Key Managament

Relative of Key

Parsonnel

Total
2035
.43
0.54
[HE]
26,300 00

21,700.00

60,30

56,38

751.00

53,482.8%
114,805.35

155,513.86
103,340.64

14,376.15
17,000 Fd

1,426,711
G210

0.17

D.08
nza

Jas02
319.52

30.664.19
20,735.35

#4.54
15824

54103
178.85

245,028.77
235,528.94




ROTAK MAHEURA FAIME LIMITED
Hotes te \ha financlsi stataments as at and for the year snded Masch 31, 2023
(Al vmrgrends [n IR Tzkhs, wnless atherwise siated)

Noke A9 Related Party DIsclosurs [Cantinued)

{b] Transaetlons with rafated porties

Natura of Transactian Year ended Holding Fellow oiher related Kay Management | Pelative of ey Tokal
March 31 Company Subsidfarles partias 5 | Ik
Parsonrel
tntarcaporate Ceposit Balance 2023 - - . .
: Az - - . - N
'nterest hecrued on ‘nlercorporate Depsil 023 - - - - -
222 - - . .
Imyestmant in debenturas 023 . 26,894.85 - - 26,894 85
plirbl - 71,95343 - - 2185343
LCommizsian Receivad In Advance(liabillty) 2023 - 016 - . 016
2022 : - 0.31 - - g3t
Cepltel contribiutfon fram parent 2623 30081 sooat
plirr 4i%.13 417,18
Forward Unreallsed payable an IR5/FRA/LCY-Banits 023 91260 - . - $12.60
20k 38213 . - - 18212
SecLrilizaticr Partiolls sold cutslanding Amaunt 023 - - - - -
2022 B.43 - - - B4
Term Depusils § b argln Deoosits Outslanding 013 58.10 - . - 4810
Mk 16,35 - - - 1635
Car Loon oulstanding W23 - - B &.42 -
2 - - - 817
ation Lo kay rmar {4 Fivrk] - A . a53.18 450,38
022 - - - 171,64 323.44
Of balance sheet items
Derbvatlvas (IRSE Pay - Crs Trading Contingant 2023 23,507.87 - . - 13.507.87
031 55,000.00 B - - 55.000.00

* Excludes provision for grotoity ond compansated ghsences, since it s based an actuario! valuotion done ort an averadf basis,
*Heloted Porty transaciions ore eecluding impacts af €14 ond ECL effects

[d) Terms and condltfans of transactions with refated parties

The Iransactlons with related partles are made In the narmal course of business and on terms egulvalent to thase that prevall i arm's tength transacuans. Cuistanding balances at the year-end are
unsecurdd and setthement ceeuis in Lash. Lo

.@éi/




HKOTAK MAHENDARA PRIME EIMITED
Nates ta the financlal statements a5 at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al gmounts in INR lokhs, unless otnerwise stated)

Note 40 Leases

Qperalng lease as jassea;

t  The Company leases office premises/branches, The average lease term s 5.15 years, The lease terms include renewsl opilon after ewplry of
primary lease gerlod. There are no restrlctions Imposed by the lease arrangements, Thedfe are escalatlon clauses in the jease agraements,

1 Asalesses

Progerty, plant and equlpment’ com prise awned and laased assets that do not meet the deflnitton of Invesiment property.

Part|eulars Naota As at As at
March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022

Praperty, plant and eguipmant owned 10 1,599.00 274127

Rlght-of-usn assots 10 166217 1407299

The Campany leases assets including prembses. informatlon about the leases for which the Campzny 15 a lessee Is presented helaw:

Right-of-use assets

= OHice Premises Totad |
Batance as at March 31, 2021 #66,15 866,15
Additlons § {Disposals) for the year 51%.44 51%.44
Depreclation tharpe for the year [311.81) (311.81)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1072.78 1,072,758
Additlans / (Disposals) for the year 98074 920.74
Depreciatian charge ‘or the year (39135} {392.35)
Balance as at March 34, 2023 1,662.17 1,662.17

Additions to the right to use assets Suring the year 2022-23 is MR 980.72 Lakhs [2021-23: INA 521.45 lacs)

Lease liabilittes

The Company has prescnted lease Rabilltles within *Other financlais flabiyitles'.

3 Amounts recognised In profit and loss

For the year ended

For the year ended

Margh 31, 2023 Macch 31, 2022
Intarast expensa an lease liabRitles 124.23 92.74
Expense relating Lo shosl-Llerm leases 108220 Fe.09
4 At 3% March 2023, the Company has nat cammited far short-term leases [31 March 2022 - NILY.
$  Amounts reccgrised in statemeant of cash flows
The tatal casl outflow for loases ameunt ta INR 529.22 Lakhs {31 March 2022- 1NR 437.62 Lakhs].
8 Matur|ty analysis
Asat As at
202 March 31, 2622
Cantractual undiscounted cash flows
Mar later than § year 53231 400.50
Latar than 1 year and not [ater than S years 1,171.08 AR3 AL
Later than 5 years 509.89 198.45
Tatal undiscounted lease labllitfes 2,232,328 1,452.80
Lease liabilities included in the balance sheet 185225 1,256,492
Current 44426 327.05
Hon-current 1407.99 529.77 E

The Company does not face a significant Hquidity. risk with regard to lts lease llabilities. Lease llabllities are monitored within the Company’s

treasury function, R
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KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Notes to the inancial statements as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2023
AN omonnts n IR lakhs, unless othervidse stated)

MNota 40 {eases

7 Shertterm leases and Leases of low value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilithes for shart term leases ol afflice premises/branches that have a
lease term of 12 manths or less, The company dees not have any leases of low value assets. The Compary recognlses the lease payments
assoclated with thase leases as an axpense on a straight line basis aver the ¢ass term,

Elnance Leasa as tessor;

The Company is Ik the business of wehlcle financing. The Campany enters Inta lrance laase agreaments ranging betwaen one to five years.

The recancillation between the total gross Investment in the lease at the halance sheet date and the present value of minimum lease aayments

recelvahia at the halance sheet are as fallows:

Particulars As at As at

Marech 31, 20193 March 31, 2032

Grogs rental receivable 1B.271.63 13,346.30
less: Unearned finance income f 3.434.46 714234
Net prasent value of rental 14,837.17 11,198.41

Rentat Aecelvable on finance Lease:

Partlculars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Gross rental Mt present valua of Gross rental Net present value of
receivable rental recelvable rental
Less than one year 6242117 4,632.00 5,243,218 4,264.04
Betwaen one and five yaars 12,850.46 10,205.17 8,047,682 6,994.37
Present value of rental 1827163 14,837 17 13,346.30 11,198.41
The faltowing tallle contains other relevant disclosures for finance |eases as lessan
Particulars As at As at|
March 31, 2023 !
166.67 115.21

Accumnulated allowance for uncollect/ble minimum lease payments
rerelyahle - L

F




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the yaar ended March 3¢, 2023

(AR amounts In INA lokhs, unfess otherwise stated)

Nate 41 Employes Banelits

The Company cantributes 1o the following post-empiayment dafined benefil ptans In lndia,

(i} Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company makes Provident Fund contributions to Recognized Provident Fund for employees. |he Company is reasticed to contribuce a specified percentage of the payrall
costs to fund the benaflts, Tha Comgpany recopnised Ks. 1,661.46 lakh (March 31, 2023 : N5 1,286.91 fakk| for Provident Fune contributions In the Statement of Profit and Loss,

i1y Deflned Beneft Plan:
Gratuity :-

The Company accaunts for the llabillty {for future gratuity benefits based an an actusrfal vaiuation, The Company contrlbutes ta a Gratuity Fund adminlstered by trustees and
managed by Xatak Mahindra Life Insurance Company dimited, feilaw subsldtary. The net present value of the Company's abligatian towards the same |5 actuarlally determined

based an the projected unlt credit method as at Balance Sheet data.

A, Based an the actuarisd vakuatlon obtained In this respect, the foliowing table sets out the status of the gratulty plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's

flnanclal statements as at balance shect date:

Asat
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2023

Fair value of glan assets {B)

Prasant value of funded deflned benaiit obligation iA)

Met fagsat] f Hability recognised In the Bafance Shaet {A-B)

1,427,539 1,341.4%
[1,269.17} {1,433.00}]
158.42 (81,64}

8, Movement |n net defined benefit fasset) {lability

The foilowing table shows a recanciliation from the apening balances to the clostng batances for net defined benefit (3sset) / iahility and |ts components:-

Delined henefit abligat!

fair walue of plan assets

Met defined benefit {asset]/HabiHty

Asat As ar As at Asat As at As at
Mavch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 1,341.45 1,179.11 1,423.09 1,213.83 [a1.64) {34.77)
Included in profit or loss
Lurrent servica qost 25111 183.03 - - 25111 18302
Interest cost §income) 42,27 67.22 43.37 74,02 {10,509 {eR0y
1674.83 1,425.36 151586 1,287.90 is8.97 141.96

Included [n OCI
Remessurement loss f (gain:
Actuarial foss / {gabn) arlslog from:
Demcgraphic assurmplicns 13.17 - - - 13,17 -
Financlal assumptions {43.64} {158 - - {43.64) {1.58)
Experience adjustment [16.43} 39.40 - - {16.43) 39.40
Actual raturn on plan assets fass interest on - - {109,69) 9735 109,59 {97.35)
plan assets

[46.50) 37.32 {109.63) 9735 62.79 {59.53)
Qther
Contributions made by the empleoyer - - 76.44 171.07 {76.44) [7L.07
Beneflts paid [213.44) {13323 {213.44) {133.13) - -
Labllities assumed f {sett/ad)* 1310 7.50 - - 13,10 1.50
Clasing batance 142759 1,341.45 1,269.17 1,423.03 158.42 {81.64)
Represented by
Net defined benefit asset - -
Net daflned banefit llability 158 42 {R1.64)

158.42 (81.64)

* On account of inter group transfer

P




KOTAK MAHINDAA PRIME LIMITED .
Notes to the financial statemeants as at and for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023

AN amoints in INR fakhs, unless otherwdse stated)

€, Eng gnised |n statel of profit and loss
For the year ended Fur the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2027
Current service cost 251,11 183.03
Interest on net defined benefit llabliity / {asset) 110.30) {6.80)
2d0.01 176,23
O. R ts recognised in other comprak ve income

For the year ended  Far the year ended

March 31, 2033 March 31, 2022
Actuarial Joss / {anin) arising fram;
Financia] assumptians (43,64} {1.58)
Dermographic assumptions 13.37 -
Experiance ad|ustments {16.43) 39.40
Actual return on plan assets less fnterest on plan assets 105.69 {97.35)
62.80 (59.53)

E. Disagpregation of Plan assets

A split of olans asset hetween various asset classes as wall a3 segregatian betwaen quoted and unquoted vatues Is presented bie aw:-

Ag at March 33, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Quated valus Unguctad vaiue Quoted value Unquoted valye

Insurer managed funds - 1,169.17 - 1,423.09

- 1,266.17 - 1423.00
Composhion of Planped Assets

As at As at
e of Instruments
Tve March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Equity 12% 7%
Gaverrment secutities 9% 21%
flonds, debentures and other fixed incoma 6% 3%
mstruments
Money market instrements 3% 11%
Others 0% 0%
Total 100%' 3100%

F. Oelined henefit obligations

|. Acturar|al assumptions
Tha key actuarial assumptions adepted for the purpases of this valuation are pluen below:-

Asat As at
March 3%, 2023 March 31, 2022
Dlscount rate (p.a.) 7.30% 6.70%
Salary escalation rale [p.a.) ¥.00% 12% untit 1 year

inclusive, then 7%

il. Sensitivity analysls
Gratulty Is a lump surn pfan and the cost of providing these benefits |s Lypically less sansillve Lo smad changes In demographlc assumptions., The key actuarizl assumptians to
which the benefit ohligation results are particulacly sensitive Lo sre discount rate and future salary escalation rate. The following table summarizes the changa in defined henefit

obilipatlon campared with tho reported defined benefit ubligation st the end of the reporting paried arising an account of an incresse or decrease in the reported assurnption
by S0 basls points.

As at March 31, 2023 As at Margh 31, 2022
Increase Duagrease Increase Dacrease
iscaunt rate (S0 bps movement) [34.48) 316.20 143.23) 46.45
Salary escalation race (S0 bps movernent) 25.08 {24.96) 33.63 (32.84)

These sensitivities have been caloulated to show the movement In deflned benefit sbligaton In solation and assuming thera ara no other changes In market condltions at the
accaunting date, There have been no changes frum the peevious perlods In the methods and assumptions used In praparing the sensitivity anaiyses,

¥




KOTAK MAHINORA PRIME LIMITED
Notes to the financial stataments as at and for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023

{A amounts In JNR takhs, uniess otherwise stoted)

G, Risk Exposura
The defined benefit plans expose the company to risk which are discussed below;

Assat Volatility - The plan Rabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with referanea to hond yelds; if plan assets underperform this yiele, this will create 2 deflelt, Mast of

the plan asset investments 1s In fived income securitles with high grades and in governmant securltles, These are subject to Interest rate risk and the fund manages intorest -ate
#lsk with derivatives to minimlse risk lo an acceptable level,

Changes In kond ylelds - A decrsase In bond yletds will Increase plan liahltities, although this wlill be partiaily offset by an increase in the valua af the plans’ bond noldlngs.

H. Funding arrangements and pailcy

The mopey coptributed by the Company to the fund to Bnance the liablites of the plan has ke be Invested, The trustees of the plan have cutsourced the investmant
management of the fund te an Insurance company. The nsuranee company in turn manages these funds as per the mandate provided b them by the trostess 2nd the asset
allocation which Is within the permissible limits preserlbed In the Insurance reguiatlons. Due to the restrictions in the 1ype of Investments that can ke held by the fund, it is not
possinle ba axplicitly follow an asset-|ability macching strategy to manage risk actively.

Thare is no compulsion on the part of the Company to fully pre fund the YabHity of the Plan, The Company’s philasophy ‘s to fund the keneflls based on Its own [Iguidity and tax
pasition as well as level of under funding of the pian,

The expected contribution pavable to the olan next vear is INK 160 [akhs,

Projected Plan cash dlow:

The table below shows the eiprcied cash {low prafile af the beredits to be pald ta the currant membership of the plan based on past service of the employeas a5 at the
valuatlon date.

Maturity profile Asat As at
March 31, 2033 Mareh 31, 2022
Expocted benefits for year 1 316,84 225.93
Expectid banafits for yaar 2 268,02 1SL.E6
Expected heneflts for year 3 216.85 165.18
Ewpected benafits for year 4 14598 143.14
Expected henafits for year 5 and above 1,258.08 1637216

The welphted average duration to the payment of thesa cash Hows is 4.95 yeaes (March 31, 2022; 6,95 years).

I, Accumutated Compensated Absences

FThe Company provides for accumulated compensated absences as at the batance sheet date on the basis of an actuarial valuation, The Company recognized 3s. (335.47) lakhs
{Previous year ; RS, 33,54 lakhs) for Compensated Absences in the Statement of Proflt and Loss,

J Leng Service Award

The Company providas for long service awards as at the balance sheetda_lte an the basls of an actua+al valuatien using the prejected unit cradit methed conducted by artuary
of Life Insurance of its fallow subsidiary. - :

&
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Kotak Mahindra Prime Limived
Notag Lo the finarcial statements for the vear endhed March 34, 2023
TAK pmownts in INR fokRs, unfess otherwise stated)

Mote 42 Share-based payment artangements:
A Description of share-based payment armangements
L Share agption plarns (#apity-setthed)

At the General Metings of the hoicing company, Kotak Mahindrs Bank Limiteg, ["the Bank™), the sharenplders of the Bank had uranimousky pasted Special Resalutions on 5th July, 2007,
Pt August, 2337 and 29eh June, 2015, to grant options 6 the elipible emplicyess of the Bank and its subsidiaries and assaciate companies. Pursuant to these reselutions, The following
Emploiyees Stock Option Schemes had been formuiated and adagred:

[a) Xatak Mahindra Eguity Option Scheme 2007; and

149} Katak Mahindra Equity Dotion Scheme 2015
Further, pursuan: to the Scheme pf Amalgamation of ING Vysya Bani {iVBL} with the Bank, the Bank has renamed and adopied the £50F Schemes of the erstwhile VL, as given befow:

[2) Komk Mahindra Bank, Lttt [IVBL} Employees Stock Option Scheme 2007
[} Kutak Mahindra Bank Ltd. [[¥BL} Employee Stock Option Scherne 2010; and
Ici Fotak Mahindra Bank Ltd, (IWEBL) Employees Stock Option Scheme 2613

“The fair valge of the vpllon is getermined using 3 Black-Scholes aptions pricing model.

in pursuance of the aboye refared Emplayees Stock Oplich Schames, the Bank has granted stoek oplions to emphovees at the Campany. AS par thg reguiatony guidaing, the Bank has stared recovering fair walue compures as per Black-Schakes
methad for all steck Bptions granted aftar 335t March, 2021 In accardance with the SEB] {Share Based Employee 2enefits and Swest Equity) Begulations, 2021 and the Guidarde NoTé on “Accoursing for Employes Share-based payments” issued
by The institute of Chartsred Accountants of Indie, the intrinsic value [for cpiions granted on or betore 315t Margh 2023)/ Tair value of the option is amorlised on a siraight-ling basis over the vesting period. The Company has reimbursed the Bank
s 22,55 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 9.19 lakhs) uring the year on accuunt of suoh costs and the same is tofming part of Employee cests and included wnder the hiead “Reimbursernent of expense on ESOP cost” unwer Mote no 23 .2 “Employee
bengfits expense”.

Had the cam pany recorged the campensation cost sompdted on the basis of Far valuation method instead of intrinsic valus method, empioyee compensation cast would have been higher by X 527 bags, (Previous year T 1546 Lacs) ang the
profit after tax would have been lower by % 3.34 Lacs {Previous year % 11.61 iacs). Consequently the basic and diluted EPS would have been % 0,01 per share (Previous Yaar € 0.33 per share).

As at 315t March, 203

Scheme Reference Grant Dare . Method of . no of Share Vesting conditions Contractual Itfe of
2 e Semlement -~ Opliens . Dates . the eprians {¥rs)
. o P " " K ) .
ESQP 2015-14 1B-Way-18 Equity settled - 30% - 1 yrserdice 412

30% - 2 yr service
27% - 3 yr senvice
20V - d yr seriice

ESGP 2015-18 20-Way-19 Equiry setted 1,38 2R - 1 yr service 412
0%, - 2 yr service
20%. - 3 yr service
200, - A M Smpice

FLOpF 2015-25 07-Aug-20 Eqikey sectlad 34 3056 - Lyrservice .50
30% - 2 yr service
20% - 3 yr service
2% - 4 yr spryics

ESO7 2015-20 20-May-21 Equity settled 4,183 | 25%- L yrservice 453
25% - 2 yr service
25% - 5 yr service
25% - 4 yr <rrlie

ESCP 2015-24 10-May-22 Equity seitled 3540 [ I5% - 1yrservice 4.55
255 - 2 yr sarvice
255 - A e service
T8 - 4 v service

ESCP 2015-38 1B-Oct-22 Equity sextled £ 840 255 - 1 yr setuits 4.54
25% - 2 yr service
25% - 3 yr service J
9% o sprice




Kptak Mahingra Prime Limitad

Notes tothe Fingneial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

AN mounes [n INR takhs, unfzss otherwise stoted)

Mote 42 Share-based

A at 31t March, 2022

2o - 1 yr service
2554 - 3 yr service

1050 « 4 ur Spevie

Ak at 31sr March, d022
Scheme Reference Grant Date tuthod of No of Share Vestng condidens f | Contrachual e of
. R Setthement C Dptens - |07 Dawes . - | the options (¥rs)
Atgountine |~ eutstadine 1. e AR
ESOP 201534 1B-hiay-18 Eguily settled 1,764 12% + 1 yrservice 412
0% - 2 yr service
20% - 3 yr service
201%, - A yr service
ESOP 2015-18 20-May-18 Equity settled 3,617 30% - 1 yr service 4,12
0% - 2 yr service
0% - 3 yr sepvice
200 - 4 yr spruite
ESOP 201525 07-Aug-2C £quTy settled 2,073 30% - 1 yr sarvice 380
A0% - 2 yr service
2R - 3 yr sepvice
¥ A ur smpice
L50P 201530 FD-May-21 Equny ettled 4,840 25% » § yrservice 459

B, Maasurement of fair valuss

L Equity-ser|cd thare-based pryment armangements

Ths lair value pi the employes share options has been measured using the Blac<-Scholes farmula. Service anc non-market performance canditions sttached o Lthe ar whede not
taken into acoount in measurng fair value,
As gt 3Est Mar:h' 2023 -
Scheme . Grant Date Vesting pariad £xercise period | Evpected life [Years) | Exertlse Price INR} | Market price RAlsk free mte Asnual Dividend [ . Velatility Fair value per
. : (ypears) . [iyears) : - : {INR) yield share options
ESDOF 2015 14 18-May-18 128 .50, 145 127100 1,770.70 FA4%| O.DE3 13,588 184 53
]ESOP 2015-14 18-May-18 A5 51k 271 127100 1,270.70 7% 0.06% 33.95% 383.29
ESOP 2015-14 18-May-13 3.12 [ 337 127100 1.270.70 T87% 0.06% 32.13% 43345
!ESOP 201534 18-hay-18 3.E2 .53 3.87 12700 1270.70 FO95 0.0E% 31.43% 4E5.7%
EESOP 201508 20 Miay-19 1.20 A5 1.45 3 4ED.LD 1,460.00 6 63% 0.05% 23.24% 23055
FESGP 2005 14 20-May-19 ZA5 L5 3.70 1,4ED.LC 1,A60.00 6B G055 21.16% 230.83
ESQP 2015-13 20-May-19 3.12 .50 347 TAE0.LE 1,460.00 6.94%, 0.L5% 21.32% 387,39
ESOP 2015-78 20 hAay-18 362 C.50 357 146000 146000 7.03% 0055 31005 SOH. 28
£SOF 2015-25 07-Aup-23 100 050 1.31 1,341.00 1,340.10 3.561% 0.06% 39.75% ?67.17
ESOP 2015-2% L OF-AuE-23 232 C.5C 256 1,341.00 134010 440% D.06% 33.00% 340.57
ESDP 2015-35 OF-Aug- 30 2.80 058 215 1,341.00 1,540.10 4.85% L.06% 30.71% 370.15
ESCP 2015-25 O7-Auz- 2l 3.40 0.50 3.65 134100 3, 540.10 56 0.06% 29395 355,03
ESOP 201430 Sd-hAany-21 1.8 01.50 1.34 1.801.00 =, 20075 & 055 0.05% 41.76% 200,94
FSOP 2315-30 A0-May-21 208 0.50 234 180100 1.800.75 “B5% 0.05% 35.5880 463,38 |

IQOP 2015-30 33-May-21 3.3 asd 3.34 1 5051 0 1E00.75 5.13% G05% 31.78% 54516
ESOP 2L 5-30 S0-hay-21 403 050 434 1.301.00 1800.75 5.53% 0.0%% 29.80Ks G04.04
ESOF 201534 1d-hday-22 1.36 [ReA)] 131 178800 176750 SFEX 0.06% 27T 2GEEd
ESOP 20115-34 Mgy 22 .08 .50 231 1. 708 1K) Lr6/l.50 6.37% G.05% 35 855 451 85
ESOPF Z015-34 10-May-22 3.08 0540 3.31 179800 176750 7.05% 0,085 33.04% 569,44
ESOH 20116-34 A0-May-22 4008 0.5¢ 4,31 L1798 1.767.50 TI6% 0.08% 31405 654,77
EOP 2015-39 18-0cr-22 1.0& 0.50 128 1834 0 13858.1% 701X D065 26.775% 315.30
LSO 261538 18-Oct-22 2.04 .50 248 1.834.00 LESE.S V.IE% D065, 2B.10% 4259
JESGP 2015-3% 18-0c2-22.. 3.0 (hSE 323 183400 155815 73Mm 0.06% 33.60% 53394
- FESGP 201539 18-Det-22 4.04 Q.50 .29 1,834.03 185835 1.52% 0.063% 31.756% 12138

o




Kotak Mahindra Prin Limited
BMokes to the tinancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2623

Al emerunts in INR fekhs, unless sthanwice stated}

Note 42 Share-b2sed payment arangements:

R at 315t March, ZD22
Scheme Grant Date Vesting perind Exsicise period | Eapecred Ofe (Years) | Exercie Price INK} | Markear price Risk fres rate Anoua Bividend Valatility Fairvalue par

) : - [years) - fyanrs) - - s X {INRJ ) yield: share options
ESDP 2015-14 1B-May-18 1.23 050 145 127100 127370 T ALK 0.063% 18.58% 184 60
ESOP 3315-14 1B-hiay-18 2.46 05! M 1,271.00 127070 FEd% 0.06% 32.95% 383.33
ESOP 2045-14 1B-May-18 312 .51 3.37 127100 1, 230.70 F.57% G.08% 33.13% 43345
ESCPI015-14 A&-May-18 352 K 3.87 1,271.00 1,270.70 7.99% 0.08% 31.a3% 465.70
ESCH 2015-1% Z0-bAay-18 320 050 145 1.460.00 148000 5.63% 0.05% 23.24% 23035
ENDIP 3015-12 Si-hlay-iY 245 0.50 .70 1,460.00 1,450.00 E.B3% 3.0%% 1.1p% 330.89
ESOP 301513 F-may-19 312 .58 337 1A60.03 146000 5.094% 0.05% 21.32% 387.19
ESOP 2015 19 20 hay 19 352 050 3187 1,460.99 1,460.00 F.L3% D.05% 31.09% S0E 28
ESOP 20018-2% O7-Aug-20 1.407 .50 1.31 1245300 1,340.10 3.61% 0063, 3975 267.12
ESOF 2015-25 D7-Agg-20 232 150 .56 134100 1,340.50 4.40% U.06% 11.059% 34057
ESOP 2015-2% O7-aug-20 2.9 050 3.15% 13a1 00 1,2340.30 S HSH [.OB% 307iw IF1.15
ESOP 2015-75 OF-Aug-20 ER 0.50 365 134100 1,3a0.10 5 OES| D.06% 29.23% 395.03
ESOP 2015 30 30 May 21 1.0 G50 138 180108 120075 4.05% 0.055% A270% a0.84
ESQOP 2015-30 30-May-21 pL:} 0.50 236 1LEELGE 1 800,75 A.65% 0.05% 35.50% 46358
ESOP 2015-30 2i-May-21 .09 0.50 3.34 3,801 .00 1,800.75 5,135 D.05% 37.78% 545.45
CS0P 2015-30 Jo-tay=-21 4,09 0.50 4354 1 80100 1,800.75 4. 53% 0.05% 249 80%, A08.04

The following fablz lists the verage inputs o the medels used for the plans for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars

Gescription of the inputs used

Expected dividends

Fapected volatility (weighted-average}

Risk-free interest rate {based on povermnment bonds)

Dividend yiefd of the aptians &5 based en recent dividend 2ctivity.,
Fosk-free Interest rates are based on the government securities yield in effact at the time of the grant

Expected volatility of the option 5 based on historical volatility, during a penod squivalent 1o the aplion
I'fe, of the pipserves market grices of Kotak fMahindsra Bank Limited's pubiicly traded equity shares

G972




Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited
MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
fAl armounts in JNR lokls, unless atherwise stated)

€. Reconciiation of putstanding share optiens

Activity in the options outstanding under the cmployee's stock option Scheme a8 st 315t March, 2023

] ] g . As at March 31, 2023 ] As at March 31, 2022 .
Scheme " Grant Date | Ouistanding at| Granted during | Exercised | Net Tramsfer [Lapsed during] Forfeited | Outstanding | Exercisable st | Dutstanding | i | Exercised |MetTransfer| Lapsed Furfe_iizd Qutstanding | Exercisable
) thestartofthe | the year duringthe - | T/{Ow* - | . thevear | dusingthe |atthe end of]the erwl ofthe | atthe starvof | duringthe | duiingthé | Inflou)™ | duringthe |duringthe| atthe end of fatthe end of
; — NEAE : wear _ - " - - - o NEAL the vear year. Ihe vERT wear - Y - Svear Wear the vear the year.
ESQP 2007-44 09-May 14 N . N B . T _ ) . . N N N N -
ESOP 2007-47 09-May-15 B B . . N B B B ] N N B B B .
ESOP 201507 19-May-16 - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
ESOP 2015.03 15-May-16 N _ - _ B . N R B N N
ESOIP 201505 10-Aug-16 N N B B B N B . N B B N
ESOP 201507 15-May-17 - N - - . - 2,080 - {2,035} - - - -
ESOP 2015-14 18-May-18 1,764 - [1.580) 358 {542) . - 9,583 {8,219 - - - 1,764 1,764
ESOP 20135-19 20-May-19 3,617 - [3,225) 1,428 {610 - 1,308 13cH 5,083 - (2,466} - B - 31,617 141
ESOF 2015-25 07-Aug-20 2,072 - {523} 784 - - 2,234 702 2,960 {888} 2,072 -
ESOP 2015-30 30-May-21 4,540 - {740} 570 1537 - 4,133 - 4,840 - 4,840 -
ESOP 201534 10-May-22 - 3,540 - - B 3,540 B - N B
ESOF 2015-38 18-0c8-22 - 2,640 - - - - 8,840 - - - - -
12 253 12,380 {5,967 3,240 {1,791) . 20,155 2,010 21,056 4,840 113,603} - - - 13,243 1,905
“ This rep ts transfer of emplayees withio Bark and ils subsidiaries.

The weighted svesage share price af the date of exercise For stack options exercised auring the year was Rs. 1,833.43 {Praviaus year: Rs, 1,820.21).

The details of exxercise price for stock options putstanding at the end of the year ase:

31-Mar23 31-Mar-22
Weighted |- . . Waighted -
: - Num'hﬂo'i a4 average Sk .‘.“.'i'g““"' Humber of Average Welghted
. ESOP Sthen Range of exrcise " opti _remaining . | average ians remaining [ average
= ™ 1 - prices Rs) o ::f conitractual fife | exercise price n:::n m | conmactuat | exereise
A ng of options (in [Rs.) € | tifq of aptlans| price (Rs.)
. years) . [inyears)
ESOP 2015-05 Ho1-890 - - - N | |
ESO# 2015-07 o0-1000 - - - . - -
ESCe 2015-14 1201-1300 - - - 1,764 0.25 1,270
ESC@ 2015-25 130%-1400 2334 1.25 1,341 45 3,073 160 1,341.00
ESCP 2025-13 1401-1500 1,308 0.25 1,460.00 3,627 057 1,460.00
E30P 201530 1801 1900 4,133 135 1,501.00 1,801.00
ESOP 201524 1761-1800 3,540 .. 3.67 1,798.00 -
£SOP 2015-30 1801-1900 2,840 367 183400 -
Bk

@,':EM,




Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
fAll amounts in INR lakhs, uniess otherwise

ii. Stock Appretiation Rights [cash-settled)

At the General Meeting on 29th lune, 201% of the holding company, Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited, the shareholders of the Bank had passed Special Resolution to grant stock appreciation rights
{SARs) to the eligible employees of the Bank, its subsidiaries and associate companies. Pursuant to this resalution, Kotak Mahindra Stock Appreciation Rights Scheme 2015 had been formulated and
adopted. Subsequently, the SARs have been granted under this scheme. The contractual life {which is equivalent to the vesting period) of the SARs cutstanding ranges from 1.07 to 4.13 years,

As at 315t March, 2023

. . T T Methodof K .| Contractual life
Scheme Reference | - GrantDate™ - “Settlement * No of SA_Rs : \fe.‘stlng cond|_tlo?§ "'of the options -
N S . .-t . outstanding . - ../ Dates - s
. . . . _Afcounting - S s T [¥rs}

Scheme 2015-28 07-Aug-20 Cash settled 492 30% - 2021-22 3.44
{Series 28] 30% - 2022-23
AQ% - 2023-24

Scheme 2015-31 07-Aug-20 Cash settled 11,930 S0% - 2023-24 411
{Series 31} 50% - 2024-25

Scheme 2015-32 A0-May-21 Cash settlad 1,870 25% - 2022-23 4.13
(Serias 32} : 25%-2023-24
25% - 2024-25
25% - 2896

Scheme 2015-40 10-May-22 Cash settlad 12,520 25% - 202324 4.10
{Series 4Q) 25% - 2024-25
25% - 202526
5% - 207 8-27

Scheme 2015-51 18-0ct-22 Cash settled 2,730 25% - 2023-24 4.08
(Scries 51) 25% - 2024-25
25% - 2025-26
29% - 202827

ary
-
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¥otak Mahindra Prime Limited
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

fAlf amounts in INR lakhs, unless athenwise

As at 31st March, 2022
. U _Methad of o . oo | Contractuad life
Scheme Referénca | -+ GrantDate - - Settlernent  No n.fsg_Rs_ o \f‘.'_e:stfng c?r.\dlt.mnj; ‘of the options |
S I outstanding -] | { Dates
2015-22 {Series 22} 20-May-19 Cash settied 1,644 30% - 2020-21 36E
30% - 2021-22
AQ% - 202223
Scheme 2015-28 07-Aug-20 Cash settled 858 30%-2021-22 3.44
{Series 28} 30% - 2022-23
40% - 2023-24
Scheme 2015-321 07-Aug-20 Cash settled 11,930 50% - 2023-24 451
{Series 31} 50% - 2024-35
Scheme 2015-32 A0-May-Z1 Cash settled 2,310 3586 - 202223 4313
{Series 32) ' 25% - 2023-24
259% - 2024-25

25% - 202528

B2




Kutak Malkndrz Prime Umited
Nates o tha Ananclal statuments for the year anded 335t ifarch, 2023
SAN ermourts n INA fakas, uphess acherwdie sieted]

Thet [air wal ces were caltulatsd sipg a Wack-idve @5 horl el The lapuss were as fallows;

As at 313t March, 1013

L B Vesting gerlod Expacted Wagvears) | oo | Welthled | Bk leee sate Annual . Volaiy - -Fairwalaeper sk
S R ) e » ardte . )
... Schema drant Bale Pa—, aurrapge Blvidend .
o fram | . Ta From Yo shacaprkee | from To | vk fom | To Fram To
ichaeme J015-28 {Serle: 28) T/-Aug-20 L ¥E) 4.3 035 0.79 - 172105 L% 73234 GOE% 1363%)  1eaid| §UlE ] 5,710.77
Schame 201331 {Surles 311 07 du 30 a4z 146 b4 145 - 10105 716 731% LARY 15.00% AL 1,719.44 1,770 59
Serles 1015-32 {Serles 1) 3% May-2L oIS Ly 015 214 - LTias 004 Iriw 006% 1,718.53 1,700 3¢
Scherpa 2015-40 {Series 40} li_l-M ay-11 1.1 RS 017 1.1 - L7zLus 65924 F.29% 0664 1352 | 1At
IS_dleme 201551 [Serlas 51 X 15-0¢4-33 0.5% 1463 L.58 ] 18 - 1321405 7.18% 731% 0.063 L7706 17100
AL at 315t March, 209T
R B T -] Falrwalua per WARs |
- Vestng yitckod Expacied e {¥ears) P Welghied Ak fremrata . | Asnusl Volalily | . )
Shems SrankPala " - Prica AR} awerage s Dhdidend .
t . fHam | Tu Fram Te share prize: From . Ya - ylakd Frem Ta From To 7
Serins 201522 {beries 71 0-May-19 0.3 .25 0.79 - 1,761,400 A% 441 a05% 251 Aneek| coaRae]|  LaERar
Schei-g 2015-28 [Serles 18] 0/-Aug-Hy 1.79 Ga? 1 - LB 4 3 5.C4% L.ous 21555 2954 L6143 1YE250
scher o m sz 146 A 246 - L6340 400% 543% O05%F  FRIEME  sod| 176088F 176182
Fertes I015-32 [Serias 331 A0 p-2 i 0.5 .19 - 1,763.10 397 5.85% __1O5% IT55U JrO24]| L7634 17536 |
Tha faliowing tabla 1sts 1w average nputs ta the models used fon the plans for the pear gnd md Mavch 31, 20235,
Parllealars . L T Deserplion of tha Inputs pied
Exgected velatiizy fwelghted- svessge} Eapecied velatitity of the vptien is based an hlsterkal
o4t Ly, duiing 3 period equlwalant to e optlan Kfe, of the
obsereed market prices of Kotak Mahlodra Bank Lymited's
puhlcly brared = quiry shares.
Expactad rhidenas Nividend yeld af thn aprions 15 based on recant chrdend
bty
Gl Fres mterast ~zta {based fn gousnne ent Rlsk-Free Inverest rates ara based on the goversmant
"honds) seceritlay ylakl o edfect at the tme of the grirt,
[ dilatien ol S1uck A fen Akt fcaakrsutsled)
"~ duat harch 3, 208 ok ; - AL AF Miarch 31, 2092 i
S . " [outstandm] Granted | Sewtwd Het Lapind | Forfelted | Outstanding | Qutstandl | granted | Settted | e Lapsed | Forfelicd - | Gutstanding ax
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KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIRSITED

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

(AN amoimis in INR lokbs, unless othenwise stated)

Mote 42 Finaneial instruments — Fair values and risk management

A. Classification of financial assets and financiad lizbilities:

The following table shows the carrying ameunts of Financial assets and Finencial llabilities which are classified 25 Fair vafue through Profit and Loss {FYTPLY, Fair value

through other coraprehensive income (FVTOCH) and Amartised Cost.

P.articula.rs. . . " "As at March 31, 2023 . N - As at March 31, 2022 . o
. ) FWTPL - RTOCE .| . Amortised cost - Total - . FWTPL FVTOC Amaortised cost Total

Firancial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - Af,198.16 40,198.16 - 22,666.11 22,666.11
Banf{ Balance other then cash and cash . - 80.R3 90.83 - - 44.82 44.82
equivalent
Derivative financial instrumaents 98252 - - 88252
Receivables: - -

Trede receivabies - - - - - 6.47 6.47
Loans - . 26,74,138.24 26,74,138.24 - - 23,09,264.01 23,08,264.01
Investments 34,986.82 4,40,313.59 1,84,146.98 6,58,447.3% 10,002.82 4,37,882.67 2,03,922.92 £,51,908.40
Other Ananciat assets - - 1,752.95 1.752.85 - - 1,307.11 1,307.1%
Total financial assets 35,969.34 440,313.59 29,00,327.16 33,76,610.08 1HL002.82 4,37,982.67 25,37,211.4% 29,85,196.92
Financial habilities
Berivative financial instruments - - - - 3,049.63 - - 3,{49.63
Payahies

Trade Payabies

{i] totat Iautstandmg ducs of nfucrc ~ ~ 160.05 160.05 N ) ~

enterprises and small eaterprises

{ii] toal outstanding dues of creditors

other than micro enterprises and - - 52,452.77 5245277 - - 57,63724 57,637.24

small enterprises
Brebt securities - - 15,17,434.56 15,17,434.56 - - 12,08,416.48 12,09,416.48
Borrowings {Other than Debt Securities) - 7,32,116.06 7,32,116.06 - 7,29,103.98 7,29,103.98
Deposits - - 177.49 177.49 - - 145.01 145.01
Subordinated Liabiities - - 14,376.15 14,376.15 - - 18,557.84 19,5%7.84
Other Financial liabilities - - 8,060.13 8,060.13 - 10,824.08 10,824.08
Total financial lfabilities - - 23,24777.21 | 23,24777.21 3,049.63 - 20,26, 784.64 20,29,834.27

fyr




I
b

KOTAK MAHRINDRA PRIME LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in INR Jakhs, unfess otherwise stated)

Nate 43 Finansial instruments — Fair vaj
B. Fair value hierarchy:

and risk 1 7

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities measured as fair value, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below.

Particulars R -'.A'sat_i_'t_d_?_a_r:hal,za_zs o _ L o . .- As at March 31, 2022 S
S levell . .| tevel 2 .0 o lewetd - Totat © Lewell Level2 - . < Level 3. Total
Financial assets
fnvestmernts of FYTPAL
- Mutual funds - - - - 10,002.82 - - 10,003 .82
- Debentures - 19,972.89 - 19,572.99 - - - -
- Alternate tnvestment fund - - 15,013.83 15,0613.83 - - -
- Derivative financial instruments - G82.52 - 883 52 - - - -
Investments at FYOC!
- Government securities & Thills 1,73,026.07 - - 1,73,026.07 1,79,8231.76 - - 1,79.831.76
- Debentures - 22,258.75 - 22,258.75 - 22,62196 - 22,621.86
- Equity instruments - 2,45,(128.77 - 2,45,028.77 - 2,35,528.94 - 2,35528.34
Total financia! assets 173,026.07 2.B8,243.03 15,013.83 4,76,282.93 1,89, B34.58 2,58,150.90 - 4,47 985.48
Financiat liahilities
Cerivative financial instruments - - - - - 3,045.63 - 3,049.63
Totat financial liabilities - - - - - 3,045.63 - 3,049.63

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabiiities not measured at fair value, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below. it does nat include the fair value information for
financial assets and financial Habilities not measured at fair vaiue if the carrying amount is a rezsonable approximatien of fair value.

r b L o - As at March 31, 2023 . As at March 31, 2022

. articulars — - — -

: : s Levef £ Level 2 Level 3 Total tevel 1 Level 2 - - Eevel 3 Totat
Financial assets

Lozns - - 26,57,358.16 26,57,358.16 - - 21,91,47836 21,91,478.36
Investments - 1,82,B38.60 - 1,82,838.60 - 2,10,481.84 - 2,10,481.84
Qther financial assets - - 170.76 170.76 - - 18674 186.74
Total financial assets ~ 1,82,838.e0 26,57,528.92 28,40,367.52 - 2.14,481.84 21,91,665.10 24,02,146,94
Financial iabilities

Debt securities - 14,66,376.38 - 14,66,376.38 - 12,25,260.51 - 12,25,260.51
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) - 7,30,754.56 - 7,30,754.56 - 7,28,111.72 - 7,29,111.72
Subordinated Lisbilities - 13,424.57 - 13,424.57 - 20,233.76 - 20,233.75
Total financial Habilities - 22,10,555.51 - 22,10,555.51 - 19,74,605.99 - 19,74,605.92

oN—




KOTAK MAHIKDRA PRIME LIMITED
Netes ta the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

{AHf armounts in INR fakbs, unfess otherwise stoted)

Note 43 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
Fair value of financial assets and lahilitias measured 3t amortised cost

S “AsayMarch 31,2023 . .. AsatMarch31, 2022 . ..
o Carrying amount . Fairvalue - | Carrying ampunt Fairwvalue
Financial assets
loans
Vehicle finance loan 22.44,068 37 22,08,21202 17,62.723.43 17,44,160.01
Structured ioan 1,54,108.08 1,51,089.72 3,45,841.80 3,46,490.47
Personal foan 89,271.04 90,585.43 £4,453.54 59,987.08
Cther Lending Activities 1,86,690.75 2,07,500.99 1,356,239 B3 1,38,359.00
Investments
- Debenturas 1,84,146.98 1,83,83R.60 2,03,822.82 2,10,481.84
Other financial assets
- Lease depaosits 21831 170.76 227.64 186.74
28,58 503.54 28,40,367.52 25,13,414.56 | 24,99.675.13
Financial liabilities
Erebt securities 15,17,434.55 14,66,376.38 1203416 48 12,75,260.51
Sorrowings {Other than Dabt Securities) 7,32,116.08 7,30,754.56 7,29,103 98 7,29,111.72
Subordinated tiabilities 14.375.15 13,424.57 19.,557.84 20,233.76
Total financial liabilities 22,63,926.77 22,10,555.52 19,58,078.30 | 19,74,605.99

The carrying amounts of Cash and cash eguivalents, Bank Balance other than cash and cash eguivelent, trade receivables, CBLO lending, lpan to employees
{amounting to Rs. 67.51 lakhs, net of £CL) ,Inter Corparate Daposit, other deposits, other financial assets, trade payables, deposits and other financial liabilities are
considered to be the same as their fair values, due 10 their short-term nature.
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KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Motes to the financial statemerits as 2t and for the year ended March 31, 2023

{Alf armaunts i INR fakhs, unfess otherwise stoted)

Note 43 Financizl instruments — Fair values and risk management
C M t of fair val

The fair value of inancial instruments have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The higrarchy gives the highest priority 1o queted prices in active markets for identical
assets or lizbilities {Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservahle inputs {Eevel 3 measurements). The categories used are as foilows:

The categories used are as follows:

Leval 1 : Level 1 hierarchy includes financdial instruments measured using unzdjusted quoted prices in active méarkets that the Company has the ability to access for the identical assets or lizhilities. A financial instrument is
classified as a Level 1 measurement if it is listed on an exchange. This incddudes traded honds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments {inchuding bonds) which are traded in the stock
exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reparting period. The mutual funds are valued at the closing NAV.

Level 2 : The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active markeats is determinad using valuation technigues which maximize the use of ohservable market data either directhy or indirectly, such as quoted
prices for similar assets and lizbilities in active markets, for substantially the full term of the finantial instrument but do not qualify as Level 1inputs. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are chservable
the instrument 7s included [n level 2.

Level 3 : If one or mare of the significant Inputs is POt based in observable market datg, the instruments is included in fevel 3. That is, Level 3 nputs incorporate market participants’ assumptions about risk and the risk
gremium required by market participants in order to besr that risk. The Company develops 1evel 3 inputs based on the best information available in the circumstances.

The foflowing tables show the valuation technigues usad in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as wall as the significant tnobservable inputs used.

financial instruments megsured at fair value

Instrument type Valuation technigue Significant Inter-relationship between
: unobservable inputs significant unobservable inputs

and fair value measurement

{Comparable Companies Multipie Method: Under this method the value of shares/business of a Mot applicable Not applicable
company is determined based on market multiples of publicly traded comparable companies.

Comparable Transaction multiple method: Under this method the vatue of shares/business of a
company is determined based on market maultipies of publicly disclosed transactions in the simifarn

segment as that of the company being vaiued.
Investment in equity instruments

{Classified as levet 2) Cost Approach : Break Up Value methad has been adapted for valuation of equity shares.

Cne or comhination of the above has been used for valuation of equity instruments.




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All armounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

Nate 43 Financial insty s — Fair valy

and risk ZE

Irwestment in preferance shares
{Classified as level 3]

The fair values have been calculated using the discounted cash flow approach discounted at a rate
Litat reflects the credit +isk of the counterparty.

interest rates to
diseount futire projected
cash flows

Significant increase/decrease in the
discount factor would entail
corresponding chanpe in the

valuation of preference shares,

investment in debentures
[Classified as level 2}

The falr values of untisted Debr Securities have been calculated using the discounted cash flow
approach. The discounted rates are based on the rating and residual tenure published hy Financial
Benchmarks indiz Private Lirmited (FIBIL).

Not applicable

Not applicable

Derivative financial instrument (Classified
as level 2}

The fair values have been calcufated based on discounted cash flow model. The discount rates are
based on tepure specific OIS {Dvernight index Swap) rate as published by Financial Benchmarks India
Private Limited (FIR}!Y

Not applicable

Not applicable

Financial instruments net measured at fair

value

Instrument type

Valuation technigue

Loans

The fair values of loans that do not reprice or mature frequenily are estimated using discounted cash flow models using
actual or estimated yiclds and consequently for the purposes of leve] disclosures tategorized under Level 3. Falr value of
tevel 3 loans would deecreasef(increase) in vatue depending on Increase/(decrease) in discount rate, For impaired loan,
the amortised cost is taken as fair value.

Lending thraugh Pass Through Certificates
{BYC)

The fair values have been calcwated using the discounted cash flow approach discounted at a rate that refiects the credit
risk of vadous counter parties.

Brebt securitias, Borrowings other than
debt securitias and Subardinated
liabifitias

The fair velues of the Company’s Dabt securities, Borrowings other than debt securities and Subgrdinated liabilities are
celculated based on @ discounted cash flow model. The discount rates are based on risk-free rate plus yield curves|
appropriale for the remaining maturities of the instruments as published by Financtal Benchmarks india Private Limited
{FIBIL)

Security Beposits

‘the fair values have been calcufated using the discounted cash flow agpreach discounted 2t a raie from observable inputs

_|i.e. Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited MCLR.

TFransfers between Level 1 and Lavel 2

There were no significant changes in the glassification and no significant moverments berween the fair value hierarchy classifications of assets and lisbilities during FY 2021-22,

g
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KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED

Nates to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
(AN amounts in INR fakhs, unless otherwise statad)

Aipte 43 Finandial instruments — Fair values and risk management

D. Lewvel 3 fair values measurgment

The following tadle shows a reconciliation from the beginning balanees to the ending batances for fair value measurements in Leve| 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

‘Particufars . . o AsatApril1,2022 ] . Purchases - |Salesf Settfements | recagnisedin .G_ams. .re;cgm_sed " Transfers in/fout} Asa!:;;’;h 3,
o . Lo T e P profit ar joss’ g B TN PR ot
Investments in Preference shares - - - - - - -
Investment in Alternate fund B 15,013.83 . - - _ 15.013.83
- 15,013.83 - - - - 15,013.83
. o R - Galn/iloss) s PO I [ :
Particulars o1 As at April 1, 2021 [ " Purchases sales/ Settlemments reéugnised in. Gains mggn.tsed n Transfers inflout) As at:;:r;h a1, .
Investments in Praference shares 12,200,132 - - - 112,200.13) - - -
Investment in Alternate fund - - - - - - .
12,200.13 - - {12,260.13) - - -

Sensitivity analysis of beve! 3 financial instruments measured at fair value

Although the Company believes that its estimates of falr value are appropriate, the use of different methodologies or assumptions could lead to
different measurements of fair value, As per practice followed by the company, this investments are fair valued after six months of investments.
Given that the investment in alternate fund has been made in last six months these are valued at cost on reporting date.

]
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KOTAK MAHINDRA PREME LIMITED
MNotes ko the financial staterments as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
Al amounts in INR lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

Naote 43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MAMAGEMENT {CONTINUED)
E. Financial risk management

The Company's activities expose it 10 3 variety of risks namely:

= Credit risk ;

= Liquichry risk ; and

= Market risk

i. Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has averall responsibilily for the establishment and oversight of the Campany’s risk management framework. The board of directors has established the Risk Management Committee.

The Risk Managernemt committee of Roard exercises supervisory power in connection with the risk management of the company, developing und monitoring risk managemant policies, monitoring of the exposures, reviewing,
adequacy of risk management process, ensuring compliance with the statutory/regulatory framework of the risk management process.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, 1o set spprapriate risk fimits and centrais and to monitor risks and adherence to Himits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditinng and the Company’s activities, The Company, through its training and management standards and procedurss, 2ims to maintain s discipined and constructive
control environment in which alt amployzes understand their roles and obligations.

The audit commitiee is assisted {n its oversight role by intarnal sudit. tntornal sudit undertakes Both regutar snd ad hec reviews of fsk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the pudit committee,




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED

Notes to the financiz] statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Al eraunes i INR [okhs, dnless otherwise stated)

Kote 43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINLUED)

The rote below explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk i its financial statements:-

Risk -

. Exposure arising frem .- - &

Measur

™ nt .

Credit Risk

Lgans, investiments, Trade receivahles, Bank
balances and other financial assets

Aging analysis, Credit Aating

The company has se1up poiicies for credit risk management and mitigation.

The cenmpany has lzid out process for credit evatuation for all its customers. For retail business,
customer profiles are reviewed/assessed based on financial strength, feverage ate. For other|
than retail business, the lending propasals are subjected to thorough assessment of promaters,
group financial strength and leverage, operational and financial performance track record, cash
flows, valuation of collateral.

The exposures are subjected to regular monitoring through various parameters f.e. days past
due, cash fiows, Tnventory audit, collateral cover, value of underlying capital market securities.

The Company manages and controls credi risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing
1o accept for individual custemers and customer group and by menitaring exposures in relation
to such fimits.

Liquidity Risk

Debt securities, Borrowings other than debt
securities, Subordinated {iabilities, Trade payables
and ather financiat liabilitics

Cash flow farecasts

Rsset Liability Management Committee {ALCD) of the Company defines it liguidity risk
management strategy and sets the overalt palicy and risk tolerances.

In order to manage/fmitigate liquidity risk, in addition to regulatory fimits on ligquidity gaps, the|
Company has also defined prudential internal limit for Liquidity Gap tolerance for its various.
time buckets, which is approved by the ALCO.

Treasury team is responsible for manazivg bouidity wnder the prescribed liquidity risk
management framewark gnd the same {5 monitored by ALCO.

The Company Ensures that there is sufficient liguidity headroor available, inciuding Hquid
assets, at 3l times to manage any contingency.

Market rigk

a. Foreign currency risk

Financial liahilities not denominated in [INR

€ash flow forecasts, Sensitivity Analysis

{ross currency swaps

b. interest rate risk

Financiaf assets and liabilities at variable rates

Sensitivity Analysis, Interest rate

movements

Board of Dirertors {the Bourd) of the Company is the guiding body for managemeant of its
lirterest rate risk and sets the overall policy and risk limits.

In order to manage/mitigate interest rate risk, the Company has dafined Interest Rate Sensitive
Gap tolerance limits for each time bucket which is approved by the Epard. Treasury is entrusted
with the responsibility of managing interest rate risk within the prescribed overalt risk limits and
the same is monitered by ALCO.

Further, the Company undertakes Ni analysis to assess the impact of changes in interest rate on.

the earnings of the Company.




KOTAK MEAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED

Motes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)

Note 43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT {(CONTINUED)

b. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk consists primarily of risk inherent in ALM activities and relates to the potential adverse impact of changes In market
interest rates on future net Interest incame [N!L}. Interest rate risk arises from mismatches in re-pricing of interest rate sensitive assets
{RSA} and rate sensitive liahilities [RSL).

Board of Directors (the Board} of the Campany is the guiding baody far management of its interest rate risk and sets the overali policy and
risk limits. In arder to manage/mitigate interest rate risk, the Company has definad Interest Rate Sensitive Gap tolerance limits for each
time bucket which is approved by the Board. Treasury is entrusted with the responsibility of managing interest rate risk within the
prescribed overall risk limits and the same Is monitored by ALCO.

Further, the Company undertakes NIl analysis to assess the Impact of changes in interest rate on the earnings of the Company.

Exposure to interast rate risk

The Interest rate profile of the Company’s interest hearing financial instruments is as follows.

Asat .. .. v Asat
. S March 31,2023 - ‘| - March 31, 2022

Fixed-rate instruments

Financlai assets 30,40,251.98 26,69,449.96
Financizl liabilities {22,29,579.57) {20,11,835.23)
ariable-rate instruments

Financial assets 3,36,358.11 3,15,746.96
Financial liabilities {95,197.63) (20,021.03}
Tatal Net 10,51,832.89 0,53,340.66

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for varlable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have Increased {(decreased) profit or joss by
the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variabies remain constant.

B As at March 31,2023 - .- - - -As at March 31, 2022
Particulars - — - - =
. . .100 bp increase. - 100 bp decrease 100 bpincrease - | 100 kp decrease
Variable rate instruments 2,411.60 {2,411.60) 2,857,26 {2,957.26)
Cash Flow Sensitivity 2,411.60 {2,411.60) 2,957.26 {2,957.26}

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points [nterest rate across all vield curves. This calcutation also assumes
that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date, The period
end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period,

- fit




KOTAK MAHINDRA FRIME LIMITED

Haotes to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Al amounts in INR lokhs, vnless atherwise stated)

Note 43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALLUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)

ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of actual or probable financial loss to the Company if a custamer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails ta meet its contractual obligatians, and arizes principaliy from the
Company's receivables from customers and lozns and advances now or in future,

The sanction and renewal of any credit facility to a particular borrower requires sppropriate credit approval by concernad authority. The appropriate authority nas been entrusted with the task of
verifying the eredentials of the ¢ustomer as per set processes and guidelines, The Company manages and cantrols cradit risk by setting imits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual
caunterparties and for Group of Counterparties and by monitoring expasures in relation to such Emits. Cradit warthiness of barrowers is regularly reviewed and monitored by line credit risk managers,
wha are responsible for maintaining the portfolio quality as per given risk — return targets. Further the compary has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of
possible charges in the cradinworthiness of counterparties, intluding regutar collateral revigions. The eradit quality review process aims to allow the company to assess the potential loss as a result of
the rizks to which it [s expesed and take corrective actions.

The gross carrying amounts of fol.awing finantial assels represent the maximam cradit risk exposute-

Particulars . As at . . As at .
_— i o R March 31, 2022 | - March 31, 2022
Cash and cash sguivalents 4021308 22.627.21
Bank balance ather than @sh and cash equivalents 90.85 44.83
Trade receivabies - 655
Losans *
- \ehicle Finance 22,90,007.78 18,12,243.74
- Structured loans 1,54,657.47 348,379.00
~ Parsona; lpans 84,194.56 70,677.24
- Other Lending Activities 1,87,946.68 1.36878.89
Imvestments 3,99,692.40 4,07,281.42
Other financial assets 1,764.55 1322.77
31,6%,578.37 27,99,421.55

*Laans do nat include undrawn faan commitments [Credit }:b'ij\}rérstnp\factor} on which impairment loss aliowance has heen provided for. For details refer Nale 43 (a) {iii).

Tye




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITEDR

Notes to the financlal staternents as at and for the year snded March 31, 2023
{All emaunts in INR igkhs, unless otherwise stoted)

Note 43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR WALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED]

a. Credit quality analbysis

(i) The fallewing table sets out the information about the eredit quality of finandal assett measured at amartised cost.

As 3t March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 3022
i2-month ECL Lifetime ECL not  Lifetime ECL credit- Purchased or Total 12-meanth £CL Liferime ECLnot  Lifetime ECL Purchased ar Total
cradit-impaired impaired Originated Credit credit-impaired eredit-impalred Driginated Cradit
Impaired {PGCI} Impaired {POLIY
Loans
Vehicle finance
Current 20,80,578.78 47,568.24 786.43 - 21,28,933.45 15,22,614.91 7,505,865 3,635.67 377.56 15,34,031.00
Past due 1-30 days 60,966.65 $,590.7% 1,184.23 - 71,741.65 1,58,550.39 14,368.63 1,277.76 - 1,75,196.69
Past due 31~60 duys 29.49 26,814.20 3,650.72 - 30,544.41 - 31,206.80 1467682 - 3377468
#ast dus 61-90 days - 4,1243% 6£,012.98 - 10,137.38 - 12,014.83% 1,838.57 - 13,945.80
Past due 91 days - - 48 650.88 - 48 65088 - - 56.281.58 - 55,291.58
21,4%,584.92 28,047 62 60,325.25 - 22,50,007.78 16,82,062.21 65,192.18 64,5611 80 377.56 18,12,243.75
Impairmeni foss aliowance {10,137.38) {5,468.77) 133,097.88} 2.764.72 (45 93%.41) [13,545,55) 19.187.47) {32,065.28) 5,312.75 {49,489 54)
Carrying amount 21,31,447.54 82,628 45 27,227.27 2,764.72 23 44 068,37 16,68,516.56 56004 71 32,542.52 5,590,31 17,62,754.21 |
Strustured loans *
Current 1,54,449.84 - - - 1,54,443.84 3,30,182.50 15,686,12 - - 3,46,68.62
Past due 1-30 days - - - - 201501 - - - 20150
Past due 3160 days - - - - - - - - - -
Past due B1-80 days - - - - - - - - -
Past due §1 days - I07.63 - 207.63 - - 19537 - 195,37
1,54,449.84 - 207.63 - 1,54,657.47 3,22,197.51 15,886.12 195,37 - 3,48,279.00
impairment {oss alfowance [356.00) - {193.38) - {544.38) {1,513.65] {810.43} (138,87} - {2,462.96)
Carrying amount 154,092,854 - 14.25 - 1,54,108.09 3,30,683.88 15,075.6¢ 56.50 - 3,45,816.04
Personal loans
Current 85,063.21 S02.85 1237 - 85,580,465 54,665.14 136.95 £7.83 - 5492159
Past due 1-30 days 2,365.44 187.47 25.58 - 2,782.48 5,056.31 522.87 B1.42 - 5,640.60
Past due 3160 days - BEL1.83 104.66 - SE6.43 - 1,359 .94 80.42 - 1,440,356
Past due 61-90 days - 205,38 11130 - 316.69 - 730,34 159.51 - £89.85
Past due 31 days - - 4,553.44 - 4,553 44 - - 7.784.43 - 7,784.43
: £7,630.64 1,757.57 4,61136 - 94,349.57 55,72%.44 2,812.12 B,143.67 - 70,677.24
tmpairment loss allowance {738.59) 275 4G} 13,914.52) - {4,928.53 [887.23) {527.81} {4,808.26) - {6,223.30
Carrying amount 86,892.0% 148217 89683 - 8927104 58;&4.21 2@2.31 333541 - 64,453.93
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KOTAX MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Notes to the financlal statemants as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
A ameunts fn INF lakhs, unless atherwise stated;

Note 43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTNLED)

Others™™
Current 2.16,245.32 13144 - 2,26,366.76 1.52,049.84 1,52,045.34
Past due 1-3D days 3,106.28 - - 110622 8,890.40 £,890.40
Past due 31-80 days - 24533 3125 27758 - -
Past duz 6I-90 days - 167.87 - 16747 - -
Past due 91 days - - 9663 3G, 64 - -
1,24,351.61 53564 127.89 230,015.14 1,60,840.24 1,60,940.24
[mpairment loss allowance {1,217.07} {123 54) (42.30- [1.282.92 (675.81] |675.91)
Carrying amount 2,28 234 54 412.10 8559 2,28.73223 1,60,264.33 1,60,264.33 |
Investments
Current 1,84,330.60 - - 1.84,440.60 2,04, 82770 2,04,827.70
Past due 1-30 days - - - - - -
Fazt due 316D days - - - - -
Past due 6390 days - - - - . -
Past due 21 days - - - - -
1,84,440.60 - - 1,84,440.60 2,04,822.70 2,04.877.70
Impairment loss allowance (293,62} - - (243,62} {004_78) [904.78]
Carrying amount 1,84,146.98 - - 1.84,146.58 203,922,532 2503!922,92

*Structured loon inclvdes loan ogainst sacurities, commercial real estate loons ond other structured loans.

**Others includas cash and cash s than cosh ond cash equivalents, trode receivabies, CALD lending, Inter corparate deposit, Loan tu employees, Loan given to trust, Loan against Froperty and Other finonool assets.
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KOTAK MARINDRA PRIME LIMITED

Nptes t the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

{AN penounts In INR fokhs, unless atherwise srated)

hote 43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

{if} The following table sets out the information about the credit quality of financial assets measured 2t Fair value th

_," other compret

income {FYoCi).

As at March 3%, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
1Z-month ECL Lifetime ECL not  Lifetime ECL cradit- Tatal 12-month ECL Lifetime ECL not Lifetitne ECL Totat
credit-impalred Impaired credit-impaired eredit-impaired
1 " ‘In A nk e *
Current 4,95,224.82 - - 1,95,2R4.82 2,02,453.72 - - ?,02,453.72
Past due 1-30 days - - . . - - _ -
Past die 31-60 days - - - - - - - -
Past due §1-90 days - - - - R - - -
Past duz 91 days - - _ _ _ _
1,95384.82 - - 1.95,284.82 2,02534&91 - - 2,02,345.91
Carrying amount (Fair Vahue} 1,95,284.82 - - 1!95!284.82 2502!453.?2 - - 2,02,453.72
*inchudes Gowvernment Securities
{iil) The foliowing table sets out the Information about the eradit guality of financizl assets measured at Falr value through profit and loss account {FUTPL).
As at March 31 2023 As at March 31, 2022
17-month ECL Lifetime ECL not  Lifetime ECL credit- Total 12-month ECE Lifetime ECL not Lifetimea ECL Totai
credit-impaived impaired credit-impaired  credit-impaired
Hnvestmaent in debentures*
Cusrent 12,972.92 - - 19,972 5% - - - -
Past due 130 days - - - - - - .
Past due 31-60 days - - - . - . . -
Past due 61-30 days - - - - - - -
Past due 91 days - - - - - - - -
1597299 - - 1%,972.99 - - - -
Lareying amourt (Fair Value) 19,972.99 - - 19,572.99 - - = -
{iv} The table below shows the credit quality and the exposure to credit risk for lozn commitments {Credit conversion factor) :
As at iarch 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL not Lifetune ECL credit- Tatal 12-month ECL Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL Total
credit-jmpaired impaired - credit-impaired  credit-impaired
Loans
Vehicle finanes 439,255.0% 10,157.61 - 5845262 43,457.43 B78.3% - 44,335.82
Structured loans 9735.60 - - 925,60 B821.8R - - 8851 88
i 50,220.63, 10,157.61 - £0,378.22 52348.31 878,33 - 5323270

e
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KOTAK MAHINORA PRIME LEMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in INR lakhs, uniess cthe ravise stotad)

Motz 43 FIKANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)

b. Collaterals held and concentrations of credit risk
Collaterals held

The amaunt and type of collatersl reguired depends on an assessmant of the credit risk of the customer. Guidelings are in place covering the acceptability and valuatior. of each type of coifatersl,

The main types of collateral obtained are, as foilows:

8. for retail lending, hypothecation over vehicles

b. For automghile dealership lending, charge over real estare properties, inventory and trade receivables
c For structured lending, charge over real nstate properties, pladge of securities.

Management moniters the market value of collateral and wiil request additiena collaleral in accordance with the underlying agreement. In its normal course of business, the Company follows
generally acteptable processes [in accordance with law] to get possassion of the collateral through the agent appointed, The assets so repossessed are sold on behalf of the customers 5o as to settle
the receivaliles. any surplus fungs are returned to the custamers/obligors. As & result of this practice, the collaterals are not recorded on the balance sheet and riot treated as non—urrent assets held

for zale.

Quantitative information of Collateral - Credit impaired assets

Grass value of Joans in stage 3
Laan ta Value Ratin As at Asat

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 |
Less thaﬂSD% 2049618 23,845 26
5110 70% 8,0568.56 15,588 54
71 to 90% 13,778.8D 13,855.94
5110 100% 5,576 48 5.122.53
More than 100% 17,164.36 14 434 46
Total £5,47238 72,950.83 |

Finandal assets received as coverage
Company has received Financiai assets as collataral that it is permitted to sell in the absence of default

Ar March 31, 2023, the fair valuc of financial assets acceptad as collateral against Loan that the Company is permitted to sell or repledge in the absence of delsult was NIk [March 31st, 2022; Rs

45,363.28 lakhs).
During the year endad on March 31st, 20232, the fair value of financial assets accepted a3 colateral thal had been spid was Nil {Year ended on March 31z, 2022: Nil). The Company adjusts the sales

Proceed lrom carrying amourt of lozn and is not obliged to return equivalent securities.

;' %«‘KJ




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED

Hotes ta the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

[Al amaunts in INR fakhs, ynless ctharavise stated)

Mote 43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED])

Concentration of eredit risk

The company moenitors concentration of credit risk by line of business in India. The following table shows the cancentrations of loans as at year end:-

. As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Gross carrylng amount 272681142 13,68078.87
Loncentration by sector
Corporate 3,21.748.74 387,609,735
Dealer firance 2E2IE0.14 1,93 B0S.75
LBLOD Lending - 97.469.42
Employee Loan 67.96 7872
Inter Corporate Deposits l '
FTC Loans 20,786.43 -
Retaji

- Vehicle finznee 20,07 84764 16,18.433.98

- Linsecured landing 94,199.56 70,677.24

27‘25£11.43 ZSEEB;E?&S?

. Amounts arising from ECL

i. Impues, ions and techni used for estimating impairment

Inputs ¢onsidered in the £CL model:
The objective of the impairment requirements is to recognize lifetime expected credit losses for all assets for which there have been significant increase in eredit risk since initial recogrition - whether assessed on an individual or collective basis - considering all
reasonable and suppartable information, including that which is forward-locking. At each ieporting date, it will be 2ssessed whether there has been a significant intrease in credit risk (SICR} for assats since inftial zecognition by comparing the risk of defag|e

oCeurring over the expected life between the reporting date and the date of initial recegnilion.

Asseisrnent of significant increase in credit risk (SICR):
The credit risk on a financial asset of the Company are assumed to have increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments ara more than 30 days past due. Accordingly the financial assets shall be classified as Stage 2, it un the reporting

dats, it has been past dug for mare than 30 days,

In determining whether cradit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, Company uses days past due information, Early Warning Signals (EwS} In tarms of unusual events [acluding incidents and frauds, repossession of an asset, etc. and foracast
information to assess deterioration in cradit quality of a financial asset.

Assumption considered In the ECE mode!

- “Probabhility of default” (PD] is defined 25 the probatilicy of whethar the borrowers will default an thalr abligations in the future. For assets which are in Stage 1, a 13 month PD is required. For Stage 2 assets 2 lifetime PO is cequined while Stage 3 assets are
considered to have 2 100% PO,

- "Loss given default" {L5D] is an estimate of loss fram a transaction, given that a dgefault occurs.

-"Exposure at default™ (FAD) reprosents the expected exposure in the event of a defaule

Forward loaking informnation:
The Company incorporates forward looking information into both assessment of whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and its measurement of ECL. Based sn the consideration of a variety of external

actual and forecast information, the Company forms a ‘hase tase’ view of the Future direction of relevant economic variabies such as real GOP, Real/Nominai Wages, Domestic Credit, real parsonal disposable income, etz 1his process involves developing twa

or moge additicnal economic scenatios and consde pefytive probabiiities of each outcomne. The base case represenits a most likely outcarmne while the other scenarios represent more optimistic and more passimistic cuUtcomes.

T




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME UMITED
Notes to the financial statements 23 at and for the yesr ended March 31, 2023
{Al} mmounts fn INR iakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUGED)

Definition of defauit

The company combines the exposures into smaller homogeneous portfolios, based on a combination of internal and external characteristics of the ioans. The company categorises loan assets into stages based on the days past due status.
- Stage 1o O - 30 days past due

- Stage 2231 90 days past dus & EWS accounts [PUY, 31 - 8% days past dus & EWS accounts)

- Stage 3: 81 days & above past due {P.Y_ 50 gays & above past dyed

The three slages reflecl the general pattern of credit deterioration of a financiaf instrument.

Further, company consideds following factors 1o detormine staging for corporata loans

For gownprade fram Stege 1 10 Stage 2:

» 2 notch downgrade in Internad rating (wherever available} since initiel recogiition of loan
= 2 notch downgrade in external mting {wheraver avaiiakie) since initial recognition of pen

» Wharourr manavement thinks there i <ienifirant tarrease in credit rick haserd nn the internal assacement

Policy for write-off of Financizl assets
Finantial assets are written off wien there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generaliy the case when the Company determines that the bormower does not have assets or sources of incoms
that could generate sufficient cash flows 16 repay the amounts,

ii. An analysis of changes in gross carrying amount as foliows:

. . o ) L <] Purehasedor | :
Pasticulars - 12-month ECL Lifetire ECL not L'r_ct”_“ ECL credit- Originated Credt | - Total
) . o credit-impaired : _|m_pa:_red. 1 ringaired ppocy - .
teans®
Balance as at March 31, 2021 18.65,200.50 1,34,550.42 93,517.60 - 20,53,668.92
Transfer frum 12 month ECL {78,993 50} 54, 85027 24,143.23 - -
Trarsfer from Lifetime ECL not credit impaired 21,606.48 {45,876.81) 18,270.44 - -
Transtor from Lifelime ECL eredit impzired 4,370.33 663472 {10,%55.05) - -
Netremeasurement of loss allowsnce {4,50,420.40} [27,953.25) (14,955 B0} 377.56 {4,972,953.88)
New financia: assets originated during the year 11,71,318.88 - - - 11,21,318.4%
Maturad or repaid {3,5%.720.80) (34,712.84} {4.516.70} {4,08,950.34)
Write-offs - - {42,552 848} - [42,552.88)
Ealance as at March 33, 2022 23,12,311.90 8389041 72,950.83 377.56 22,2¢,530.70
Teansfer from 33 month ECL {1,25,383.10) 97,244.38 28,138 7% - -
Transfor from {ifetime ECL not credit impaired 372,60617 {50,919.07 2331290 - -
Fransfer from Lifetime ECL credit impaired 3,215.37 2,211.62 {5,426.9%) - -
Net remeasurement of loss altowanoe {4,16,060.46) (23,600.24} {13.B28.84; - {4,53,458.58)
Mew financial sssets originated during Fhe year 13,28B,455.48 - - - 13,28,455.46
Matured or repaid {3,10,267.27) {E,427.22} {3,157.50} {277.56) {3,82,229.35)
Write—ofis - . 136,517 74) - 136,517.74)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 25,70,882.07 90,290.84 E5,471.38 - 27,26,744.2%

* The above takic dors not includs Frovement ¢

LB fanding and Loan to Employees.




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMETED

Nates to the financial statements a3 at and for the year ended March 32, 2023

(Al pmounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise statad)

Mote 43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

§il. Impairmant toss allowance

The folicwing table shows recongiliations frem the opening to the closing balance of the foss allowances:

; B S -_-. _ Furchaszed or —
Particulars 1 i—i‘hpmh 'ECE.:' - Ufe‘tlm:‘a EEL'nnt - LIfEtITl’!E E(_:L.I:I'Elflt- Originated Cresit Total
oLl | creditimpaired | impaired Impaired (POCT ** C
Loans *
[Balance as at March 31, 2021 13,723.55 16,554.38 49,687 47 - 73,966.40
Transfer from 12 month ECL {4,815.13) 2,81€.25 2,298.8% - -
Transfer from Lifetime ECL not credit impared 240631 [7.352.91} 4,946.59 - -
Transfer from Lifetime ECL ¢credit impaired 1,761.31 2,753.46 14,514.78} - -
Net remeasurement of lnss attowance {6,794.51) {621.56} 3,701.47 - {3,714.60)
MNew financial assets originated during the year 12,960.77 - (5.312.75) 7,648.02
Matured ar repaid {2,582.76) {3,422.,92} {2,699.58) - (8,706.33)
Write-offs - - {16,398.56} - f16,308.56)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 16.565.54 10,525.70 A7,016.42 15,312.75) 58.754.93
Transfer from 12 month ECL [5,835.05} 283528 287977 - -
Transfer from Lifetime £CL not credit impaired 2,861.50 {7,531.29} 4,66%.89 - -
Transfer fromi Lifetime ECL credit impaired 1,193.96 82850 {2,027 .48) - -
Net remeasurement of ioss allowance {11,282.35} 25515 89,526.64 2,568.03 1,047.47
Kew financial assets originated during the year 11,356.60 - - - 11,356.60
Natured or Fapaid [2,560.30} {1,145.28) {1,205.97) - 4,915.53)
Write-offs - - {13,610.66} - {13,610.66}
Balanca as at March 31, 2023 *ilém.gﬂ I 5,883.98 37,248.63 {2 76472} 53 672.7%

* The abave tabic does not include movemant of CBLO lending and Loan to Employees.
**amaurt of s, 5,312 75 lakh relatiag to impairment gain on eracit impared assets acquired during the year has baen disclosed as "Maw financiat assets originated during the year”,

{Amount in lakhs)

Maguernent of ECL In other Asset

. - . .. Bank Balances
Particilars Trade acsivables |  CBLD iénding '""::::‘::m loantoemplovees | loantotust | Investments 0_'!':'5:;""" _z"ﬁlz:: °@;“c‘::hmh
: : N T R - Eguivatents
Balance as at March 31, 2021 14.33 5876 0.85 313 1,006.21 24.59 16.52 -
Addirian during the year 468 - 0.09 - - - A4.58 8.¢1
Impairment 6ss reversedswritten back - {58.76} - {3.23) {102.13} {B.52) - -
Balznce as at March 31, 2022 19.01 - [1E:¥ - a04.78 1567 21,18 ool
Addition during the year {13.01) - {0.49} - - - {6.27) 0.01
Hmpairment foss reversedfwritten bagic - - - - (611,16} (4.08) - -
iBalance as at March 31, 2023 - - 0.45 - 29362 11.50 14.92 0.02
Py
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KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements at at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al crmaunts in NR lakhs, utless otherwise stoted)

Note 43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

iv. BuckeX wise loan outstanding:

As at March 31, 2023 Asat March 31, 2021
Total amount Total amount
Farticulars- Days past due Count [Wos) autstanding Count {Nos) outstanding
Current 7A5.377 25,52,230.42 547,352 20,51.676.52
1-30 days 23,781 77,630,010 5891% 1,79,576.96
31-6C days 14,817 31,788.42 14,721 32,519.55
£1-90 days 5,340 10,621.94 7,382 30,393.41
Past due 91 days 22,136 53,540.68 23,984 63,506.12
Total 8,12,551 27,26,811.48 8,552,298 23,68,078.86
g




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Notes to the financlal staterments as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
{AN amounts in INR Jokhs, unfess otherwise stated)

Nota 43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR YALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINLED)

(d.) The following table presents the financial assets which has financial assets as coliatera’s on which the Company has a right to selifoffset in absence of
default. However the financil assets have not heen offsetted with the amount of resgective collaterals In the Balanca Sheet and capturec in the below table
for the purpose of disclasura.

The column 'maxirmum exposure’ shaws the impact on the Company's batance sheet If 2l set-off rights are exercised.

_ Effact of offsetting on the balance sheet
S o | Gross amounts set Net amounts Netting potential not o
Papticutars IR recagnised on the batance .
. Gross amounts | off inthe balance | presented in the ) Maximum exposure
. ) S T heet' | -balance shest sheet - Financlal collatérals i o
. obtained ¥+

Mareh 31, 2023
Loans
Structured loans™ - - - - .
March 31, 2022
Loans
Structured loans® 20,566.53 - 0,566.53 (20,566.53) . -

*Structured loan does not Include commerclal real estate loans and other structured loans.

** Company obtains financial collateral fram ts borrowers tawards, loans advanced 25 Loans aga’nst securities {LAS} and Margin funcing portfolo. Falr valuc of

the financlul collateral obtained is more than the underlying loans exposure, Accordingly, amounts have been capped to the extent it does not exceed the net
amaunt of financial assets presented on the hafance sheet,

At
(b




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME UIMITED

Netes to the financial statermnents 25 at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All ameunts in INF lokhs, unfess ethenwise stated)

Note 43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED]

ili. Liguidity Risk

Hgutdicy risk is the risk that the Company is unable to mest its financial obiigations whan they fall due without adversely affecting its financiz conditicn. Liguidity risk arises because of mismatches in the Oming of the cash flows.

Asset Liability tanagemeant Committee {ALCO] of the Company defines its Hauidity risk management strategy and sets the overall poiicy and risk toferances. In order Lo manage/mitigate Fguidity risk, in addition to regulatory limits on liquidity gags, the
Company has alse defined prudentiaf internal limis for Liguidity Gap tolerance for its various time buckets, which is approved by the ALCO. Treasury is responsitle for managing liquidity under the prascribed Fquidity risk management framewiork and the

sarne i monitored by ALCO.

Liquigity sisk management strategies and practices are revicwed to align with changes to the axternal anvironment, inciuding regulatary changes, business condizions and market cevetopmenls. fctual and enticipated cash flows generated are monttored

o ensire campliance with Kmits.

Matusity Profile of Financial Liabilites

The follpwing are the remaining cantractual maturities of financial iabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are grass and ungiscourted, and include estimatcd interest payments and oxciude Lhe impart of netting agreements.

o e ~ Totat . C ... |15 Dayto 30/31] Dwerone [ : ) - -l . _
- Particulars - . ‘;‘:::::E "' contractual |1Dayto 7 Days 8 B:;: ;4. -] Days {one _Mchﬁﬂ_d 2 f::or ;’ x::::: {::: : ::::::: 0:;:: :A‘:::K fp:ir; :: :r: ) 3::: : :::2_ 1 Overs Years
: : _cash flows RN : L - tAonkh} _Months . R e : : N

As at Marck 31, 2023
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and nther Payables 52,612 82 52,612 .82 - - 52,612.82 - - - - - - -
Debt securities 14,17,334.56 | 17,15,439.50 - - 28,550.18 22,296.01 9,159,25 1,31,325.68 4,51,324.37 407,252 10 1,24,501.90 -
Borrowings (Dther than Dabt Securities) 7,32,116.06 FA7124 06 57,500.00 - 5,017.61 1,28368.37 66,434 75 2,38,494 98 1,69,742.55 41,666.00 40,000.00 -
Deposits 177.439 177.4% 336 - &34 0.ag 1562 25.74 45.43 £192
Subordinated Liaklities 14,376.15 18,337.824 - - - - 4,210.58 - E25.00 1,652.26 11,650.00 -
Oziher Financial {iabiiities B.O6C.13 B.44C.14 17754 1.17 5.148.62 6001 447 31 144 35 26826 724.49 457.05 5{09.29

: : . . Total e e e |25 Payta 30431 - Overone N . iy .- T : T ] i

— e | oo [soayioroen) *75003¢ || s |rtons | o s o ot @t | 02 | s
) - eashflows |-~ . Month) " Maonths N it DT 4 A B :

As at March 31, 2022
Non-derivative financial Hahilities
Trade and other Payables €7,637.24 Sre37 24 - - 5763724 - - - - - -
Debt secunties 120941648 | 13,25,204.20 - - 2,025.18 11,800.00 4,742.90 93,681 60 1.78,097.91 9,34, 854.51 - -
Borrow:ings (Dther thar Debt Securitins) 7,258,103 58 7.39,727.10 - - 90,0538.29 1,10,331.47 150,307 38 1,50,008.00 2,20,300.00 18.538.86 . -
Beposits 153.01 4501 23.593 - 190 3.13 - - - 9.58 13.3% 93.14
Eubordineted Linhiliting 19,557 84 2457036 - - - - - 262537 3.607.06 5862.84 1,630.00 10,875.00
Dther Financiat Lizbilities 1652408 11,1320.065% 154.78 d6L B AE6.51 34.16 3416 7354 20047 58865 2FIRTZ 195.4%
Derivative financial Rabilities
Markes linked darivative 2,667.50 - - - - B - 2000.62 GBS B8 - -
FCNR Termn igan . 382,13 - - 143.34 35.04 - - - 203.65 - -
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KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED

Nates to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

{AN amaunis in INR lakhbs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ~ FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

iw. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that earnings or the value of its holding of financial Instruments wilt be adversely affected by changes In market variahle such as

interest rate, credlt spreads, equity prices ete.

The Company is primarily exposed ta market risk related ta imerest rate risk and changes in market variables affecting the market value of its
investments In financlal instruments. In order to manage/mitigate market risk in (ts investment partfello, the Company has defined comprehansive limit-
framework including value Iimit, category llmit, holding periad limit for its levestments, which is approved by the Board.

Treasury is entrusted with the responsibility of managing market risk within the preseribed policy and the same Is menitored by ALCC,

a. Faraign Curvency risk

The Company |s exposed to currency risk on accaunt of its derivative financial Instrument In foreign currency. The functianal currency of the Company is

tndian Aupee L.a. INR.

Ewposure to currency risk (Exposure in different currencies converted ta functional currency i.e, INR}

The currency profile of financial assets and flnancial liabilities as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are as below:

P'art_l'c_ulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
. INR INR
Financiat §iahilitias
Term Loan 13,484.92 54 80535
Carivatives financial instruments 529.41 382.13
14,414.33 55,187.44

Particulars Year-end spot rate
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
UsD 82147 75,78

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening {weakening) of the Indlan Rupee agatnst the forelgn currencies at March 31 would have affected the measurement
of financlal Instruments denominated in forelgn currencies and affected equity and profit or loss by the amaunts shewn below. This analysis assumes
that all ather variables, in particular interaest rates, remain constast and lgnares any impact of forecast sales and purchases,

Effect In IMR

March 31, 2023
Us0 - 1% Movemnent

Effect in INR

Mayrch 31, 2022
UsD - 1% Movernent

e
ol

Pralit or loss

Equity, net of tax

Strenpthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
144.14 {144.14) 10787 {107.87)
144,14 {144.14) 107.87 {107.87)

Proflt or loss Equity, net of tax

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Wealening
551,87 {551.87) 41298 {412.98)
551.87 551,87} 412,98 [412.98)

\' \wgﬂ DAl
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KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts In INR fakhs, unless otheiwise stated)

Note 44 CAPTTAL MANAGEMENT

As per RBI, NBFCs are reguired 1o maintain 3 minimum capltal to risk weighted assets ratio (“CRAR"} consisting of Tier 1
and Tler )l capital of 15% of its agaregate risk welghted assets. Further, the total of Tier Il capital cannot exceed 100% of
‘Ner t capital at any point of time. The ¢apital management process of the Company ensures to maintain the minimum
CRAR at all the times,

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management polley are to ensure that the Company complies with
capital requirements required by regulator, malntafing strong cred|t ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support
its business and t¢ maximise shareholder value,

The Campany manages its capital structufe and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions
and the rlsk characteristics of its activitles.

5¢ No |Particulars . Asat As at Varlance | ReAs0n for Variance (if above
Muarch 31, 2023%*% | March 31, 2022** 25%)
{A) |Tier 1 capital 824,460.26 731,521.74
Tler 2 capital 20,641.32 78,369.63
Total Capital funds 845,101.58 759,891.37
Risk weighted assets 2,965,402 86 2,461,471.83
Tler 1 Capital ratio 27.80% 29.72% -6,45% MNA
. . . Repa L of Tier Il Capital
Tier 2 Capital rato 0.70% 1.15% agg1g) opeymentol Tierfitapita
Totaf Capltal ratic 28.50% 30.87% -1.69% NA

*#The unrealised gains on Ipvestments falr valued through Profit or Loss {(FVTEL) and [(air valued thraugh Other
Comprebensive income (OC1), ROU Assets, etc. has not been considered as part of the regulatory capital. Similarly,
carrying value of such investments (net of falr value galns) has been considered to compute net owned funds & risk
welghted assats,

For dividend on Equity shares - Refer note 22(h)

i
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KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED

Notes to 1he Rnanclal statements as at and for the year ended Mazch 31, 2023

fAl amavnts in INR tokhs, unless athernwise statod)

Nots 45 Meturity analysls of assets and llabl(|tes

1he table below shows an analysls of assets and llabllities analyzed according to when thay are sxpecled to ba recoverea ar seltlad.

Particulars

ASSETS
Financlal assets
Cash and cazh eguivalents
Bank Balance ather than tash and cash equlvalents
Derjvative lInancial Instrumenks
Recefvables

[} Trade racelvakyes
Loans
Investments
Cther Flnandlal assers
Sub total

Mon-financial assats
Curent Tax assets {Net)
Deferred Tax assets [Nat]
Ivestment droperty
Property, Flant 3nd Equipmant
Capltal work-in-progress
Intangikle ausels unger develspment
Othar irtangible asseis
Cther Mor-linancial assets
Suhb wotal
Tota| Assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Financlal lablldes

Cerlvatives Ananclal [nstraerants

Payabies

[t} Trade pavables
(] totai outstanding dues of mitrs enterprises and
smal| enterpelics
() total autstanding dues of creditors other than
mhra enternsises and small enterprises

Debt securitles

Berrowings (Other than Debt Securiles]

Daposits

Subardinated Labilities

Other Finandial Habfitles

5ub total

Mon-Flnanctal Habllitles
Currant tax llabilittas {Net)
Frovislons

Delarrad tax liabllitles {Het)
Cther nen-financial liabilties
Sub totad

Tatal Uabititi

. mMarch 31, 2023 - Mrarch 31, 2022
Withln 12 manths. - After 12 months Totat Within 12 months | Alter 12 months Tatal

AD,198.16 - 40,198.16 2266611 - 12,666.11
69,55 2127 50,23 Q.29 44.53 44,82

944,35 3817 G857 - - -
- . - 8.47 - 647
11,14,244.70 15,55,893.54 26,74,138. 24 10,08,207.14 13,01,056.87 23,09,264.01
1,68,780.74 2,94,566,65 6,59,447.39 1.89.834 .53 4,62073,82 £,51,908.40
593,13 115992 1,732.25 199,97 1,107.14 130731
15,24, 830.65 18,51,77%.4d 33,76,610.69 12,20,914.56 17 64,282 36 29 85,196.92
- 11,163.28 11,163.28 - 4,405.27 440537
- 11,985 54 11,985.54 15,141.32 16,141.32
B 2,008.39 2,008.39 - 2,053,720 2405370
123.42 31,1337 325117 853 1,751.53 1,760.36
220083 - 120,83 - 144.60 144,60
35.37 - 3537 - 25.05 25.35
- 25368 253.68 - 3Nz Aa 3n2R8
5,243.58 - 5,241 58 3,651.34 - IE5L3
5621.20 28,544.64 34,165.84 366017 2382435 2148451
15,30.451,85 18,80,324.08 34,10,775.93 12,24,574.73 17,88,106.71 30,12, 643,43
- - - 2,166.50 3313 1,049,63

160,09 - 160.05 . . .
52,45227 - 5243377 5763724 - 57,627.24
5, 80,379.52 9,37,055.03 15,17.434.5g 1,51,027.B7 B.58,388 61 12,03,416 48
672,208,980 E£9,307.08 2,32,116.06 5,931,575 B4 A7.534.14 7,215,103 .98
90.0% 12740 177.49 42.20 10221 4501
4,107 47 10,268.68 14,376.15 5,121 68 14,376,315 19,557.83
6,652.13 140799 8.060,13 _9,994.31 519,77 10,924.08
13,16,811.01 10,U8,766.20 23,24,732.2% 11,17,625.65 9,11,204.61 20,23,834.26
2,192.08 - 4,2%2.00 B511.43 . 5,811.43
284,03 SRA.A% 872,72 240.68 5%1.28 A11.96
- HE04T. 34 50,947.34 . 48,990,113 48,9013
396269 - 5,962.69 149739 - 1,457.39
140,538.80 51,536.03 62,074,831 B,5349.51 43 561 .41 58,200.92
13‘26 549,81 lDiﬁU‘EWZ.Zi 23,86, 852.04 11.251159‘16 Qiﬁli'}ﬁﬁ.ﬂl lGiWiBﬂS.ls




HOTAK MAHINGRA £RIME LIMITED

Nates te Iha finandal statemernitd as at and for the yaar anded March 31,2023
At urnounts in INF lgkhs, unlgss otherwise stoted)

Kate 46 Segment reportitg

An operating segmant ‘s 3 comagnent of the Company thal engages |n business astivitias from which it ay ware cevenua and o expenses, induding revenues aod exoe-ses that celale to transacthons
wIth any of the Company's sther components, and for which discrate financial infarmatbon |5 avafable,

Al operating swaments’ rasults ata regularly raviawad by the Chlaf Executive Off cer {CS0), which hava been iduntifled as tha Cn'al Operating Declston Maker 'GODM | of the Company. The Chiel Evecutive
Cfflcer. which have seen identifled as the CODM, reglmly redew the perfermance “epors apo make declslons about a locallon of resgyrees.

The Campany has thiee reportable segments, a< described be'ow, which ara the Campany's stratagle buslness spits. For each Businass unlts tha Chie® Erecutive Offlcer segularly reviews the pe-formance

raperts,

Feportabis segmanis

a, Wehleta Finanelng - Hatall Vehiclz finance, Wholetale dealer inance and consumear durable finapce
b. Gther Lending acthvitles - Anancing Jgainst securitles, soc

Arh

¢, Treamiry and Investment activilles - proprietany trading by shares and strategls investment

A, tnf |

about rapertabl L

For the year ended March 31, 3013

Flemding Ineommerelal ragl estole and niher foans [ fee batsd services

emplayes eneflts, MTM on deslvativs ate )

R . - L. Segaants
Farthoulars - vahlcle Other lending Treasury and Total Ul d Elimi Total
: ' finanelng witldy presinent actiuliles
Segment revenus
Revenue 1,66,510.62 43,658, 17 15,578.98 3,25,347.87 - - 3,75,247.87
Inter-seRment s ehante - - : - - [26,41.40] {26,401 .40}
Total segmenl revanus Z,66,610,63 43,658,27 15,578.9¢ 3,258472.87 - [26,401.40] 2,99.846.47
resulls 1,34,021.31 15.852,88 3,573.14 1.83,472.34 - [26,401.41} 12707593
Unallocable axpenses fnet) )
Profil befora tax 1,27,075.53
Tax expensa 32,3205
Segment predit 34,753.08
Segrrient asgats 23,95,905.81 514,262,730 4,73 M3.7% 33,83,238.30 17,557.63 - 34,10,775.93
Segment llatllities 16,92,892.25% A, 24, 458,10 1,15218.1% 319,524 37,2235 13, 86,857.04
[Capital Employead 10.23,523 4%
Other dlaciosures
Capltal expraditure 1,68%.42 1.685.42 - - 1,685.42
Duyceclation sneg amurkisation 1,289.55% - . 1,253.55 - - 1,268.55
[Othar non-cash items {Impabirrent loss allowance,
5,121 .48 #2738, [933.34 h,RR1IA LAR2, 13,
employee benefis, MTM on darivative etc) s, ' ¢ ! ¢ ! (h.RR2,14] _ t6, 82,13}
_For the year ended March 31, 2022
- " T e Reporiabilz segments .
. Fartleuters Vehicla Ohar lending Treasury and Total 5 t: Unali t Ellminatl Tatal
. o Tinav¢ing acthvities Inuastmand aclivltius
Segmant revenue
Revenus 15%,047.52 SE980.34 35310L%7 2,84,019.24 - . 2,084,025 21
Inles segmant ravenue - - - - (21 AG6.12} {11.466.72}
Tatal 1agment revenue 1,32,047,52 56,980.34 35,0137 2,84,025.24 - {21,466.72 2,62,562.51
Segmeant rewlts a94,003.63 3211394 75,255.15 151,311.71 - (21,466.71) 1,29,505.01
[Una letable expenses (net} )
Frolél biefore tax 1,29,505.01
Tayx expenia 1243461
Sepmwnd profit 97.470.40
Segmenl assets 18,32, 514.40 704 641,00 4,51,359.52 29,90,515.37 22,166.13 - I0.12,681.45
Segment fiahlliles 11,M,3%52.41 B6,44,004.54 21500644 29,30,355.39 52,579,707 - A0DET 93516
Capltal Employeed 9,24, 16,26
Other disciasures
Capltal expendiiura 62,88 - 568,58 - 265,25
Diepraciatien and amartisatlon JE3I6 . - 781,76 - 781,76
Olher non-cash items (fmpairment doss allewanca, [11,587.57) [1,Bau.94] [76.16] [13,564.03) - - [13,564.04)

B. I lun about malar ¢

No eavenuss ram transactians wAth single exteradt custome: amounted to 10% ar more af company® tatal revenue i the year ended March 31, 2073 aad March 31, 2022,

A




KOTAK MAHINORA PRIME LIMITED
Wotes to the fnancial statarmants as at and for tha year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts In INR fukhs, unless atherwise stated)

MNoate 47 Other Disclosures

The disciesure on the following maliers reguired under Schedule |1 as amernded not hetng relevant or applicable in case of the Campany, same are not covered:

siNg | : - Diselosure

47,1 The Company ias not traded or invested in crypto curréncy ar virwal currency durlng the financial vear

47.2iNo proceedings have been initlated or are pending against the Company for hoiding any benam| property under the Benami Transactions
(Prahibitian} Act, 1388 {45 of 1388) and rules made thereunder

41.3|The Company has not been dedared willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or government or any goverament authority

47.4:The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement

47.5| o satisfaction of charges are pending to be fled with ROC

47.6|There are no transactions which are not recorded in the boaks of account which have been surrandered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax agsessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

47,74 Tha Campany has not advanced or loaned or invested (either from barrowed funds or share premfum or any ather sources or other kind of funds)
o of in any ather person oy entity, including foreign entity {"Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwlse,
that tha Intermediary shall, directly or indlrectly lend or Invest in ather persans or entities identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company | “Ultimate Bencflclaries™} ar provide any guarantee, security or the Pke an dehall of the Ultimate Beneficiarles;

47 8|The Company has net recelved any funds {which are malerial either individually or T the agegrepate| from any person ar entity, including forelgn
antity [‘Fundlng Barties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or
irvest in other persons or entities identlfied in any manner whatscever by ar on behalf of the Funding Party {"Ultimate Beneficiar|es) or provide
any puarantee secyurity ar the ke an hehalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

47.9/The Coampany has nct revalued Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets durlng the yaar.

47,101 Following are the details of transactions undertaken with the struck off cormpanies during the year.
. S S Outstanding ) R;éia.tlnnshlp with the
¢ Party Name Nature of transactions struck off company, IF .
o . . . Bafance .
' o any, to be discfosed

Ois Advanced Technology Pt Ltd fleceivables 55,30 [Borrowears
Shangrila Salex Pvt Ltd Receivables 549.08 |Borrowers
Advance Finvest fvt Lid Recelvables 36.22 |Borrowers
Bash Hospitality P Ltd Receivables 15.06 |Borrowers
Sai Sri 5araswathi Canstruction Pwt Lid fiaceivables 22.27 |Borrowers
Protagonlsts E Salutions Pyt Ltd Receivables 16.89 |Borrawers
Axonav Pharma Pyt Ltd Receivables 14.42 [Barrowers
Fvacay Bus And Logistics Put Ltd Receivables 13.74 {Borrowers
Aardee Technoinfra ndia Pyt Ltd Recelvables 11.56 |Borrowers
Rim It Services Pyt Ltd Receivables 11.46 |Rorrowers
Kidz Guru Limited Receivahias 9.85 [Barrowers
Polaars infradevelopers Pyt Ltd Raceivables 7.28 {Borrowers
Sanguine Maritime Service Put Ltd Recelvables 4.68 |Burrowers
Khanna Knitwears Ang Exports Pt Ltd Receivables 4,45 |Barrowers
Sterling Qurobuild Put Ltd Recolvabios 4.43 [Borcowers
Aashirward Facex Pyt Ltd Receivables 295 IBorrowers
Ip Enerpy Systems India Pyt Led Recelvahles 2.52 |Borrowers
Hbn Home Colarisers Private Ltd Rece'vables 2,10 |Borrowers
Ideal Information Guality Systems Put Ltd |Recelvables 1.51 |Barrowers
Gem Minearals Pvt Ltd Recelvahles 1.49 |Borrawers
Bee Luxe Pt {1d Receivables 1.39 |Borrowers
Garvit International Pt Ltd Receivables 1.1% |Borrowers
Avasthita Private Limited Receivables 0.97 |Borrowers
Moonwalk Events Management Pvt Ltd  [Receivables 0.71 |Barrowers
Wivinsun Solar Technalagies Pyt Ltd Recelvables .64 |Borrowers
Bt| Promotians And Advertising Pvt Ltd  [Receivables 0.54 {Borrowers
Decent Grih Nirman Pt Lid faceivables 0.51 {Borrowers
Dheer Software Solutlons Py Ltd Receivables 0.51 |Borrowers
Vivata Focds India Private Limited Receivables 0.47 |Borrowers
Falah Recrutment Senvices Pt Lid Receivabies .45 |Borrowers
inva Pio Ficlds india Put Lid Receivables 0.29 |Borrowers
Shantharam Towing And Automative RepaReceivables 0,15 |Borrowers
Ananta Geoservaices Pyt Ltd fayabies 0,02 |Borrowars
DSM Realtech Put. Ltd Payakies 0.50 |Borrowers
SOGA Metworks Py, Lid. Payables .12 |Barrowers
MARGUES ALTOMOTIVE PUT Ltd. Payables 0.85 |Dealer/Broker

|

47.15| Previous year's figures have heen regrouped ard reclassified wherever necessary to confirm ta current year's presentation.
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KOTAX MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITEDR
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{AH amaunts in INS lokhs, unless otherwise stared]

Note 48 Disclosures under Non-Banking Financiai Campany - Systemically impertant Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016

Mote 4%.1 Note to the Balance Sheet of 2 non-banking finantiat company as required in terms of Para 185 (5) of Non-Banking Finaneial Company - Systemicaly Important Non-Deposit taking
Company and Deposit taking Cempany {Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016

(a] Capital to Risk assets Ratio {CRAR]}

tems As at As at
March 31, 2023 # March 31, 2022 #
[ CRAR (%) 28.50% 30.87%
{ii) CRAR — Tiar | Capltal (%) 27.80% 29.72%
fiii} CRAR = Tier H Capital [%} 0.70% 1.15%

# The unreakised gains on Investments maasured at Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) and fair vatue through Other Comprehensive income [OC1} has net been considered as part of the
reguiatory capitzl. Simitarly, carrying value of such investments {net of fair value gains} has been considered to compute net owned funds and risk weighted assets.

[b} Exposure tn Real Estate Sector
Category As at As at
March 31, 2023 | March 331, 2022

(2] Dirzet Expasure - -

{i} Residential Mortgages -
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential 89.766.27 2207760
property that is or will be accupied by the berrower or

{ii} Commerciai Real Fstate -

tending secured by mortgages on commercial real} 219,543.61(%) | 289,778.5% (%)
estates {(office buildings, retadl space, multipurpose
commercial premises, muiti-family residential huildings,
multi-tenanted commercial premises, industriab or
warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development
and construction, etc.}, Exposure would aisg include non
fund based Himits, #

{ii) Inwestments in Mortgage Backed Securities {MBS) and
other sccurilized exposures -

a. Residentizl - - .
b. Commercial Aeal Estate - -
b} Indirect Exposursg
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on Netional - -
Housing Bank {NHE] and Housing Finance Compames.
{HFCs) .
* Includes the Company's exposure to Real Estate sector of Nif {pn:vmu:. year Rs_ 1,000.65 lakhs} which is unse
# Numbers reported are Gross Carrying Value




KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{AN amounts in INR fokhs, unfess otherwise stated)

Nete 48 Disclesures under Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company {Reserve Bank] Diractions, 2016

{c) Asset Liabilty Management

Maturity Pattern of Certain itemns of Assets and Liahilities

Particulars 1 Day to 7 Days 8 Daytc 14 Days |15 Dayto30/31| Owverone Over2 Owver 2 Dver & Over 1 Year | Owver 3 Years |Over 5 Years Total

Days [One Month to 2 | Months upto | Months upto | Moaths upte | upto 3 Years | upto 5 Years

Manth) Manths 3 Months & Maonths 1 Yaar

Liabilities
Baorrowings from banks - - 18,090.99 74,375.06 34,814.42 76, 750.60 16,877.35 48,5941.05 10,966.02 - 2.80.315.50
Market Borrowings 57,465.96 - 31,252 48 72,048.06 35,25%.96 27478523 5,64,975.84 | B,23,661.12 1,23,672.62 - 19,83,111.27
Assets
Advances 1,14,429.69 53,856.56 1,18,684.27 78,310.72 78,292 87 2,69,414.02 4,01,256.59 | 9,45,031.44 { 3.B6,277 50 | 2,24 584.29 26,74,138.24
Investments 1,65,321.93 1,142.13 22,534.64 1,228.68 1,217.37 589772 | 111348.30 31,274.03 91,16 [ 2,59,301.47 6,59,447.39

Note: The above table has been prepared in accordance with statement of structural Hguidity (contractual cash flows) as suggested in the Master Directions issued by the RBI. In computing the above information certain
: ést_imat_es,'_assumpticns and adjustments have been made by the Managament for its regulatory submission which have been relied upon by the Auditors.

Lol
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Katak Mahlndsa Prime Limited
Motes to the financlal staterments for the year ended March 31, 2023
AN pmounts in INR lokhs, uniess atherwise stated)

Note.48.2 Note to the Balance Sheet of a non-banking financlal company as vequired in tesms of paragraph ll,qnf Nan-Banking Financial Cormpa vy - Systemicaily Important
ton-Deposlt taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

Particlilats As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Liabl{itias side Amount Qutstanding] Amount Cverdue Amount Gutstanding 1 Amaunt Overdue

{11 |Loans and advances avalled by the non-banking financial company
inclusive of Interest accrued thereon but not paid:

(2) Debentures : Secured 15,17,434.56 - 12,08,416.48 -

s Ungecured [Tierll: Sub-ardinated debts) 14,376.15 - 13,557 84 .
{Other than Falling within the meantng of
Public deposits *}

{b) Deferred Credits . |

{cl Term Loans 95,197.63 g 74,826.30 -
{d] inter-corporate loans and boreowing 5,269,128 - 12,136.54 E

{2) Commerctal Paper 4,46,031.38 . 5,68,965.95 E
{f} Public Deposits* - N i
(8] Other Loans

- Cash credit 21,217.87 - 11,774.11 -
- Loans repayable on demand from banks 1,64,400.00 - B0,400.00 -
- Book averdraft - - .08 -

* Please see point {2]

{2]  |Break-up of (1)) above (Outstanding public deposits Inclusive of
Tnterest accrued thereon bult not paid)

{a} In the form of Unsecured Debentures - - - -
{b} in the form of partly secured debentures i.e. dehentures where
there Is a shartfall In the value of security - - - -
{¢) Other public deposits - - . N

Assets side As at March 31, 2023 | As ak March 31, 2033
[3)  |Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills recetvables {other than those included in (4}
betow]:
{2) Secured 74,84,879.61 20,78,944.43
{b} Unsecured 2,41,931.87 2,89,134.43

{4] [Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets caunting

As ak M 1, 2023
sowards AFC activitiest s at March 31, 2 As at March 31, 2022

{I} Lease assets Including lease rentals under sundry debtors
{a) Financial leass - -
|B) Operating [ease - -

{iil} Stack en hire including hire charges under sundey debtors:
{al Aszets on hire . - -
{b} Repossessed Assets - -

[liiy Other lozns counting towsrds AFE activitles
|a) Loans where assets have been repossessed - -
{b] Loans other than {a] above - .

HThe Campany has not disclased armount autstanding under assets financing activities under note 4 and included entire loan amount outstanding under
note 3 as RE| has merged Asset Financing Companies, Loan Companies and investment camgpanies in ko 3 new category “NBFC - Investment and Credlt
Campany” vide |5 circutar no. GN BA {FD] CC, No. 09?f03.19.001f2013v19 dated February 28, 2019,

@‘V




Katak Mahindra Brime Limited
Notes to the financial staterne nts for the year ended March 31, 2023
{4} armauints in INR takhs, unless otherwise stated)

MNote.4B.2 Nate to the Balanca Sheet of a non-banking tinancial company as raquired in terms of paragraph Wof Nan-Banking Financiat Company - Systemically Important
Non-leposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserva Bank] Directians, 2016

Assets side As at Mareh 31, 2023 JAs at March 31, 2022

{5} |Break-up of Inyestments ; §

Current lnvestments :
1. Cuoted

{i} Shares : fa) Equity - -
(b} Preference .

[ii} Debantures and Bands 42,231.74 -
{iil} Unlts of mutual funds - 10,002 .82

{ivl Government Securities 1,23.026.07 1,79,831,76]
{v) Gthers .

2. Unguoted :
(i} Shares : {a) Equity - -
{b} Praference . .
lii} Debentures and Bonds 1,59,159.56 80,931.22
{iil) Units of mutual funds . ) i
(iv] Government Securities . -
[v) Gthers — Cammercial paper - -
Long Term Inwyestments ;
1. Cuoted :
() Shares: {a} Equity -
(b} Preference - -
{il] Debentures and Bonds 9,97 L67 55,990,26
{ilt} Units of mutuai funds B .
liv) Gavernment Securities -
[v] Others

2. Unguoted :

(3] Shares: {a) Equity 2,45,028.17 2,23552B.94
(i Preference -

fiil} Crebientures and Bonds 15,015.76 78,623.40
(iil} Unlts of mutual funds - .
() Government Securities - -

{v] Others 15,013.83 -

6] |Borrower group-wise dassification of assets financed asin [3} and |4) above
Please see Note 2

As at March 31, 2023

Category Amount net of provistons
Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Partfes
(a) Subsidiaries* - 26,494 RS 26,804 B5
{b) Companies in the same group - R .
{c] Other related parties 6.42 - G2
2. Other than relatad parties 244102128 2,33,116.95 26,74,138.24
Total 24,41,021.28 2,33,11%.95 26,74,138.24
As at M&#’ch 31, 2022
Category Amaunt net of provisiens
B Securad Wnsecured Total
L. Related Parties
{2] Subsidiaries* - 2195343 21,553.43
{b} Companles in the same group - - -
{c) Other relgted parties 8.30 g B.30
2. Othesthan related parties 20,28,385.19 2,80,874.82 23,08,264.01
Tuta_l| 20,28,385.19 2,80,874.82 21,05,264.01
* Includes Fgllo'w Subsidiariss SR

B A "




Katak Mahindra Prime Limited

Nates to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
fAlf amounts in INR lokhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note,48.2 Note to the Balance Sheet af a nan-hanking financial company as required in terms of paragraph $4 of Non-

Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve
Bank) Diractions, 2016

{7} Jinvestor group-wise classification of all investments {current and long term) l shares and securities {both
guoted and unquoted):
Please see note 3 below

As at March 31, 2023

Category Market Vaiue / Break up or |Back Value {Net of Provisions)
fair value or NAV

1, Related Parties **

{a) Subsidiaries - _

{h) Companies in the same Group 2,58,452.07 2,58,432.62
{c} Other related parties 13,471.55 13,471.55
2. Other than related parties 3,87,817.39 3,87,543.22

Tatall 6,59,741.01 6,59,447,39

As at March 31, 2022

Category Market Value / Break up or |Bock Value {Net of Provisions)
fair value ar NAV

1. Related Parties *¥

{a} Subsidiaries

{b) Campanies in the same Group 2,45,679.93 2,45,574.13
{c) Other related parties 11,802.44 11,802.44
2. Other than raelated parties 3,95,330.81 3,94,531,83

Total 6,52,813.18 5,51,908.40

** Ag per Indian Accounting Stangiard issued by MCA {Please see Note 3)

o




{8) Other information

Particulars

_As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

{i} |Gross Non-Perfarming Assets*

{a) Related parties

{b} Other than related parties 65,471.38 72,950.83
{ii) INet Non-Performing Assets*

{a) Related parties - -

{b) Other than related parties 28,222.75 35,934.41

(i1} fAssets acquired in satisfaction of deht

* NPA accounts refer to stage 3 assets. Stage 3 Assets includes financial assets that have objective evidence of
impairment at the reporting date as defined under Ind AS, 91 Days Past Due and other gualitative factars has been
consldered as default for classifying a flnancial instrument as credit impaired.

Notes:

1 Asdefined In point xix of paragraph 3 of Chapter -2 of these Directions.

2 Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in Indian Accounting Standards by MCA.

3 Al Indian Accounting Standards issuad by MCA are apglicable including for valuation of Investments and other assets as
also assets acquired in satisfaction of deht, However, market value in respect of quoted investments and break up / fair
value / NAV in respect of unquoted investments shall be disclosed irrespective of whether they are classified as long term

or current in {S) above,

mxj
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Kotak Mahindss Prime Limited
Notes ta the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Alf emounts in INR lokhs, unless othenwise stated)

Note 48.3 Note to the Balante Sheet of 2 nan-banking financial company as required in terms of Para 24 of Non-Banking Financia! Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking
Compazny (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016

Note |Particulars
48.6 |Disclosure of Restructured Assets
As at March 31, 2023
s Type of Restructuring Other than CDR and SME Debt Restructuring Total
MNe Assels;:la;s:illsﬁcatmn Standard | Sub-Standard Dpubtful Loss* Total Standard Sub-Standard Doubtful Loss Total
Restructured accounts as on April 1 of No of borrowers i 350 77 - 3 430 350 77 - 3 430
1 R v Amount Jutstanding L,293.67 445,42 - 14236 | 1.B8545 1.293.67 445.42 - 142.36 1,885.45
FY {opening figures) {¥] -—
Provisign there on 261.50 162.10 - 95.61 519.21 361.50 162.10 - 935.61 51521
No of borrowers 3 - - - 3 3 - - - 3
2 |Fresh Restructluring during the year Amount Qutstanding A1.86 - - - 41.96 41.96 - - - 41.96
Provisian there on 6.38 - - 6.39 6,34 - - - £6.38
Upgradations to restructured standzrd No of burm?\rers - — = - - - = = = = .
3 . Amount Qutstanding - - - - - - - - - -
category during the FY ==
Provision there on - - - - - - - -
Restructured standard advances which
cease to atn'ravzct th_her p'roulsmnmg Na of borrowers ) ) B ) R ) _ ) ) ~
and { or additionat risk weight at the 7
4 lerud of the FY and hence need not be
shown as restructured  standard(Amount Qutstanding - - - - - - - . - R
advances at the beginning of the next
FY Provision there on - - - - - - - - - -
Downgradation of restructured Mo of borrowers _ [161) (37 137 B1 - {161} 30 137 61 -
5 accounts during the FY Amount Dutstanding {527.83) {80.13) 446,58 160.59 - {527.83} [80.13) 446,98 160.9% -
Prowision there on {102.28) {17.02) 96 48 23,52 - {102.98) (17.02) 6,48 23.52 -
Movemant of restructured accounts [N Ofborrowers ' “ : - z - ' - - "
& . Amaount Outstanding - - - - - - - - -
during the Fy —
Provision there on - - - - - - -
wWrite offs of restructured accounts No of barrowers _ - - &0 84 144 i - 80 €4 1a4
7 during the FY Amount Cutstanding - - 297,24 303,35 600.59 - 297 24 303.3% 600.55
Provision there go - - 47.52 119.13 166.65 - - 47.52 119.13 156.65
8 Restrurtured Accounts as on March 31 No of borrowers - 132 40 37 - 283 192 e 57 - 289
of the FY {closing figures) {*) AmD.J[lt Cutstanding 807.80 369.29 14874 - 1.326.83 B07.50 365.29 1458.74 - 132683
Provision there on # 16491 145.08 48,96 - 35895 164.91 145.08 48,96 - 358.85

e




As 3t March 31, 2022
e Type of Restructuring Other than CDR and SME Debt Restructuring Tetzl
No | Assets S:':;':m'"" Standard | Sub-Standard | Doubtful | Loss* Total Stardard | Sub-Standard | Doubtfal Loss Total
Restructured accounts as an April 1 of No of borrowers _ £ 121 - ES 504 220 181 - 3 504
i FY {opening figures) [*) Ampunt Outstanding 1.615.58 683.89 - 14632 1 2,445.79 1,615.58 BH3.B9 146.32 244579
Provision there on 220,02 280.14 - 135,09 635.25 220.02 280114 - 135.05 635.25
No of borrpwers 15 10 - - 25 15 10 - 25
2 |Fresh Restructuring during the year Amount Outstanding 83.03 101 86 - - 184.99 £3.03 101.86 - - 18499
Provision there an 16.27 48.07 - £4.34 16.27 48.07 - - 63.34

3 Upgradations to restructured standard ?::f bfgo‘gf“ o !391;2 [48{9122: - - - 489%? f“B{ngi Z ~ -

. ar i WE = 1 A - - - - . . - - -

category during the FY
Eary Furing the Provigion there on 195.11 (195.11) - - - 19511 {19511} - -
Restructured standard advances which|Na of borrowers - - - - - - - - -

4 {cease to atiract higher provisioning|Amount Dutstanding - - - - - - - -
and f or additional risk weight at the  [Provision there on - - - - - - - - -
Downgradation of restructured paof borrowers . {51} 51 - - - (21) 51 = = -

5 accounts during the FY Amount Outstanding (312.22} 312.22 - - - §312.22) 312.22 - -

€ Provision there on {51.56) 5156 - - {S1.56} 51.56 - - -

Movement of restructured accounts  ho.of borrowers _ - z - z - - - z - e

& during the FY Amount Gutstanding {355.45} {38.08} [3.954 (397.48) [355.45} {38.08} - (3.85} (397.48)
Provlsion there on [80.57) 26.53 - {39 49} {93.63) {80.67} 2653 - {33.49}} {93.63)

Write offs of restructured accounts No of borrowers - {50) {49 - - {89 {50} (49) = - 29}

7 during the FY Amount Outstanding {226 88) {12095} - - {347.83) [226.58) {120.95} - {347.83)
Erovlsion there on [37.67) {49.08) - - {B6.75) 137.67} [45.08) - - {86.75)

Restructured Accaunts as on March 31, NG of borrowers . 350 77 - 3 430 350 77 - 2 430

8 of the FY (closing figures) (*) Amount Dutstanding 1,2593.67 449.42 - 14236{ 1,885.45 1,293.67 445 42 - 142.36 1,885.45
Provision therz on #f 261.50 162.10 - 95 81 518.21 261.50 162.10 - 45.61 5319.21

{*) Excuding the figures of Standard Restructured Advances which do not attract higher provisioning or risk weight (if applicable)

{#} Prowision 15 based an Expected Cred}t.mss.ag per ing-AS reporting requirements

TG
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Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in INR fakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 48.4 Note to the Balance Sheet af a nan-banking financial company as required in terms of paragraph 102 of Non-Banking Financial
Company - Systemically Impartant Non-Depasit taking Company and Deposit taking Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

No./Amount Ne.fAmaunt
1|Mo of 5PVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitization transactions - -
2|Total amount of securitised assets as per hooks of the SPVs - -

sponsared by the NBFC
Totai amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to camply with
MR as an the date of balance sheet
2) Off-balance sheet exposures
First loss -
Others -
b} On-balance sheet exposures
Flrst loss .
Others
Amount of exposures to securitization transactions other than MRR
al Off-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposuse to awn securitisations
First loss -
Gthers -
ii) Exposure ta third party securitisations
First loss -
Others
b} On-batance sheet exposures
#} Exposure ko own securitisations
First loss -
Others -
i) Exposure to third party securitisations
First loss -
Others -

w

£

Note 48.5 Note to the Balance Sheet of a non-banking financial company as required in terms of Chapter Il paragraph 5 of Monltoring of frauds
in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Diractions, 2016 - - the frauds detected and reported for the year amounted to Rs. 145,76 lakh {March 31, 2022; Rs.
515,96 lakhs} )

;_.
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Kotak Mahindra Prime Limitad
MNotes to the Hnanclal striemaentis for tha year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amownts in JMR lokhs, anless otherwise stated]

Note 48 Nete to the Balance Sheed of a nan-banking flnanclal campany as requirad in 1erms of Para 73 (2} of Nan-Banking Financlzl Lampany -Systemically Impertant Non-Depas/t
taking Company and Deposit taking Compeny (Resarve Bank| Glrections, 2016
Hote
49,1 ICapial
Partlculars As at Asat
March 31, 2023 1 | March 31, 2022
i
I} CRAR (3} 28.504% I0.87%
Il CRAR -~ Ther | Capleal {3) 27./0% 39.72%
Ul CRAR ~ Tier o Capital [%} 0.70% L 15%
! Amaunt of subardinated deht rafsed as Tler-Al capltal 8,000.00 10,8C0.90
) Armount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments - -

# The unrealised galns on jnvestmants medsured at Fair value through Proflt or Lass (FYTRL] andg falr vafue through Other Comprahensive Income (OCI} has nat been considered
85 part of the regulatory capital, Simiarly, carrying vadue of such investmants {nat of {alr valie gafns) has been considered to comeate net owren funes anc dsk welghted assats,

Note
49,2 lavasiments
Particulars

As at Asat
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022

1) $value of Investments

{1 Gross Value of investiments
a) tn Indla 6,59, 741.01 6,52,813 18
b) Qutside India,

il Provisions for Depraciation

{al In [nudks 203.62 S04.78
[} Outside Indka,

iy |Wet Value af investmerits
{a] In India . 5,59,447.349 6,51,908.40
(b} Qutside India, - -

2 Movement of provislens held towards depreclatlon on kyvestinents
L] Cipening balanes 504,78 1,006,891
{ii] __ lAdd : Provisions made during the year - 55384
i), |Less : wilte-off f write-back of excess pravisians during the year 61116 6B6.01
vl [Clusing Balance 293.62 404,78

Hais
49,3 1Darlvatives:
Forward Rate Agreement [ intarest Aata Swa

{Parilculars Asat Asat
parch 3%, 202% | Mapeh 31, 2022
til The notishal principal of Forward exchange contract / swap agresments 6350000 -
(il Lesses which would be incurred if counterparties falied to fulfili thelr abligations under the 107616 -
agreements

{Hll}  |Collaterat reguired by the applicable NBFC upon entering Inte swaps . B
{iv] |Cancentration of credit sisk aristng (rom the swaps 1C0% [Banks) -
vl [The fair value of tha swap book 424,35 -

# Crass currency swaps have been Included under Currency Dervativas

aﬁﬂ}éd




Katak Mahindra Prime Limited
Motes to the flnanclal statements for the year anded March 31, 2023
(Al Brounts 1n INR lakhs, unless othenwise stated)

Naote 49 Note to the Balance Sheet af a nan-hanking fl ial y as required In terms of Para 73 (2) of Non-Barking Financial Campany -Systemically Important Non-Depos(t

taking Company and Depasit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directlons, 2056

Euchange Traded Interast Rata (IR} Derivatives

Particulars

£}] Motienal principal 2mount of exchange traded 1R derivatives undertaken duriag the year (instrument-wise) -

(i)  |MNotlonal princlpal amount of ekchange traded IR dervatives autstanding as on 31st March 2022 {Instrument- -
wized

i} |Motlanat principal amount of exchange traded 1R derivatives outstanding and not “highly effective® {Instrument-

wisa)

L5}

tark-to-market value of exchanga traded 1f derlvatlves outstanding and not "kighly effeetive™ (instrum ent-wise]

i

|Qualltative Dlsclosure
The Company has Board approved rlsk management polley In dealing with furelgn currency derivallve sransactlons inchuging Full
Cusrency Swap {FCS), Coupan Oniy Swap {CO5), Principal Ondy Swap {POS), Optlons and Farwards, The paliey pravides fer use of
derivative instruments in ging risks. The Company undertakes such derluative bransadtions lor hedging the underly'ng Habitlby.
In case of revaluation of derivative transactions, 1he same is recagnised i the baois of accounts as oer the accounting polietes of

Dis¢losures an Rlsk Evposure [n Dervadlves

the Company. Pollcy pravides far monitoring of derivatjve transactlons and reporting to Board on quartedy bass,

Quant|tatlve Dlsclosuras

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 1022

Partlculars Currency Imerast Rate Currenty Interast Rate
Deriyatlves* Derlvatives 4 Deryatives |
[} [Derkatives {Notionat Principal Amaount] 12 50600 £3 500.0C0 55,000.00 -
for hedglng $ 12,500.00 £3 500.00 55,000.00
Marked to Market Positions [1]
af Ayset {+) 929.41 42435 - -
b} Llabillty {-} - - 3313 -
(iily  |Credit Expazuras [3] - 1,076.16 2,4821.13
{iv) iUﬂhedged Exposures : - -
* Cross currency swaps have been included under Currency Derivatives
5 For aceounting refer note no 13
Nota
45,4 |Securitisation
Sr No |Particulars As af Az at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 1422
L |Nu ol SPYs sponsorad by the applicable NBFC for segurltization transaetigns - -
3 [Tatal amaunt af securitised assets as per books of the SPV; spunyored - -
3 |Total amount of exposuras retalned by tha applicabla NBFC ta comply with MRRA as on the date of balarce sheet
a) Oif-balance sheat exposures
First fasg B
Others
1} Qn-balance sheat exposuras
First loss - -
Others - -
4 |Amount of exposures to securltizatlon transactions other than MAR

a} Of-balante sheet exposures

i} Exposure 10 own securitisations

Flrst loss.

Others

11} Expasure Lo third party securibisatlons

First loss

Others

b} On-badence sheet enposures

1] Exposure to own securitisations

Flrst lass

Others

1] Exposure ta third party securiiisatlans

First loss i

Others |




Hotak Mahindra Prime Limited
Nntas to the linanciai staternents for the year ended March 31, 2043
(AN amaunts In K fakhs, tidess otherwise stated)

Note 49 Note to the Balance Sheet of 3 nen-banking fi lal cormpany as reguired in terms of Para 73 {2) of Non-Bankipg Financlal Company -Systemlcally Important Non-DapasiL
taking Campany and Duposit taking Company {Reserve Bank} Dlrectlans, 2016
Note
49,5 [Flnancial Assats soid to Securltisation / Reconstruction Company far Assey Reconsiruction
Particulers Az at As at

March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022

i |No. ¢! acrcunis .
(it |Ageregate value {ret of proviglens) of accounts sald Lo SC /RC - -
{iil] }Apgregate consideration
b} |Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts translerred in earlier years - -

v} |Agpregate gain f lass aver net book value B N

Naote
496  |Assignment trantacllans

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2021

il [Me. of aceounts
{l |Aggregate value [net of provisions} of accounts sald - .
{1} | Asaregate corsldeation
tivl |Acditlonal cons'deration reallzed in respect of 2ccounts transferrad |n earilar years - -

{u] |Aggregaie gain / ioss over net boo value - -

MNota
49.7  Inen-Perfarming Financiel Assets Furchased
Farticulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 3022
1 ||a[Nu.afaccounts purchased duriig the ysar . 5 433
{0} Aggregate oulstanding * - 51,762.00

2 |{a} Of these, numnber of accounts restructured durlng the year - -
hj Aggrepate outstandin

Non-Perdorming Financial Assets Sa|d
Partloelars As at As at

Mareh 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022

L Mo of azcounts sald

Aggregate cutstandiny N N
Agpregate consideratlon recelved . -

‘. Outstanding 35 on the date of purchase

]

e
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Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited
Metes ta the Anancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Al amounts in INR fokhs, unfess otherwise stated)

Nete 49 Note ta the Balance Sheet af a hanking financlal company as requdred In 1erms of Para 73 (2] of Nan-Banking Financlal Company -Systemlcaily impartant Non-Depaosit
taking Company and Deposit taking Company {Reserve Bank) Directlons, 2016

Note
493 |Ewposuré to Aeal Estate Sactor

Partfeulars . As at Asat
Mareh 31, 2023 | March 31, 2082

] _|Dlrect Exposure R K
{il |Aesident|sl Murtgages - - -
1&nding fuily secured by mostgages an resldentlal property that ks or will be cccupied by the 83,766.22 2207780
Bosrower ar that is rented, Exposure wouid alse Include nan fupd based limbs,
fli} |Commerdal Real Estate -
Lending secured by mortgages an commesclal real estates {offlce bulldings, retalf space,| 219,533.61 (% 289,778.9% ("
multipurpose  commercial  premises, muld-family residential buildings, mult-teranted
commercial premises, industeial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development
and constructlon, etc.). Exposure would also include mon fund based Fmits, §

Fund based and non-fund based ewpasures an Natbonal Housing Bank and Mousing Finence - -
Companies.
Tolal Expasure to Aeal Estate Sactoy 3,09,309.83 3,11,856.59

* lacludes the Company's exposure t¢ Real Estale sectar of Nil (pravious year Rs. 1,000.65 lakns] which ks ungecured,
K Mumbers reported are Gross Carrylng Valie

Note
49,9 |\Exposure to Capleal Market
Patticulars As at As at
March 31, 2823 | March 31, 1032
I |direct invastment in egulty shares, convertible bonds, convertible debenlures and unlts af 3,37,:71.86 3,23,333.94
equlty oriented mutual funds the corpus of which {5 not exdusively invested In corporate
deht;
(i} |advances agalnst shares / bonds f dahanlures ar other seeurltles or on clean basls to 47,899.599 1,34,583.63

indlvidualsi# for lavestinent in sharas (ncluding 1IPOs J ESOPs), convertible bands,
convertible debenturas, and ualts of equity-oriented mutual funds;

[lij} |advances for any other purposes where shares of convertlble bonds or converible - 5,185.78
debentures ar units of cquity oriented mulyal funds are Laken as primary securily;

liv} |aduances for any other purpases ta the exteat secured by the collateral security af shares or - -
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units oF equity ariented mutual funds |.e.
where the primary security ather than shares / convertible bands § canvertihle debentures /|
unlts af equity oriznted mutoal funds 'daes not fully cover the advances;

(v} {secured and umsecured advances to stazkbrakers and guarantees fssued on behall of - -
slackbrokers and market makers;

{uf) |loans sanctioned to corporates agalnst the securfly of shares / bonds / debentures or other! - -
securlties of on clean basls for meeting promoter's contribullan 1o the equlty of new
comganies in antlsleation of ralsine Fesrurors:

[wily |uridge loans te companies against axpected equity llows fissues; . -
{viiil {nderwirting commitments taken up by the MRFCS |n respect of primary issue of shares or - -
convertible bonds or convertible debantures or unils of equity orfented mutJal funcs,
{1} JFinancing to stockbrakers for margin trading. . -
[x} |all exposures to Alternative Funds:
fii Category | - -
i) Category |1 15,013,931 -
iy Categary Il - -
|Totaf Exposurs to Caplial Market 4,45 086,68 q,.72,103.34

#itincludas toans to corporates

A
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Katak Mahindra Prime Limlted
Hates ta the linancial statements for tha yaar ended March 31, 2023
{Adl amounis in INR lakhs, unless atherwise stated)

MNote 49 Note ta the Balance Sheet of a non-banking fI fal company as required In terms of Para 72 {2) of Non-Banking Finanelzl Campany -System|cally impartant Nan-Deposit
taking Company and Depasit taking Company {Reserva Aank) Rlredlans, 1016

Note
49,10 |Details of financing of parent eompany products: il

Mata
49.11 |patalls of SIngle Borrower Limit (SGL) / Graup Borrower Limit [(GBL) excecded by the applicable N8FC : Nil

Mota
43,12 |Unsecurad Advances
# Reler Note no. 7{B{ivk to the financiai statements

b. The Company has nat granted any advances against intangitle securities (March 31, 2022: N8,

Nate |

49.13 |Reglstratfon ohtalned From other financlal sector regulators \

IRDA reglstration: Licensa Me: $A 9271 (Licence with Kotak tahindra General insurance Limited)
Ucense No: CA 0271 (Licence with Xatak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited}

Nota .
45.14 [Panalties imposed by RBI and other regulaturs: Nil
As at Marcn 31, 2023 0.67
&5 at March 31, 3121 0.00
Note

49.15 |Ratings assigned by credit rating 3gencies and migratlon of ratings during the year
Instrument Rating:

CRISIL:

Long term debt instruments and Long term bank faclities: continues to be CRISIL AAA/Stable
Sub-ordinated debt: continues to be CRISIL AAASStable

Market Iinked debenlures: conlinues to ha CRISIL PA-MLO AAAfSEaale

Short term debt insteuments and Shart tarm hank fackiities: contliues tohe CAISIL A«

ICRA:

Lang 1erm debt instruments and Long term bank faailities: conlinuas ta be ICRAJAAAISTable)
sub-ordinated debl: cantinues to be [JCRAJAAA(STabla)

HIfty lnked debentures: contlnues to he PP-MLD[ICRAJAAA(S abie)

Shiet term deht Inctrnimente: canflHies ta he [ICRALAT+

Mote
49,36 |Remuneration of Blrectors and Transactions with non exacutive directars;

Refer Note na. 39 to the financial statements

Note
45.17 |impact ol grior perlod Ikems an current year's profit and loss: Nii

Note
49.18 |Clreumstarces In which Revenue Rezognitian has been pastponed: NI

Note
49,19 |ind AS 110 - Cansciidated FInanclal Skaterments (CFS) - Not Applicable
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Katak Mahlndra Prime Limited

Notes ta the financlal statements for 1the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amsautals In INR lukhs, unless atherwise stated)

Nole 49 Note ta the Balancs Sheet of a non-banking financial pany as required in terms of Para 71 (2) of Kon-Danking ¥l ial Campany -5y ieally lmp Naon-Dapasit
Azhing Company and Depasit \aking Company {Reserve Bank] Dirzctions, 2016
Nite |
49.20  |Provislans 2nd Confingenclas
Break up of ‘Pravislans and Cantlngencies' shown under the head expenses in Statement of Profit | For the year ended|  Far the year
and Loss March 31, 2023 anded March
31, 2022
Pravisions for cepreclatian on lnvestment 8 (632.08) [246 43)
Provislon towdrds NoA B 13.939.18} 118,317.22)
Provizlon for Stancs id Assets HHY 12.573.73) {3,197.24)
ad Debts written off fNel of Recaveries] R 80595 10,891.09
Others 14.32 13.87
Total Provisions and Contlngencles {4,671.72} {10,855.99]
Provision made towards Income Lax ™ F,578.00 28,265.42

i Provislon far depraclatlon on tnvestments {Includes ECL provislon on Investrvents and acly
#H Provision Tor Stage 3 assets

4 Provisten for standard assets |s Included In provision towards Impairment uf financlal Instruments other than proviston for stage 3

* Provision made bowards Income taw Includes current tax onby,

Mote
49.21 Loraw Bown from Reserves: Nil
Note | ]
4923 T?-.‘ of Advances
{Partlculars For the year ended| Far the year ended March 31, 2022
March 33, 2023
Tota: Advances to twenly largest borrowers 2,20,3048.12 4,25,603.27
Percartore of Advances to twanly largest burrewers to Total Advancas of the applicat:e M8FC £.08%

l?.gﬂéi
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Kotak Mahinda Prime Eimited
Notes 4o the {inancial statements tor the year ended March 31, 2023
Al ornounts [n INA fokhs, unless othenwise stated]

Naote 4% Note to the Halante Sheet of a nan-banki
taking Campany and Depasit taking Company {Resarva Bank) Directlans, 2016

financial ¢

pany as required in terms of Para 73 {2} of Non-Banking Financal £

¥ ally Important Nen-Depuosit

Nute |
49,23 |Concentratlon of Exp a5
Partlcuiars Far the yaar ended| For the year ended March 31, 2022
Mareh 31, 2023
Yatal Exposurs "o twanty largest borrowers [ customars 5,15,793.51 8,31,4406.54
Perzantage of Exposures ta twenty largast borrowars / customers to Tobal Expesuras of the 11.15% 18.19%
lapplicable NBFC an borrowers / custamers
* inchuding Investments at lalr value
** Expasures refers to hlgher of sanciloned Hmits of outstanding. Sanctioned limits are unconditionally cancellable at any 1ime by the company withaut prior netlea,
Nate
49.24  |Concantration of NPAs
Partleulars For the yzar anded| For the year ended March 31, 2022
March 31, 2023
Total Exposura to top four NPA accaunts ** 5349615 4 975.63
** NPA accourts refer to stage 3 assels. Stage 3 Assets Incluces finanzlal assets that have hh]zc:ive evidance of Impalrment at the
repcrting data as defined under Ind AS. 91 Days Past Due and other qualitative fackors has been considered as default for classifying a
fimancial instrument a5 credlt impalrad,
Note |
40,25 |Sectar-wisa NPAs
For the year ended March 31, 2023 | Far the year ended March 31, 2022
Sr Ko Sectar
Percentage af NPAs to Total Percantage of NPAs 10 Tatal
Advancas [n 1thal Seclor Aduancesin that Sector
1 Agrieulture & aliled activitles -
2 |MsME - -
3 Corparate borrowers Q.13% 0.055%
4 Serylees - -
5 Unsecured gersonal ioans 5.11% 11.52%
6 Auto loans 2.63% 3.57%:
2 Chher parsonal foans - -
Note
4926 |Movement of MPAs %
Partlculars Asat Asat
March 31,3033
[} |Met MPAs to Net Advances f%[ 1.05% 1.56%
{1 |Moverret of NPAs iGross]
{a] Opening ba-ance 72,950,831 93,517 €1
{b} Additions durlng the year 240344 52,222.60
{ch Meductions dur'ng the year [31,504.1H {1 795 38}
d) Cosirg nalance 6547138 72,950,823
H) [Mevemept of tigt MPAS
{2l Qpening balance 35.934.43 43,835.15
{6} Additions during the year 10,362,789 36,959.78
[c} Recuctions durlng the year {18,079.45) 144,860.50]
d] Closing palance 2823235 35,934.43
{iv] |Movement of provigions for NPAs {oxcluding provisions gn standard assets
[a) Opening halance 17,016.42 49,602.47
[b] Prowlsians made during the year 131656.94 15,263.84
{c} Wrlle-off / write-back of excess provisions {13 424 73} [27,928.85)
{d} Closing balsnce 37,248,623 3701642

5 NP accounts refer to stage 3 assets, Stage 3 Assets includes financial assets that have objecthee svidente of impairment at the reporting
date as deflned under Ind AS. 91 Days Pasl Duve and ciber gualitative Factars has been consldered as default for lassifying a financial
instrument as cradit impalred.




Kotak Mahldra Prime Lim|ted
Notes tathe finantlal statermanis for ihe year ended March 31, 2023
[AR amaunts In INR lokhs, unfess otherwise stoled)

Neote 49 Note to the Balance Sheet of a non-banking fimanc|al company as required in terms of Parz 73 [2) of Non-Banking Flnancial Company -5y itally impoertant Nonr-Deposit
13king Campany and Deposit taking Company {Reserve Sank) Directions, 1016

Kote

49.27 |Qyerseas Assets {for thase with Jalot Ventures and Substdiaries abraad)
Name of the Jaint VentureS Subsidiary  Other Partner in the JY Country Total Asselsl
N

Note
4923 |OH-balanca Sheet $PYs spansared

Name of the SPV spansored Domestic Querseay
NA

o




Hotah bahlndea Panie Limbted

He:bes (3 Tha finnngin] slalaments for The yedr anded Mirch 33, 2023

{AUl amaeats in INR fnkie, cerlest atherwlse riated]

Mate 48286 Reluted Party Bh<fosura

4

b

¥ pded e A Key ¥ Relalives ol Key
ear 2|
i g '
items/Rcated Party warchay | Hoiding Company Companles Others Personpoh Wdnagge m el Totd
Parsanne]
Bamrowlngs 2023 204 .641,72 18, f6L. 15 T B 333,402.88
022 156,119.40 16,035.23 - e - 175,154.63
Tepostis 2023 - - T T
- a7 | . ]
2023 5820 12591 | o TR
__ 2017 15,45 38,42 - - 4o
Ibraness 2023 9,20 T . 5.2
1024 118.73 -l - 134,73
nve stmonl s 2323 - ISAASTL) | I
B 027 245,679.02
Purchase u_[ FE"!‘;&.A;SI!;-S,‘.OH\CF assels 2013 . _ T
S 222 - :
Sale of Fix-ei-azwis_mﬂ'.er assals 2023 - 042 - — - - n.4?
2022 011 . 0.1
jinterest Pald 2021 .. 50708 V4IT2E M R e 2002
— 022 9.534.61 735068 o T 41,7659 |
interest Reaglued wa| 16197 B i
2002 59653 -
Bank dalsnces 2023 10664.39 . ) AN
2022 20,731 35 - 20,/31.3%
Share perviee recelvablas 023 | FhaE 63,95 - - - L4390
. 04k LEEYS Y A5.85 B T . ;.85
Interesk Museivables - w2y . bS] e L R
02 0.3 - -
Shisrad Siervice payabla 2023 1,2%8.90 184,20 o 1184, 18
2072 582,20 og| o bk 27
laterest Fayable s 0n 105 b
I-.. ?022 - ~
..... 1 — J— — - o _
pliry] - i
i
“hare Caphtiliface value] 0 178.26 171,76 - 349,52
141 17430 i71.2b - . . 345,52
Qrher Payables o 02 NI4G 001 | - _ | wisR
_ 1022 38975 ] ) 38879
e 073 o T g
pirrd - L 3
Othet Income ma 290,32 2.128.02 R R 391834
2002 £69.94 14160 . - 161844
ihot eupense 1023 A,641.93 R56,75
[ ] 011 135180 Tonsi | o
2043 355765 320,30 i - ) 2
o o2 3.015,03 2,20 3.248.23
Share Service licome 2023 T340 023 - - - 3.5
2022 w4 o.M . . 1065
Capllal cantributicn fiom gdrent 2043 5U0.81 ! . . - o)
iz Al1.18 - i - - 417




Hotak Mahlndra @rime Limited
Mates ta the Erencial statements for the year anded March 31, 2023

AN amounls T2 IR kakhs, uniess othenwise siole,

Note to Lha Balance Shaat of @ nen-banking financial campany as required In accardanca with Scala based regulatlon framewark

Haote
42.19.1 |Expasura ba real astate seckar I
Refer Note - 49.8
I 4%.39.2 [ Exposure to capltal market |
Reler Nate - 49.9
o] |
| 49.28.3 [Secteral Exposure |
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Tol,
Total Exposura Parcentage of Grass [Ind::::::a;;:!:e Pereentape of
Sectors {Inctudss on balance NPAs to total Gross NPAs to tolal
Grags NPAS sheat and off- Gross NPAs
sheet and olf-balanca expostire in that balanca sheat akposlre in that
an
heet = ot
sheet expasure) sector exposure sector
1. Agricultura and Allled Actlvites . i i -
2. Industry
Total Industry . N _ N N
3, Seryices .
T} Commerclal Real Estate 109,857,138 0763 0.15% 2,15,516.96 195,37 e
1) MRFCs 37,5000 - 0.00% 0481215 -
Tatal Services 14745713 207 63 &,14% 2,A6,320.11 195.37 0.07%]
4, Persanai Loans
11} Velvicle/buts Laans 10,07,422,03 52,858.24 7.63%] 16,18,390.35 57,180.63 3.33%;
{i] Other Retait toans 9462538 4,811.35 5.00% 067714 &, 143,67 11.52%)
{iii) Consumer Durables - - - LERT 43.64 100.00%)
Advances to individuals against Shares,
{11 Ade ' = " - - 183318 -
Bonds
Tata| Paisenal Loans 21,02,042.21 57,669.59 2.74% 16,91,964.58 55,367,495 3.86%
I5. Others, if any
|ty Oehar Non-foad Credu 4,77.301.15 7,594.91 1,508 3,69,785.18 FELERT) 1.50%
Tala! ather Lozns 4,77,302.15 7,594.9% 1.59%. 3,89,785. 18 7,362,52 1.90%
Note
I. The dis¢losures as abave shall be basad an the sector-wise and [ndustry-wise bank ered(t (316C) return submitted by scheduted commercial banks to the
Reserve 8ank ane putlished by Reserve Rank as ‘Sectaral Deploymert of Bank Crec:t’.
i, In the disclosures as above, I withir a sectar, exposure to a spacific sub-sectorfindustey s more than 10 ger cent af Ther | Capital of 3 NBFC, the same shall ba
cisclosed seoarately within that sector, Further, wAlhin a sacter, U exposure Lo speclflc sub-sectorfindustop is less
thar 10 per cant of Tier | Capltal, such exposures shall be clubzed ard disclosed as “Others” within that sector,
[ Hote I
E 49.23.4 linwa - Group Exgoyura !
Partlculars Asar Asat
March 31, 2031 March 31, 2022
1§ Tatal amaunt ol inkea-group expitures 26.894.85 11,853.43
[II} Total amaunt of top 20 Etra-group exposures 16,264,85 2195343
i) Percerkags of infra-groLp exposures to ol esposure af NBFC on 3585 0.40%
borrewarsfeustomers.
f Nols i i

r 49.79.5 1Unhndged forzlgn currency exposure

The company dues not have any unbedged foreign currency exposure during the yaar,
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Mayx Balatca durlng the year*

Relatives of Hey
Year ended Suhsidiary Aszociatesf Key Management
ed P Iding C M t Tot.
items/Relat arty March 31 Holding Company Companles Others Personnel andgemen al
Personnel
Harrowing 2023 2 ,08,000.00 21,506.00 200056 - - 2,31,500,56
pitr 3,71,000.00 45,500.00 - - - 4,16,500.06
Cagostt paisrk - - - ~ - -
2033 - - - - - B
Flacement of depasit i3 1,20,016.29 125.52 - - - 1204221
022 2,12,505.90 40.19 - - - 2,12,546.09
Adyances 623 - 95.36 - - - 55,35
2022 - 11503 - - - 119.03
Investmonts 2033 - 29,754.00 40,17 - - 29,7594 .17
2022} - 2175400 40,17 - - al.734.17

* Miax ba-ance during the year represents IGAAP Hslances.
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Katak Mshindra Prime Limited
Notes to the financlal statemants for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
(AR amaunts In INR lakhs, unless othenuise stoied)

MNote 44,19.7 Disclosure Requlred by Reserve Bank of Indlz on custemer camplalnts

$r. Mo |Particulars 2022-2013 2021-2022
LiMurber of complalnts pending at beglnning of (e year &4 33
21 Mumber uf complalnts recelved during the yaar 4968 4516
3| Murnher of comglalnts diipased during the year 4971 4789
3,1|0f which, number of camplaints relecled by Lha NBFC 133 1B%
4|Numiber of complaints pending at the end of the year 33 13
Maintalnabla camplalms received by the NBFC from OHlge af Ombud:
5r. Mo Partlcufars 2012-1033 2021-2022
Number of maintainable complaints recalved by the REFC
5(fram Qfflce of Ombud 218 289
OF 5, numbser af camplaints resalved in favour of the NBFC
91| by Offce of Qmbud 215 244
OF 5, number 2 complalnts resoived thecugh
congilfation/medlationfadvisories issued by Offica of
5.2 |Ombu dsman 3 5
CF 5, ber of nlaints resclved after pawsing of
S.3{ awardds by Offlce of Omt agalnst the NBFC . .
ber of Awards unirmnpl 1ted within the stipu:ated
& |¥me (other than those appealed} - R
% Increase decrease
Number of Mumber ol Irt the pumber af Number of Ot 5, numher of
complaints perdlag [complai complalnts recelvad laii camplalnt
at the beginning of  |recelwed during over the previnus panding at the end jpanding beyond
Graunds of comglalnts, §.e. tomplaints relatirg ta] \he year the year Wear af the year 30
1022-20]13
Loans and advarrces - Incorract Detally 18 1,762 4% 12 -
Loans snd advances - Ko objection Certifcsle related 11 478 4% 8 -
Laans and advances - EMI related 7 55R -31% 4 1
Loans and advances - CIAIL Related i 4317 135% 7 2
Laans and advances - Collection Reiated 10 410 12% 12 1]
2021-2027
Loans and advances - Incarrect Dedalls 10 1,423 17%] 18 -
Loans and advances - No abjection Certificate relaled 3 341 85% 11 -
Loans and advances - EMI related 10 804 -19% ?
Loans and advances - Coilection Related 5 65 9% 13
Laans and advances - C1BIL Related 189 l A% 1 b

o




Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Alf gmounts in INR igkhs, unfess otherwise stoted)

Mote 49.30 Disclosure Required by Reserve Bank of India on Liquidity Risk Under Liquidity Risk Management Framework
49.30.01 Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR}

Average Q) 2022-23

Avarage Q2 2022-23

Average (3 2022-23

Average (34 2022-23

5. No: ‘Particulsrs T Totai [ Total ] Vol [ . Total Total - [ Total .| . Total . Total

: ‘Unweightad | Weighted | Unweighted | Weighted .| Unweighted | Weighted - | Unweightéd | Weighted

~ Value' " Walue Value _Value NValue: -1 Valpe -} Value Valus-
High Quality Liquid Assets
1.0 Total High Quality Liguid Assets [HQLA) 200,529 2,00,529 177,229 1,77,228 1,77,500 1,77,500 1,93,484 1,593,484
Cash Outflow:

2.0 Deposits (for deposit taking companies) - - - - - - - -

20 Unsecured wholesale funding 77,707 £8,363 64,941 76,982 53,921 73,509 30,323 34,871
4.0 Secured wholesale funding 17,082 31,144 29,754 34,217 32,319 37,167 63,470 72,980
5.0 Additional reguirements, of which: - - - - - - - -

Outflows related to derivative expasures
i} and other collateral reguirements - - - - - - - -
Gutflows related to loss of funding on debt

(it} products - - - - - - - -

(iif} Credit and liquidity facilities - - - - - - - -

6.0 Gther contractuai funding ohligations 74,245 85,382 1,70.665 1,896,265 1,58,875 1,82,706 1,55,900 1.79,285

7.0 Other contingent funding obligations 1,41,754 1,638,017 23.420 26,934 27,781 31,947 35,176 40,453
8.0 Total Cash Outflow 3,20,788 3,68.906 2,940,781 334,398 282,895 3,25.329 2,284,869 3,27,599

Cash Inflows;

.0 Secured lending 91,565 6s,674 95,109 71332 1,03,305 77478 1,17,297 57,973
10.0 Infiows from fully performing exposures - - - - - - - -
110 [Other cash inflows: 28,034 21,025 31,788 23,841 45,982 34,487 33,924 25,443
12.0 Total Cash Inflow 1,19,599 89,699 1,26,397 95,173 1,49,287 1,11 965 1,51,221 1,13,416

Components of HQLA

Cash and Bank Balance - 7,235 - 5.808 - 7,835 - 7,414
Securities (Thills/ Gsecs SDLs at MTM - 1,93,294 - 1,714 - 1,639,665 - 1,386,070

Total Total Total Total

Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted

Value Value Valup Value
13.0  |Total HQLA 2,00,529 - 1,77,228 - L77,500 - 193,484
14.0 Total Net Cash Outflows 2,179,207 - 2,39,215 - 2,13,363 - 2,14,183
t _15.0  {Liquidity Coverage Ratio % * 7L82% 74.08% £3.19% 30.34%

*In accordance with the quidity nsk managemm_ﬁamewcrk, the Company has mamtamed mmhan 603 of hiquidity coverage ratio with effect from December 1,2021 and more
than 70% of Ilquldlty coverage ratio with effect fram December 1, 2022,

s




49.30.02. Qualitative disclosure around LCR

Reserve Bank of India (RBI} has introduced the Liquidity Coverage Ratic {LCR) requirement for all depaosit-taking NEFCs and non-deposit taking NBFCs with un asset size of Rs. 5,000
crore and above w.e.f. December 1, 2020, LCR seeks to ensure that the Company has an zdequate stock of unencumberad High Cuality Liquid Assets (HQLA) lasting for 30 calendar
days to meat its Iquidity needs under 2 significantly severe liquidity stress scenarie.

The Board is resporsible tor the overall management of liquidity risk. The Board has constituted Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) and Risk Management Committee
(RMC) for on-going overall risk manageenent including liquidity risk managemeant. Treasury is vested with the responsibility of managing lguidity risk within the risk tolerance of the
Company.

The Board has approved and adopted Liguidity Risk Managament Framework whereby it has prescribed tolerance limits for granular maturity buckets for structural liquidity gaps and
for stock ratios end has alse prescribed Liquidity Stress testing scenarios to assess the Company’s vulnerability 1o stressed business f market condilions. The Board has advised metrics
for various liguidity risk manitoring parameters including concentration of funding, early warning market related indicators, etc for due noting by ALCO,

The Board has approved the policy on LCR as per the extant RBI guideline for strict adherence by the Company. LCR is aimed at measuring and promoting short-term resilience of the
Company to patential liguidity disruptions by ensuring maintenance of sufficent HQLAS to survive an acute stress scenario lasting for 30 calendar days.

The LCR requirement has been introduced in a phased manner with the Company required to maintain minimum LCR of 50% from December 1, 2020 eventually increasing to 100% by
December 1, 2024. The requirement as on March 31, 2022 is 60% for the Company.

With effect from December 1, 2020, on a daily basis, as per the exlant RBI guideline, the Company maintains a liguidity buffer, by ensuring it has sufficient HQLA that can be converted
inte zash easily 2nd immediately to meet its Equidity needs under a 30 calendar days liquidity stress scenario.

The LCR ratic comprises of HOQLAS as numerator and net cash outflows in 20 calendar days as denominator. In order to determine HGLA, the Company considers cash and bank
balances, investment in government securities (incl. T-biils and state development ipans) without any haircut. tn order to determine net cash cutflows in subsequent 30 calendar days,
the Company considers total expectad cash outflows minus total expected cash inflows. As prescribed by the extant RBt puideline, stressed cash flows is computed by assigning a
predefined stress percentage to the overall cash inflows and cash outflows. Total expected cash cutflows (stressed outflows) are caltulated by multiplying the outstanding balances of
various categories or types of liabilities and off-balance sheet commitments by 115%. Total expected cash inflows [stressed inflows) are calculated by multiplying the outstanding
balances of various categories of contractual receivables by 75%. Net cash outflows over next 30 calendar days is computed as stressed outflows less minimum of (stressed inflows or

75% of stressed outfipws).
For calculation of HQLA, the Company considers cash and bank balances, investmant in government securities (incl. T-bills and state development loans) without any haircut. Such

secusities are valued at their market vaiue. Cash outflows under unsecured and secured wholesale funding includes contractual debt repayment obligations in the naxt 30 calendar
days. Outflows under other contractual funding obligations includes Interest payable and sundry payable in the next 30 calendar days. Cutflows under other contingent funding
obligations includes unutilised uncommitled revocable facilities Lo borrowers. Cash inflaws includes contractual inflows from performing exposures in next 30 calendar days. Other
Cash inflows includes investments in mutual funds, weps, deposits, CPs et which are maturing within 20 calendar days. Currently, the Company does not have an unhedged foreian
currency exposure and resultant there is norCurféncy mismatch in LCR.
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Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited
Notes o the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

fAN amounts in [NR Jakhs, unless otherwise staoted)
Note
4531 {Asset Liability Management Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities
Particulars 10ayto7 EDay told 15Days Upto | Cver 1 Month Over2 Dver 3 Over i Owver 1 Year & upto 3 | Over 3 Years | Over 5 Years Total
Days Days 30/31 Days upto 2 hMonths | Months upto | Months & Months & Years &upto 5
3 Months upto 6 upto 1 Year Years
Manths
Deposits Na N& }7 NA| NA| Nay N NA N NA NA M|
Agvances 1,14,428.69 53,856.55 1,18,684.27 78,310.72 78,292.87| 2.685,414.02 4,01,256.58 9,45,031.44) 3,85277.80 2,28,554.29 26,74,138.24
Investrents 1,65,321.93 1,142.12 82,534.64 1,228.68 1,217.37 5,897.72 1,11,348.30 31 274.02 91.16| 2.59,301.47 _b,59,447.39
Borrowings 57,465.96 - 49,343.47 1,46,423.12 70,074.39| 3,51,53583] 5,81853.19 8,72,592.161 1,34.638.64 - 22,63,926.76
Fareign Currency assets
Foreign Currency lishilities ] 44 455.74 11,517.13 55,982.87

St




HOTAX MAHINDRA PRIME LINHTED
Holas te Fe Anancial siatements for 1he yaar ended WMarch 31, 2023
(AN armnaunts it INR fokhs, uniess otherwise stated)

Note Public disclosure on liguidity risk
531  Fundirg Concentration based on significant counterparty {both deposits and borrawings)
As ol March 31, 2023

Number of Significant Amcunt {Rs. Lakhs} % of Total deposits | % of Tatel Lkabltiles
Courllerparties

17 1,869,364 A 78.32%

As at March 31, 2022 . -
Number of Signiflcant Amcunt {Rs, Lakhs} % of Total deposits | % of Tetal Liabilities
Counterpariles

20 1,724,560 mA BLL0%

“Slgniflcant counterparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or alfiliated counterpatios accounting In
aggregale for mora than 136 of the MBFC-NGSI's, MBFC-Ds total Rakilitles and 10% for other nen-deposit taking NBFCs

50.2  Top 20arge deposits famouat in Bs, lakhs and % of total depostts|
N.A

50.3  Top 10 borrowings {amount 1n Rs. lakhs and % of total borrowings|
As at March 31, 2023

Amount (Rs. Lakhs] | % of Total Borrowings
451,908 | 1B, 64%

As ai March 31, 2022
| Amount {Rs. Lakhs) | % of Total Borrowings
409,854 | 20.93%

B Funding Concentration Lased on significant [nstrument/producy

Numbrer of Instrument/Products As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022 l
Amount |Rs. Lakhs] Amount [R5, i.akhs) % of Tolal
% of Total Liakilitles Liabilitles
Non Convertible Debenture 1,517,434.56 b3.57% 1,209,916.48 54.92%
Commergial Pager 440,031.38 Wee% 563,966.95
Barnk loans 280,815.50 119715 147,000.43
Sub-prdinated Debt 14,370.15 0.60% 13,55 7.84
Inter corporate deposits 5,269.18 0.22% 12,136.54

50.5  S1ock Patios:

{2) Commertial papers 85 a As at March 31, 2023 [As at 0darch 3%, 2022
% of total public funds 19.70% 20.01%
5 of total abilities: 1B.65% 27.30%
|3 of total assets: 13.08% 18.52%

() Non-convertible debentures {original maturity of less than ona year) as a % of total public funds, tatal lizbilltlas and total assets; Nii

[c} Other shori-term liabiliiies As gt March 31, 2023 |As at March 3, 2022
% of totad pulilic hands A.09% A,00%%
% of total Yinbifitles; 2.93% 3.75%
% of tota) azsets: 2.05% 2.60%

50.6 institutional set-up for liquldity risk management
The Board ol Directors {the board) of Ihe Company has delegated the responsibillity Tor augoing balsnue shiet LiguidHy Risk managament
to the Assef Liakllity Committes (ALCO).
In order to manage/mitigate |lquidity risk, the Company has defined s llguidity risk management strategy and prodential internat limit
Tor Liquidity Gap tolerance for its varlous time Luckets In addition Lo regulatory limits on llguidity gaps, which is approved by the Board,
Treasury 1s responsibie for managing liguidity urder the prescribed Bguidity sk manageinent framework ard the same = manitored by
ACQ f Board.
Liguidity risk management strategles and praciices are reviewed te align with changes to the enersai sovircament, including regulatory
changes, business conditions and market developments,
The Company has adaptad Liguidlty risk management framework as regulred under REE regulation,
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Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts in INR lakhs, unfess otherwise stated)

Note 51 Disclasure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notification DOR {NBFL).CC.PD.No.109 /22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020 pertaining to

Asset Classification as par RBt Norms
As at March 31, 2023

SR Asset, Gross Carrylng Loss Allowances | Y pravisions Differenca .-
. ) . _ i i ) - d AS.
Asset Classiflcation as per RBI Norms classificatlo Amount as per {9r.o_uisions} 2 Net Carrying “| required as per het_weg.n I-n, A
PR . nasperind; - e AsH required under Ind Amount IRACP nosms @ 169 provisions
AS 108 S AS 109¢ E : PRI C and IRACP norm
. {1) {2) (3 {4 {5}={3)-14) (6 {n=(ar-16)
Performing Assets
27,5 : 625,50 42,763, 11,3186, ,308,
tandard Stage 1 7,55,389.13 12,625 27,42,763.03 316.12 1,30%.38
Stage 2 90,266.86 5,869.83 84,397.03 358,52 5,511.31
Stage 3 1,111.41 397.604 71337 5.25 392,38
Subtotal 28,45,767.90 18,892,96 28,27,874.43 11,679.89 7,213.07
Non-Performing Assets [NPA}
Substandard Stage 1 - - -
Stage 2 - - - - -
Stage 3 24,265.71 9,923.53 14,346.18 8,383.71 1,539.82
Substandard {A} 24,269.71 9,923,533 14,346.18 8,383,711 1,535.82
Doubtfui
Doubtful - up ta 1 year {age 2 123.97 14,15 105.82 36.19 {22.04)
Stape 3 - - - - -
Doubtful - 1 to 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Doubtful - more than 3 years Stage 3 34,178.30 22,964.60 11,213.70 21,679.40 1,285.22
Doubtful {B) 34,302.27 22,978.75 11,323.52 21,715.55 1,263.16
Loss Stage 3 5,912.71 3,962.86 1,849.35 2,561.99 1,400.28
Loss (C} 5912.71 3,962.86 1,945.85 2,561.99 1,400.B8
Subtotal of NPA [A+B+C) 54,484.70 36,865.14 27,619.56 32,661.28 4,203,86
Other items such as guarantess, joan 47.96 (47.56) - 47.96
. Stage 1
commitments, etc, which are In the scope of
Ind AS 109 but not covered under current 16.26 [16.26) - 16.26
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Stage 2
Provisionlng [IRACP] norms
Stage 3
Stage 1 27,55,389.13 12,673.46 | 27.42,715.67 11,316.12 1,357.33
Tatal Stage 2 90,390.82 5,900.24 84,490,58 394,71 5,505,53
Stage 3 65,472.13 37,248.63 28,223.50 32,630.34 4,618.28
29,11,252.07 55,822.33 28,55,425.75 44,341.17 11,481.15
st




As at March 31, 2022

Asset

_ _  Gross Carrying Loss Allowances Provisians " Difference
. o classificatio {Previsions) as Met Carrying | . . between Ind AS
Assat Classificatlon as per RBI Norms Amount as per : reguired as per .
S . o n as per Ind . required underInd|  Amount 109 provisions
' . AS109 Ind A5 " asioer IRACP norms @ | -\ 4 IRALP norm
) @ S oa) E=EH el ] (sla)e)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 24.,40,033.97 17,532.78 24,22 51119 9,850.62 767216
= Stage 2 hB,376.16 7.185.80 61,190.27 512.19 6,673.71
Stage 3 2,776.15 1,352.19 1,423.96 13.37 1,338.82
Sitbtotal 25,11,186.29 26,060.87 24,85,125.42 10,376.17 15,684.70
Non-Performing Assets (NPA}
Substandard Stage 1 92.70 4.35 88.35 1554 {11.19}
Stage 2 15,214.93 3,293.63 11,921.30 2,353.79 935.85
Stage 3 21,328.53 8,320.09 13,008.44 4,215.42 4,104.67
Substandard [} 36,636.16 11,618.08 25,018,08 6,584.74 5,033.33
Daubtful
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 2 298,32 46,18 253,14 58.92 (12,74}
Stage 3 7A02.67 1.626.64 4, 776,08 1,523.28 1,103.36
Doubiful - 1 to 3 years Stage 3 4,110.27 '1,72031 1,389.95 1,450.23 260.08
Douhtful - more than 3 years Stape 3 27846 22012 53.34 22834 (8.22)
Boubtful [B) 11,0%0.72 4,613.25 6,477.47 3, 270,77 1,342.48
Lass Stage 3 38,054.75 2237706 15,277.70 3216415 {9,387.09)
Loss {C} 38,054.75 22,777.06 15,277.70 32,164.15 {5,387.09)
sSubtatal of NPA [A+B+C) 85,781.63 a9,008.39 46,773.25 42,019.66 {3,011.27}
Cther items such as pguarantees, loan Stage 1 42,51 (42.51) -
; i e 42.51
commitrnents, etc. which are in the scope of
Ind AS 109 but not covered under current Stage 2 14.43 (14.43) N
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and 14.43
Provisloning [IRACP) norms Stage 3 " -
Stage 1 24,40,126.67 17,569.64 24,20, 557.02 9,860.16 7,703.47
Stage 2 §3,890.42 10,540.14 73,350.28 2,524.90 7.815.24
Total Stage 3 72,950.84 37,016.41 35,934.43 39,604.78 (2,588.37)
25,95,967.93 65,126.19 25,31,841.73 52,395.84 12,730.34

@ Represents provision amounts as per Company’s NPA provisioning policy which 15 in compilance with the IRACP norms and also Includes general
provision of Rs 208,75 lakhs (Mar -22 Rs.642 58 fakhsy created agalinst standard assets in accordance with RBI's Covld-15 rellef package

*Investment measured at FVOCI has not been considered above in gross carrying amount and |oss allowance. The falr value of the investment 1s IR

440,313.58 lakhs [Mar -22 INR 437,982.67 lakhs) a

impalrment on POCE assets.

nd loss allowance is INR 21.53 lakhs (Mar -22 INR 155,48 lakhs). Further, It does not include changes in




Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited
Nates to the financial statemnents for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 52 Disclosure pursuant to SEBI circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/Pf2018/144 dated Novembey 26, 2018 far the year ended March 331, 2023

paid, in case of shortfall in the required
borrowing under the framework

Annexure A
S . Particulars " Details.
‘No. . s :

1 IName of the Carnpany Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited

2 |CIN U672000MH1996PLCO97730

3 {Qutstanding borrowing of Company as on 31st 22.639.27

March 2023 (Rs. in crl
4 [¥ighest Credit Rating During the previous FY CRISIL:
along with name of the Credlt Rating Agency Long term debt instruments and Long term bank faciiitics: continties to be CRISIL

AAA/Stable
Sub-ardinated deht: continues to be CRISIL AAA/Stable
Market linked debentures: continues to be CRISIL PP-MLD AAAjStable
Short term debt instruments and Short term bank facilities: continues to be CRISIL Al+
ICRA:
Long term debt instruments and Long tarm bank facilities: continues to be
[ICRAJAAA(Stable)
Sub-ordinated dabt: continues to be (ICRAJAAA[SEabie)
Nifty linked debentures: continues to be PP-MLD[ICRAJAAA(Stable)
Short term debt instrurnents: continues ta be [FCRAJAL+

S [Name of Stack Exchange in which the fine shall be

BSE

We confirm that we are a Large Corparate as per the applicability criteria given under the SEB! circular SEBY/HQ/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated
Navernber 26, 2018.

Annexure 81

Sr. Particulars Details
No. :
1 {Mame of tha Company Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited
P45 U672000MH1996PLC097730
3 |Report filed for FY 2022-23
4 _|Detalis of the barrowings (4] figures in Rs, crore);
i. _|Incremental borrowing done in FY {(a) 7,086.00
i, iMandatory barrowlng to be dane through 1,771.50
issuance of debt securities {b) = [25% of a)
ili. Actual borrowings done thraugh debt securities  |6,436,00
in FY {c)
iv. |Shartfaliin the mandatary borrowing through NA
debt securities, if any (d} = {b} - [c)
(i the calculated value Is zere or negative, write
"ail"
v. [Reasons for short fall, if any, in mandatory NA
horrowings through debt securlties

Note: incremental borrowing done in ¥ and actual borrowings done through debt securities in FY, do not inelude inter corporate harrowings
between a parent and its subsidlary S

o




Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 3%, 2023
{Alt amounts in INR lokhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 53.1 The disclosure requirements as required by RBI circular dated 6th August, 2020 {Resalution
Framework 1.0} and 5th May 2021 (Resoiution Framework 2.0) as at 31st March, 2022,

- Type of horrower

‘Expasure to
accounts classlfied
as Standard

consequent to
imgleméntétinn of

of{a),
apgregate debt
that slipped

of {A}. amount
written off
during the half -

of {A} amount
paid by the
borrowets

"Exposure to
accounts classified
" as Standard

consaguent to ~ |
implementation of

resojution plan— - |into NPA during ‘during the half-| resolution plan— |
Position asat the [the half-year* * . \rea.rfl . .year Positian as at the
end of the previous | © ...+ ' o end of this half -
half - yearn - . o year M
{n) : {8) ' ) (B - )
Personal Loans 525.06 42.22 33.46 179.86 06,98
Corporate persons* 21.00 - - 10.65 10.35
Of which, M5MEs - - - - -
Others - - - - -
Total 550.06 42.22 33.46 190.51 317,33

*as defined in section 3(7) of the insolvency and bankruptcy code, 2016
** Slipped into NPA during the half year as per {RACP norms.
Ax Exposure as on 31st March, 2022 Includes interest capitalisation.

There were no borrower accounts, where resolution plans had been implemented and now moditied under Reseliution Framework

2.0 annaunced by RBI an 5th May, 2021.

o
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Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited
Mates to the financlal statemenlts for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al ameunts in INR Jakhs, unless atherwite stated)

Wota 54 Disclogures under Listing Azreement or Debt Securliles

Hote Particulars

a Disclosure under Regulation 53{e) of SEBI (Listing Obllgations and Disctosure Requiremems} Regulations, 2015
Debenture Trustaes:

IDBI Trusteeship Services Lid,

Unlversal Insurance Aullding,

Graund Floor, ST £.04. Road,

Fart, Mumbal - 300001

Tel, : 02240807181

Fax:022-66311776

Ernall : ltsI@idbitrustee.com

b Disclosure under Regutation 53(f] af SEBE{iistlng Obligatinns and Oisclosure Requiremenis) Regulations, 2015
Related Party iransactions

31-03-2023 a1-013-2022
toans and advances in the mature of loans to subsidiaries - -
Loans and advances inthe nature of loans to associates - -
Loans and advances inthe nature of [oans to firms/compankes ) 26,834.85 21,943.43

in which directors are interested

Invesiments by the loonee in the shares of parent company and -
subsiciary company, when the company has made a loanor
advance |a the nature of joan

[ Disciosure under Regpiatlon 54{2) of SEB) {Listing Okllgatioas and Dlsclosure fequlrements) Regufations, 2015
Assot cover

The Non Carvertible Pebentures are radeemable at par / premium, The Non Convertinle Debentures {exeept for subordinated dabt] are secuored by way of first and park-
passi hypothezation In faveur of Oebentuie Trustee on the Company's movable assets such as recelvables ar'sing out of loan, lease ard hire purchase, book debts, cusrent’
assats and investments {excluding investments made pursuant to regulatary requirement and strategle investrments of the Company which are in the nature of equity
shares, preference shares snd venture capltal units or any receivables therefrom) and / or by way of » first and pari pasiu mortgage on the Company's Immovable
proparty of Rs. ;.8.0}' lakh with charge created in favour ol Debenture Trustee.

For M M Nisstm & Co LLP For Mukund N4, Chitale & Ce For and on kbehalf of the Bozrd of Directars
Chartered Accounlants Chartered Accountants
yRegistration No.: 207122W/W100672 Firm Reaisteation No.: 106655W

Jp—— g T /“
Iy A 8 ¢ - ‘“'dzf;éﬂf' 1
$anjay ¥heman! Saursbh Chitaie Uvnmesh%ap’isf" pm
Martner Fartney Managing Dirgetor
Membership No: 044577 Membership No: 111383 DIN: 076653 ;09291062
REL Ty

X

o LA
Bharat Thakkar Klran Tangudu
Chief Financlal Cfficer Company Scoretary
M Mo 043525 M No: /932

Date and Place: May 16, 2023, Mumbai
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NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty Seventh Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members
of Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited (the Company) will be held at a shorter notice on Tuesday, 27t
June 2023, at 9:30 a.m. at 27BKC, C 27, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400
051 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended 315t March 2023 and the Reports of the Board of Directors (“the Board”) and
the Auditors thereon.

2. To declare dividend on equity shares.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Amit Mohan (DIN: 09294638) who retires by rotation
and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Notes:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY TO ATTEND AND, ON A POLL, TO VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.
2. The Company has received consents pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013
for convening this Meeting at a shorter notice.
By Order of the Board of Directors
KIRAN TANGUDU
Place: Mumbai COMPANY SECRETARY
Date: June 22, 2023 Membership No.: F7932

Registered Office: 27BKC, C 27, G Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051
CIN: U67200MH1996PLC097730

Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited

CIN: U67200MH1996PLC097730

Registered Office: 27BKC, C 27, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051, India.

Tel. N0.022-66056825, Fax No. 022-67259086, service.carfinance@kotak.com, website: https://www.primeloans.kotak.com/
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Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited
(CIN: U67200MH1996PLC097730)
Registered Office: 27BKC, C 27, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051
Tel No.: (022) 61660000, Fax No.: (022) 67132403, Website: www.kotak.com

Proxy form
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the members(s):

Registered address:

Email Id:

Folio No./Client Id: DP ID:

I/We, being the members (s) holding ......ccccvevuvennnn. Equity Shares of Kotak Mahindra Prime
Limited, hereby appoint

1. | Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:

2. | Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:

3. | Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, 27 June 2023, at 9:30 a.m. at 27BKC,
C 27, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051 and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution Particulars
No.
1. Adoption of financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31

Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited

CIN: U67200MH1996PLC097730

Registered Office: 27BKC, C 27, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051, India.

Tel. N0.022-66056825, Fax No. 022-67259086, service.carfinance@kotak.com, website: https://www.primeloans.kotak.com/



mailto:service.carfinance@kotak.com

kotak®

ak Mah ra Prime i A
Kotak Mahindra Prime Kotak Mahindra Prime

March 2023 and the Reports of the Board of Directors (“the Board”) and the
Auditors thereon

2. Declaration of dividend on equity shares
3. Re-appointment of Mr. Amit Mohan (DIN: 09294638), who retires by
rotation.
Signed this...... day of.................. 2023
Affix
. Revenue
Signature of Shareholder Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.

Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited

CIN: U67200MH1996PLC097730

Registered Office: 27BKC, C 27, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051, India.

Tel. N0.022-66056825, Fax No. 022-67259086, service.carfinance@kotak.com, website: https://www.primeloans.kotak.com/
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Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited
(CIN: U67200MH1996PLC097730)
Registered Office: 27BKC, C 27, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051
Tel No.: (022) 61660000, Fax No.: (022) 67132403, Website: www.kotak.com

Annual General Meeting

Attendance Slip

DPID Client ID Folio No. No. of Shares

Name of the Shareholder

Address

Name of Proxy

| hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on
Tuesday, 27t June 2023, at 9:30 a.m. at 27BKC, C 27, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai — 400 051

Signature of the Shareholder/Proxy

Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited

CIN: U67200MH1996PLC097730

Registered Office: 27BKC, C 27, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051, India.

Tel. N0.022-66056825, Fax No. 022-67259086, service.carfinance@kotak.com, website: https://www.primeloans.kotak.com/
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Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited
CIN: U67200MH1996PLC097730

Yauatcha Mumbai

Registered Office: 27BKC, C 27, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051, India.
Tel. N0.022-66056825, Fax No. 022-67259086, service.carfinance@kotak.com, website: https://www.primeloans.kotak.com/
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